
SCV Water Agency 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, January 2, 2024 
Regular Board Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM 

Members of the public may attend by the following options: 

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or 
by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, 
CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board 
members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the 
SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in 
their entirety. (Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see 
the Agenda for details.) 

------------ 

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com 
within 3 business days from the date of the Board meeting. 

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines 
regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should 
therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

IN PERSON 

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant 

Boardroom  
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 

 Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

BY PHONE 

Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 
Webinar ID: 161 798 0608

VIRTUALLY 

Please join the meeting from your computer, 
tablet or smartphone: 

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1617980608 

1

mailto:ajacobs@scvwa.org
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1617980608


[This page intentionally left blank.]

2



27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD •  SANTA CLARITA,  CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 •  661 297•1600 •  FAX 661 297•1611 
webs i t e  address :  www.yourscvwate r . com

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
BOARDROOM  

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD 
SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350 

TUESDAY, JANUARY 2, 2024 AT 6:00 PM 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  

5:15 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room.  

There will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the 
Call to Order at 6:00 PM. 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 

Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 161 798 0608 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1617980608. Any member of the public may listen to the 

meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above. 
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 

broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 

remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person. 

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting 

themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water 

Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received 
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on 

the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything 
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if 

practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence 
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3

tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405


January 2, 2024 
Page 2 of 3 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time.
Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so
at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s
presiding officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) To participate in public
comment from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in
Zoom. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when requested.
To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to raise your hand. When it is your
turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute.

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

5. CONSENT CALENDAR   PAGE 

5.1   * Approve Minutes of the December 19, 2023 Santa Clarita 
Valley Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 7 

5.2   * Approve Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an 
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Recycled Water between 
City of Santa Clarita and SCV Water Agency 13 

6. ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL  PAGE 

6.1   * Approve the Third Amendment to the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement Between Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency and 
DACA-Castaic, LLC for Tapia Ranch 47 

6.2   * Approve a Revision to the Board of Directors Policies and 
Procedures Regarding General Manager Authority to Grant 
Easements and Accept and Acquire Real Property and Finding 
as Exempt from CEQA Guidelines Section 15378 (b)(5), and 
Alternatively CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) 121 

7. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS

8. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORT FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY   PAGE 

8.1   * December 13, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed 
Committee Meeting Recap Report  125 

9. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY PAGE 

9.1   * Engineering Services Section Report 131 
9.2   * Finance, Administration and Information Technology Services 

Section Report 143 
9.3   * Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section 

Report 151 
9.4   * Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 163 
9.5   * Committee Planning Calendars 173 

10. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

4



January 2, 2024 
Page 3 of 3 

11. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS PAGE 

11.1 AB 1234 Reports 

12. DIRECTOR REPORTS

13. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE

14. ADJOURNMENT

* Indicates Attachment
 Indicates Handout

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above 
Agenda items. 

NOTICES 

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs, 
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must 
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone 
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss 
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make 
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested 
accommodation. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72) 
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.  

Posted on December 27, 2023. 

5

http://www.yourscvwater.com/
ajacobs
Steve Cole



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

6



Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency – December 19, 2023 

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held 
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 
at 6:00 PM on Tuesday, December 19, 2023. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute 
Book of the Agency preceding these minutes. The meeting recording can be accessed by 
clicking on the following link: Board Meeting Recording. 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Ed Colley, William Cooper, Maria Gutzeit, Dirk 
Marks, Gary Martin, Piotr Orzechowski and Ken Petersen.   

DIRECTORS ABSENT:  Beth Braunstein.  

Also present: Administrative Services Manager Kim Grass, Assistant General Manager Steve 
Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Financial and 
Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, Chief Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie, 
Communications Manager Kevin Strauss, Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, General 
Counsel Tom Bunn (virtually), General Manager Matthew Stone, Human Resources Manager 
Ari Mantis, Information Technology Technician I Oliver Molina, Information Technology 
Technician II Jonathan Thomas, Means Consulting President Ed Means, as well as additional 
SCV Water Agency staff (Virtually), and members of the public (In Person and Virtually).   

President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. A quorum was present. 

There were no changes to the December 19, 2023 Board Agenda and it was accepted as 
shown (Item 4).  

-------------- 

President Martin opened the Public Hearing at 6:04 PM regarding an Ordinance to increase the 
Director’s compensation rate. President Martin presented the report, attachments and revised 
Ordinance for consideration. (Item 5.1).  

President Martin closed the Public Hearing at 6:22 PM. 

Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and carried, the Board approved 
the revised Ordinance No. 03 increasing the Directors compensation by 6.7 percent, rounded 
down to the nearest dollar, bringing the monthly stipend from $239 per meeting to $255 per 
meeting, maximum of 10 meetings per month, one meeting per day, taking effect in 60 days 
from today by the following roll call votes (Item 5.1): 

Director Armitage  No Director Braunstein Absent 
Director Colley  No Director Cooper Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Marks  Yes 
President Martin  Yes Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen  No 

7

https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-11/Board-Recording-112123.mp3
ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 5.1



December 19, 2023 
Page 2 of 6 
 
 

  

ORDINANCE NO. 03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY  

TO INCREASE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION  
 

FULL ORDINANCE MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 
 

-------------- 
 
Upon motion of Director Armitage, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, the 
Board approved the Consent Calendar including Resolution No. SCV-396 and with the 
addition of the following language to the December 5, 2023 regular Board meeting minutes 
under Item 6.6:  
 

• Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, 
the Board approved moving forward with issuing a Request for Proposals to remodel the 
existing Boardroom which would include the addition of a multipurpose room to be used 
by the Board for Closed Session and staff for meetings during the day by the following 
roll call votes (Item 6.6): 

 
by the following roll call votes (Item 6): 
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Absent  
Director Colley   Yes   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes    Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes   
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-396 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

PURSUANT TO A CATEGORICAL EXEMPTION UNDER CEQA GUIDELINES SECTION 
15301, AND A CATEGORICAL EXCLUSION UNDER NEPA, FOR THE APPROVAL OF THE 
PURCHASE OF A DENORA CLORTEC ONSITE SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE GENERATION 

SYSTEM FOR THE LOWER HERON RESIDUAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM (LHRMS) 
 

FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 
 

------------- 
 
Upon motion of Director Petersen, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, the 
Board approved the HCM Implementation project costs of $2,217,235 and authorized the 
General Manager to enter into a contract with Apps Associates for a fixed contract cost of 
$1,791,460 by the following roll call votes (Item 7.1):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Absent   
Director Colley   No   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes    Director Marks    Yes  

8



December 19, 2023 
Page 3 of 6 
 
 

  

President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes   
Director Petersen   Yes 
 
Upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Petersen and carried, the Board 
approved receiving and filing of the SCV Water Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the 
period of July 1, 2022, to June 30, 2023 by the following roll call votes (Item 7.2):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Absent   
Director Colley   Yes   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes   Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen   Yes 
 
Upon motion of Director Colley, seconded by Vice President Orzechowski and carried, the 
Board approved adopting Resolution No. SCV-397 declaring pursuant to Government Code 
section 54221 that certain real property located on the border of Kings County and Kern County 
along State Highway 33 comprising approximately 182 parcels is exempt surplus land and 
finding that such declaration is exempt from environmental review under the California 
Environmental Quality Act by the following roll call votes (Item 7.3):  
 
Director Armitage   Yes   Director Braunstein   Absent   
Director Colley   Yes   Director Cooper   Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit  Yes    Director Marks    Yes  
President Martin   Yes    Vice President Orzechowski  Yes  
Director Petersen   Yes 
 

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-397 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54221 DECLARING THAT 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE BORDER OF 
KINGS COUNTY AND KERN COUNTY ALONG STATE HIGHWAY 
33 COMPRISING APPROXIMATELY 182 PARCELS IS EXEMPT 
SURPLUS LAND, AND FINDING THAT SUCH DECLARATION IS 

EXEMPT FROM ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW UNDER THE 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 

 
FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE 

-------------- 
 
 
Means Consulting President Ed Means presented the Draft 2024-2028 Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency Strategic Plan (Item 8). 
 

-------------- 
 
 
 
 
 

9



December 19, 2023 
Page 4 of 6 
 
 

  

General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (Item 9). 
 
The General Manager reported on the following:  
 
He congratulated Rochelle Patterson and staff for the successful annual audit that just took 
place.  
 
He mentioned the following meetings in which he participated which included, attendance at the 
Safe Clean Water Program Scoring Committee; by-Weekly PFAS Team meeting this past 
Friday; SCV Water Agency’s Holiday Party; follow-up meeting with Mitch Rosenberg and Erin 
Hastey on his recent review; One-on-One meeting with Vice President Orzechowski; and a 
meeting with Steve Cole, Mike Alvord, and Keith Abercrombie who met with Counsel for the 
PFAS Class Action Lawsuit preparing for the upcoming potential claim settlement submissions  
 
He advised the Boad on the potential utilization of the Devil’s Den Water District Property in 
which the Board acted on tonight. He stated that they set in motion necessary steps for staff to 
start the process and potential options will be coming back to the Board at a future meeting.  
 
He informed the Board that due to the Treasurer of the Urban Water Institute becoming ill, there 
was a need to have someone step into his position which created some banking issues and as 
a result there was an emergency meeting of the Executive Committee and subsequent 
emergency meeting of the Board.    
 
Finally, he updated the Board on the February 21-23, 2024 Urban Water Institute upcoming 
conference.   

 
To hear the full comments, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording 
link on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website. 
 

-------------- 
 

Committee Meeting Recap Reports for Informational Purposes Only (Item 10). 
 
There were no comments on the recap reports. 

-------------- 
 
President’s Report (Item 11). 
  
President Martin updated the Board on upcoming meetings and events.  
 

-------------- 
 
AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 12). 
 
Director Armitage reported that she virtually attended the Executive Committee meeting of the 
Special Districts Association of North Los Angeles County on December 13, 2023. 
 
Vice President Orzechowski reported that he virtually attended a One-on-One meeting with the 
General Manager on December 11, 2023. 
 

10



December 19, 2023 
Page 5 of 6 

President Martin reported that he virtually attended the monthly meeting with DCA Executive 
Director Graham Bradner on December 8, 2023, attended the City of Santa Clarita’s City 
Council’s Organizational meeting held at the City of Santa Clarita on December 12, 2023 where 
he presented a certificate to the outgoing Mayor Jason Gibb and attended the DCA Board 
meeting in Sacramento on December 14, 2023. 

There were no other AB 1234 Reports. 

-------------- 

Director Reports (Item 13). 

Director Armitage wished everyone a happy holiday season. 

There were no other Director reports. 

-------------- 

The Board went into Closed Session at 8:06 PM to discuss Item 14.1: 

Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation – Significant Exposure to 
Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, Claim of 
Enrique Morales Against Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, Claim for Personal Injury 
and Property Damage, Date of Claim December 5, 2023. 

The Zoom meeting was put on hold while the Board went into Closed Session. President Martin 
advised the public and staff for those who wanted to stay, to remain on the current 
teleconference line and once Closed Session ends, the Board would reconvene for Closed 
Session announcements and the conclusion of the meeting. 

President Martin reconvened the Open Session at 8:11 PM. 

Tom Bunn, Esq., reported that regarding Item 14.1 Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Anticipated Litigation – Significant Exposure to Litigation Pursuant to Paragraph (2) of 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9, Claim of Enrique Morales Against Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, Claim for Personal Injury and Property Damage, Date of Claim December 5, 
2023, the Board unanimously voted to reject the claim and submit it to the Agency’s Joint 
Powers Insurance Authority, upon motion of Director Cooper, seconded by Director Marks and 
carried, by the following roll call votes:  

Director Armitage  Yes Director Braunstein Absent 
Director Colley  Yes Director Cooper Yes 
Vice President Gutzeit Yes Director Marks  Yes 
President Martin  Yes Vice President Orzechowski  Yes 
Director Petersen  Yes 

There were no other actions taken in Closed Session that were reportable under the Ralph M. 
Brown Act (Item 15). 

11



December 19, 2023 
Page 6 of 6 

-------------- 

Director Requests for Future Agenda Items (Item 16). 

There were no requests for future Agenda items.    

-------------- 

The meeting was adjourned in memory of Elinor A. Bunn at 8:17 PM (Item 17). 

 April Jacobs, Board Secretary 

ATTEST: 

President of the Board 

12



BOARD MEMORANDUM 

SUMMARY 

The Vista Canyon Water Factory is producing recycled water and is under the City of Santa 
Clarita (City) ownership. The Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (Agency), as the provider of 
Potable and Recycled water in the Santa Clarita Valley, would like to purchase the available 
recycled water from the City and distribute and sell the recycled water. This is the Agreement 
between the City and Agency to establish the roles and responsibility of the parties for the 
production and sale of recycled water as well as the cost for the purchase of recycled water 
from the City.  

DISCUSSION 

Recycled water is highly treated wastewater that is used for non-drinking water purposes. 
Recycled water has been delivered to the Santa Clarita / Valencia community since 2003. 
Currently, SCV Water delivers an average of 475 acre-feet per year to 13 irrigation sites, 
including a golf course, shopping center and street medians. The use of recycled water is a key 
component of our conservation and water use efficiency programs as every gallon of recycled 
water used results in a gallon of drinking water that can be saved for potable domestic uses. 

The Vista Canyon Development in the eastern part of Santa Clarita Valley was constructed as 
part of the development project, a wastewater treatment plant. The treatment facility is called 
The Water Factory and is capable of producing up to 371,000 gallons of recycled water per day. 
(Equivalent to 415.5-acre feet per year). The Developer transferred ownership of the Water 
Factory to the City of Santa Clarita. 

The City adopted a Recycled Water Ordinance, Ordinance No. 19-3 (“Ordinance”) on July 9, 
2019.  The Ordinance establishes requirements for all users of the City’s recycled water, 
including the requirement that all users execute a user agreement. This Agreement constitutes 
the user agreement required by the Ordinance. The City will make available and sell to the 
Agency the recycled water produced at the Water Factory in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement and Ordinance 19-3. 

On December 13, 2023, the Water Resources and Watershed Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to authorize the General Manager to execute agreement to purchase and sale 
recycled water between SCV Water Agency and the City of Santa Clarita. 

DATE: January 2, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Approve Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for 
Purchase and Sale of Recycled Water between City of Santa Clarita and SCV 
Water Agency 

13

ajacobs
Item 5.2



 

STRATEGIC NEXUS 
 
This Agreement is in support of strategic goal C 3.3, Work with agencies to develop foundation 
for a successful recycled water program. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None at this time 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute the attached Agreement for Purchase and Sale of 
Recycled Water between Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency and the City of Santa Clarita. 
 
Attachment 
 
 
 

14

ajacobs
Matt Stone



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 1 

AGREEMENT FOR PURCHASE AND SALE OF RECYCLED WATER 
  
This Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Recycled Water (“Agreement”) is 

dated _____________, 2024 (“Effective Date”) and is between the City of Santa Clarita 
(the “City”) and the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (“SCVWA”).  The City and the 
SCVWA are referred to in this Agreement individually as a “Party” and collectively as 
the “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
This Agreement is made and entered into on the basis of the following facts and 
understandings of the Parties set forth in these recitals:  
 

A. The City is a municipality located within Los Angeles County, more 
specifically within the Santa Clarita Valley. 

 
B. SCVWA is a wholesale and retail water agency formed by SB 634 which 

went into effect on January 1, 2018 and is the merger of Castaic Lake Water Agency, 
Valencia Water Company, Newhall Water Agency and Santa Clarita Water Agency. 
SCVWA is the exclusive purveyor of potable and recycled water within its boundaries, 
including within the City of Santa Clarita and for the Vista Canyon project.  SCVWA 
currently purchases recycled water from the Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District 
from the Valencia Water Reclamation Plant for distribution and use in the western 
portion of its service area. 

 
C. The City will own, operate and maintain a water reclamation factory 

known as the Vista Canyon Water Factory (“Water Factory”) located at 17365 
Humphreys Parkway, Santa Clarita, CA, 91387.  The City presently owns the land 
where the Water Factory is located. 

 
D. On April 16, 2020, the Regional Water Board adopted WDRs and 

WRRs, as Order No. R4-2020-0049, to regulate the proposed discharge of disinfected 
tertiary wastewater generated at the Water Factory for non-potable recycled water 
applications. 

 
E. The Water Factory will be designed to treat wastewater generated by the 

Vista Canyon project, and to treat a portion of the wastewater flow from an existing City 
sewer line serving existing development upstream of the Water Factory.  The Water 
Factory will produce disinfected tertiary recycled water in accordance with all applicable 
state and federal standards, including the California Code of Regulations Title 22 
requirements.   
 

F. The Water Factory has a design capacity of 392,135 gallons per day 
(“gpd”) (equivalent to 439.2 acre-feet per year), and is expected to produce 
approximately 371,000 gpd (equivalent to 415.5 acre-feet per year) of recycled water. 

15



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 2 

G. The City adopted a Recycled Water Ordinance, Ordinance No. 19-3 
(“Ordinance”) on July 9, 2019.  The Ordinance establishes requirements for all users 
of the City’s recycled water, including the requirement that all users execute a user 
agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the user agreement required by the 
Ordinance. 
 

H. The City will make available and sell to the SCVWA the recycled water 
produced at the Water Factory in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and 
Ordinance 19-3.  

 
The Parties therefore agree as follows: 

 
1. Definitions.  For the purposes of this Agreement, the terms below have the 

following definitions: 
 

1.1. “AFY” means acre-feet per year. 
 

1.2. “Agreement” means this Agreement for Purchase and Sale of 
Recycled Water. 

 
1.3. “Alternative Water” means the water supply provided by the 

SCVWA which may include groundwater, imported water, or other 
water sources. 

 
1.4. “City Engineer” means the City Engineer and/or the Director of 

Public Works of the City or his or her authorized designee. 
 

1.5. “City” means the City of Santa Clarita. 
 

1.6. “DDW” means the State Water Resources Control Board 
Department of Drinking Water. 

 
1.7. “Fiscal Year” means the City’s fiscal year, beginning on July 1 of 

any given year, and continuing through June 30 of the following 
calendar year. 

 
1.8. “gpd” means gallons per day. 

 
1.9. “Neighbor Issues” Includes odor, noise and other complaints or 

concerns generated from the public around the area of treatment or 
area of use. 

 
1.10. “Off-Site SCVWA Facilities” means facilities constructed, 

operated, or maintained by or on behalf of the SCVWA, which are 
not physically located on the Water Factory or City property, and 

16



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 3 

which the SCVWA uses to draw, convey, or distribute recycled 
water. 

 
1.11. “Ordinance” means the Ordinance Providing for the Establishment 

and Enforcement of Regulations Pursuant to the Water Recycling 
Requirements for Recycled Water Users, also known as the City’s 
Recycled Water Ordinance, adopted July 9, 2019, and as may be 
amended from time to time, and attached as Exhibit A. 

 
1.12. “On-Site SCVWA Water Factory Facilities” means facilities 

constructed, operated, or maintained by or on behalf of the SCVWA 
which are physically located on the Water Factory or City property, 
and which the SCVWA uses to draw, convey, or distribute recycled 
water as contemplated on Exhibit B.  These facilities shall be owned 
by the SCVWA. 

 
1.13. “Party” or “Parties” means the City and the SCVWA, either 

individually or collectively, who have entered into this Agreement. 
 

1.14. “Permit” means any permit (e.g. WRR or Master Reclamation 
Permit) issued by the Regional Board to the City relating to the use 
of recycled water. 

 
1.15. “Public Health” means the Los Angeles County Department of 

Public Health. 
 

1.16. “Recycled Water Distribution System” means the recycled water 
distribution system owned and operated by SCVWA. 

 
1.17. “Regional Board” means the California Regional Water Quality 

Control Board, Los Angeles Region. 
 

1.18. “Reuse Site” means an authorized location at which recycled water 
provided by the SCVWA is used. 

 
1.19. “Regulations” means the City’s “Requirements for Recycled Water 

Users,” which is attached as Exhibit A. 
 

1.20. “SCVWA” means the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency.  
 

1.21. “Termination Date” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2 of 
this Agreement. 

 
1.22. “Vista” means Vista Canyon Ranch, LLC, the project proponent for 

the Vista Canyon project, or its successors or assigns. 

17



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 4 

1.23. “Vista Canyon project” means the Vista Canyon Specific Plan 
approved by the City on May 10, 2011, and its related entitlements.   

 
1.24.  “Water Factory” means the Vista Canyon Water Factory. 

 
1.25. “WDR” means the Waste Discharge Requirements established for 

the Water Factory’s percolation ponds by the Regional Board. 
 

1.26. “WRR” means the Water Reclamation Requirements or Water 
Recycling Requirements established for the Water Factory by the 
Regional Board. 

 
2. Principal Duties and Privileges of the Parties. 

 
2.1. The City shall make available to the SCVWA up to 371,000 gpd of 

recycled water produced by the Water Factory.   
 

2.2. The City will provide SCVWA daily records of recycled water 
delivered to SCVWA from the City’s recycled water meter located at 
the Water Factory, on a monthly basis. 

 
2.3. SCVWA will reimburse the City on quarterly basis for recycled water 

delivered to SCVWA based upon the metering records provided by 
the City.  

 
2.4. SCVWA will be the exclusive retail seller of water produced at the 

Vista Plant. 
 

2.5. The City will own, operate and maintain the Water Factory. 
 

2.6. The City will be responsible for treatment and all matters, costs and 
liabilities related to or associated with treatment of the recycled 
water including all onsite equipment and facilities at the Water 
Factory, excluding only the Onsite SCVWA Water Factory Facilities.  

 
2.7. SCVWA will be responsible for delivery and all matters, costs and 

liabilities related to or associated with delivery of the recycled water 
including the distribution pipelines after it leaves the Water Factory 
site and all associated appurtenances and the Recycled Water 
Reservoir. 

 
2.8. The City will be responsible for all permitting and compliance 

associated with production of water at the Water Factory, including 
meeting applicable current and future standards for recycled water 
treatment and use, including but not limited to any requirements 
imposed by DDW, the Regional Board, the United States 

18



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 5 

Environmental Protection Agency and any other relevant state, 
federal or local agency. 

 
2.9. SCVWA will be responsible for all permitting and compliance 

associated with the recycled water delivery system and use of 
recycled water by retail customers, including but not limited to any 
requirements imposed by DDW, the Regional Board, the United 
States Environmental Protection Agency and any other relevant 
state, federal or local agency. 

 
2.10. The City will be responsible for “neighbor issues” associated with the 

treatment and related collection system. 
 

2.11. SCVWA will be responsible for “neighbor issues” associated with the 
recycled water delivery system. 

 
2.12. The City will grant SCVWA an easement for locating, accessing and 

operating the Onsite SCVWA Water Factory Facilities; the easement 
shall be at no cost, however, SCVWA will cover staff, title, and 
other-related costs. 

 
2.13. SCVWA has no financial obligation for operations and maintenance 

of the Water Factory; however, SCVWA will pay for recycled water 
based upon metered amounts of recycled water actually used by 
SCVWA. 

 
2.14. The City has no financial obligation for operations and maintenance 

of the Recycled Water Distribution System; however, as provided 
herein, the City shall provide water for distribution that meets all 
applicable requirements. 

 
2.15. The City will make reasonable best efforts to operate the Water 

Factory in compliance with applicable regulatory standards for the 
provision of recycled water to SCVWA.   

 
2.16. SCVWA shall make reasonable best efforts to utilize available 

recycled water but shall have no obligations or liabilities associated 
with a failure to take water from the Water Factory. 

 
2.17. SCVWA will provide water service to the City, including recycled 

water service in accordance with the service terms and conditions 
and at current prices adopted by the SCVWA Board of Directors 
applicable to such service.  No separate obligation to provide water 
service is conferred upon SCVWA by this Agreement nor is any 
obligation to use water conferred to the City by this Agreement. 

19



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 6 

2.18. The City and SCVWA shall cooperate in all permitting efforts and 
share information and access as necessary for each to comply with 
applicable law. 

 
2.19. The SCVWA may at their sole discretion provide supplemental water 

to meet peak irrigation needs of its recycled water users if the Water 
Factory’s output is not sufficient to meet demand. 

 
2.20. The SCVWA shall pay the City for all recycled water drawn from the 

Water Factory at the per-unit price described in Section 7, and 
pursuant to the payment provisions described in Section 8. 

 
2.21. The City will comply with all applicable Permit requirements of the 

Regional Board for the Water Factory. 
 

2.22. SCVWA will comply with all applicable Permit requirements of the 
Regional Board for the Water Factory and for the Recycled Water 
Distribution System. 

 
2.23. SCVWA will adopt Recycled Rules and Regulations and obtain any 

and all permits and regulatory approvals necessary to utilize 
recycled water and operate the Recycled Water Distribution System. 

 
3. Records and Reports.  The City shall report in writing to the SCVWA as follows: 

 
3.1. City Monthly Reports.  Within 30 days after the end of each 

calendar month, the City shall report in writing to the SCVWA: The 
total volume of recycled water drawn during that month and the 
relevant meter readings; City shall ensure that the meter is 
calibrated on an as needed basis and at a minimum interval of once 
every five years. 
 

3.2. SCVWA Right of Entry and Examination. SCVWA or its 
representative may enter the City’s recycled water facilities for the 
purpose of verifying the volume and conformance with all water 
reuse regulations. Accordingly, the City shall provide SCVWA with a 
right-of-entry at the Water Factory for the purpose of this verification. 
In addition, upon request by the SCVWA, the City shall provide full 
access to the City’s meter and to any records that measure, register, 
record, or reflect recycled water flow, delivery, or distribution 
volumes. 

 
 
 
 
 

20



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 7 

3.3. SCVWA Monthly Reports.  Within 30 days after the end of each 
calendar month, SCVWA shall report in writing to the City: 
 

A. The total volume delivered or distributed during that month to 
each Reuse Site; and  

 
B. The type of use of recycled water at each Reuse Site. 

 
3.4. Annual Reports.  Within 45 days after the end of each fiscal year, 

the SCVWA shall report to the City: 
 

A. All Reuse Site contact persons and inspection activities for 
that fiscal year. 

 
3.5. City’s Right of Entry and Examination. The City or its 

representative may enter any of the SCVWA’s recycled water 
facilities and any Reuse Site for the purpose of verifying the volume 
or type of use of recycled water reported by the SCVWA, and 
conformance with all water reuse regulations. Accordingly, SCVWA 
shall provide the City with a right-of-entry at each Reuse Site for the 
purpose of this verification. In addition, upon request by the City, the 
SCVWA shall provide full access to any of the SCVWA’s or Reuse 
Sites’ meters and to any records that measure, register, record, or 
reflect recycled water flow, delivery, or distribution volumes. 
 

4. Treatment and Water Quality. 
 

4.1. Applicable Water Reclamation Requirements.  The City shall 
make available to the SCVWA recycled water that conforms to all 
applicable federal, state and local health and water quality 
requirements for recycled water, the Permit, or any similar regulation 
adopted by the Regional Board for the Water Factory. 
 

4.2. More Stringent Water Reclamation Requirements.  If the 
Regional Board imposes WRRs more stringent than, the City may, 
at its discretion and at its expense, undertake steps to meet the 
more stringent WRRs and shall indicate to the SCVWA in writing 
such intent within 90 days after the adoption of the more stringent 
WRRs by the Regional Board. 

 
4.3. Point of Compliance of Water Quality.  The point of compliance 

for determining whether the recycled water provided by the City 
meets the applicable Permit requirements will be immediately after 
the final treatment process at the Water Factory, but before the on-
site recycled water storage and recycled water pump station.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City shall bear all legal and 

21



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 8 

regulatory responsibility associated with the production of recycled 
water at the Water Factory including the water quality leaving the 
Water Factory.  Legal and regulatory responsibility shall pass from 
the City to the SCVWA at the point of entry to the Recycled Water 
Distribution System. 

 
5. Distribution and Delivery. 

 
5.1. Distribution.  The SCVWA may sell or transfer the recycled water 

that SCVWA purchases from the City under this Agreement to third 
parties. 
 

5.2. Non-Water Factory Facilities. 
 

A. Costs of Facilities.  The SCVWA shall bear all construction, 
operation, and maintenance costs for all delivery and 
distribution facilities related to the SCVWA’s sale or transfer 
of recycled water from the Water Factory to third parties or to 
any Reuse Site maintained by the SCVWA, excepting 
construction costs associated with the Vista Canyon project 
within the project boundaries, which shall be bore by the 
Developer.   

 
B. Approval of Distribution Facilities.  Any new or extended 

portion of the SCVWA’s recycled water distribution system 
must first be approved by Public Health and Regional Board 
before beginning deliveries of recycled water through that 
portion of the system. The SCVWA and the City shall 
cooperate in order to prepare and submit an engineering 
report detailing the new or extended distribution system for 
approval by Public Health and the Regional Board. The 
SCVWA shall prepare and pay for the engineering report, and 
provide a copy of the report to the City. The SCVWA shall 
submit the engineering report to Public Health and the 
Regional Board.   

 
5.3. Usage.  

 
A. Legal and Regulatory Responsibility. In accord with 

Section 2 of this Agreement, SCVWA shall bear all legal and 
regulatory responsibility associated with the use of the 
recycled water it draws from the Water Factory.  The City 
shall bear all legal and regulatory responsibility associated 
with the production of recycled water at the Water Factory 
including the water quality leaving the Water Factory, as 
specified in Section 4.3 of this agreement.  Legal and 

22



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 9 

regulatory responsibility shall pass from the City to the 
SCVWA at the point of entry to the Recycled Water 
Distribution System.   
 

B. Permissible Uses.  The SCVWA acknowledges that recycled 
water has limited uses.  The SCVWA shall ensure that the 
recycled water drawn from the Water Factory is only used for 
those uses or purposes that are legally permissible under: 
 

i. California law; and 
 

ii. The established WRRs issued by the Regional Board 
for the Water Factory; and 

 
iii. Public Health’s Water Recycling Criteria contained in 

Title 22, Division 4, Chapter 3 of the California Code 
of Regulations as may be amended from time to 
time; and 

 
iv. The directions of any and all regulatory agencies with 

appropriate jurisdiction. 
 

C. Compliance with City Regulations. The SCVWA shall 
comply with, and shall cause all Reuse Sites to which it 
distributes or delivers water to comply with the City’s 
Ordinance and Regulations, attached as Exhibit A, or any 
subsequent revisions to that Ordinance and/or Regulations. 
 

D. Reuse Sites.   
 

i. The SCVWA shall notify the City prior to first 
initiating the delivery of recycled water to a Reuse 
Site. 
 

ii. The SCVWA shall oversee all Reuse Sites that 
obtain recycled water from the SCVWA in 
conformity with the Regulations attached as Exhibit 
A, or any subsequent revisions to these 
Regulations. 

 
iii. The SCVWA shall ensure, by agreement, ordinance, 

or other administrative mandate, that each Reuse 
Site is managed in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, guidelines, and any other pertinent 
criteria for such use mandated by Public Health and 
other regulatory agencies with appropriate 

23



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 10 

jurisdiction, while ensuring the Reuse Site does not 
constitute a nuisance.   

 
iv. The SCVWA shall provide a copy of the effective 

WRRs, and the City’s Ordinance and Regulations 
to each recycled water user. 

 
v. Inspections. The SCVWA shall periodically inspect 

all Reuse Sites that obtain recycled water from the 
Water Factory, including third party users, and 
perform cross-connection shut down tests, when 
required, in accordance with: the California Water 
Code; the most recent version of the Water 
Recycling Criteria contained in Title 22 of the 
California Code of Regulations; and orders and 
directives from the regulatory agencies with 
appropriate jurisdiction. The SCVWA shall supply 
copies of all inspection reports to the City in 
connection with their annual reporting 
requirements, or upon request by the City. 

 
vi. Right of Access.  The City or its authorized 

representative may enter upon any Reuse Site at 
any time for purposes of verifying compliance with 
requirements under Water Code Section 
13523.1(b)(5) and the City’s Regulations.  The 
SCVWA shall include this right of City access in 
any agreement to supply recycled water to Reuse 
Sites.   

 
6. Interruption of Service. 

 
6.1. The SCVWA acknowledges that factors beyond the control of the 

City could cause operational difficulties or other constraints at the 
Water Factory resulting in the production of recycled water that does 
not meet the established WRRs.  If that occurs, the Director of 
Public Works may temporarily limit availability of recycled water from 
the Water Factory. 
 

6.2. The City will not be liable for any costs or damages incurred by the 
SCVWA arising out of or relating to any interruption in service or 
limitation of availability due to an inability of the City to meet the 
current Permit requirements.  The City will use reasonable efforts to 
re-establish the availability of recycled water to the SCVWA.  The 
SCVWA acknowledges that alternative water may be necessary to 
prevent any damages that might result from an interruption in the 

24



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 11 

supply of recycled water from the Water Factory. The City shall not 
be liable for consequential damages resulting from temporary 
outages of the recycled water supply resulting from causes outside 
the reasonable control of the City. The SCVWA hereby releases the 
City from any and all claims and actions arising out of an interruption 
in service. 

 
6.3. The SCVWA will not be liable and the City hereby releases the 

SCVWA for any costs or damages incurred by the SCVWA or the 
City arising out of or relating to water quality complaints or fines due 
to an inability of the City to meet the current WDRs and/or WRRs. 
 

7. Pricing Policy.   
 

7.1. The cost of water for SCVWA will initially be $175.35 / AF, annually 
escalating at the consumer price index rate. This cost is equal to the 
price charged to SCVWA by the Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation 
District (SCVSD) for recycled water. 
 

7.2. For the purposes of this Agreement, the annual per acre foot 
baseline payment rate will be increased on July 1 by an amount 
equal to the change in the CPI during the immediately preceding 12- 
month period ending December 31 (“CPI Adjustment”), with a 
minimum 2% increase and maximum 5% increase. For purposes of 
this Agreement, “CPI” means the Consumer Price Index – All Items 
for All Urban Customers, Los Angeles-Long Beach-Anaheim area 
published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of 
Labor Statistics (or a reasonably equivalent index if such index is 
discontinued).  

 
7.3. If the cost formula provided in this Agreement results in a price 

disparity between what SCVWA pays the City for recycled water and 
what SCVWA pays the SCVSD for water, the price will be revised to 
match the SCVSD price for water, as so long as the price does not 
cause the City to operate at a deficit. 

 
7.4. Should the City agree to purchase recycled water from SCVWA, it 

shall pay for the recycled water at the rate in effect for all recycled 
water customers at the time of the purchase. 

 
7.5. The City may increase the price of recycled water commensurate 

with the additional expense of meeting the more stringent WRRs, if 
applicable, and SCVWA agrees to pay the increased price as of the 
date the City completes the above-mentioned steps and sets the 
increased price.  If City chooses not to comply with more stringent 
WRR’s, then the SCVWA is not required to take the recycled water. 

25



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 12 

 
8. Invoice and Payment.   

 
8.1. Quarterly Estimated Invoices.  Within 60 days after the end of 

each of the quarter of each fiscal year, the City will invoice the 
SCVWA for the price of the recycled water drawn by the SCVWA 
during that period. 

 
8.2. Payment. The SCVWA shall pay the full amount of each invoice 

within 45 days after the date of the invoice from the City.   
 

8.3. Failure to Timely Pay.  Interest will accrue at the rate of 10% per 
year for all invoices that remain unpaid after 45 days.   

  
9. Term and Termination 

 
9.1. Duration.  The Agreement shall be a 25-year term and shall renew 

automatically for a one-year term, annually, unless and until 
otherwise terminated by the Parties.  
 

9.2. Termination.  Any party may terminate this Agreement by providing 
the other party with written notice ninety (90) days in advance of the 
termination date. 

 
9.3. Costs.  If the City terminates this Agreement, or otherwise ceases 

producing recycled water during the term of this Agreement, the City 
will reimburse the SCVWA for the costs that SCVWA has incurred 
constructing and installing infrastructure necessary to operate the 
Recycled Water Distribution System. The cost to the City will be 
50% of the cost of SCVWA’s infrastructure reduced in an amount 
equal to the depreciated value of the infrastructure at the time of 
termination. The depreciation method shall be mutually agreed upon 
and the method shall be used for current and future infrastructure. 
Further, should SCVWA build new infrastructure needed for the 
Recycled Water Distribution System, SCVWA shall notify the City, 
as early as feasible, and provide a depreciation schedule upon 
request. This clause shall be null if the City terminated for reasons 
beyond its control, such as a result of a catastrophe event (e.g. 
major earthquake, fire, etc.) that would make it cost prohibitive to 
rebuild.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

26



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 13 

10. Liabilities and Indemnities. 
 

10.1. General Indemnity.  The SCVWA and the City shall indemnify each 
other and each of their respective officers, directors, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 
causes of action (whether legal, equitable, or administrative), 
liabilities, losses, costs, demands, damages, attorneys’ fees and 
other expenses, which arise out of or are otherwise related to their 
performance of and/or compliance with the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement, except for any claims related to or arising out of the 
sole negligence or willful misconduct of the other party or any 
representative of the other party, and provided that the water 
delivered by the City to SCVWA meets the requirements required by 
this Agreement.  This indemnity includes, but is not limited to, 
causes of action based on strict liability for defective products, 
breach of warranty, strict liability for abnormally dangerous activities, 
dangerous condition of public property, inverse condemnation, 
trespass, nuisance, and negligence.   
 

10.2. Regulatory Fines Indemnity.  
 

A. The SCVWA acknowledges that the City, as the entity 
holding the Permits for the Water Factory, may be subject to 
monetary fines or penalties imposed by the Regional Board for 
violations of the Permits. 
 
B. If the City becomes the responsible party in an action 
resulting in a fine or penalty, the City shall be financially 
responsible for the payment of that fine or penalty. 

 
C. If the City finds upon substantial evidence that the SCVWA 
is responsible for any action resulting in a fine or penalty, the 
SCVWA shall review such claim and upon agreement reimburse 
the City for the total amount within 45 business days after 
receiving notice of any such fine or penalty. In such events, both 
parties shall work in good faith to resolve issues.  

 
D. If the City finds that a third-party purchaser of recycled water 
from the SCVWA is responsible for any action resulting in such 
a fine or penalty, the SCVWA shall join with the City in any legal 
or other effort to recover for the City all or a part of the fine or 
penalty imposed against the City by the Regional Board for such 
action.  The SCVWA and City shall share in the payment of any 
legal or other fees, costs, or expenses incurred to recover from 
the responsible third party. 

27



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 14 

E. Notwithstanding paragraph 10.1 to this Agreement, the 
SCVWA shall indemnify the City and its directors, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 
causes of action (whether legal, equitable, or administrative), 
liabilities, losses, costs, demands, damages, attorneys’ fees and 
other expenses, which arise out of or are otherwise related to 
the City’s entry onto any Reuse Site for the purpose of verifying 
compliance as described in this section, unless the City was 
negligent in its management of the Reuse Site. 
 
F. Notwithstanding paragraph 10.1 to this Agreement, the City 
shall indemnify the SCVWA and its directors, agents, and 
employees from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 
causes of action (whether legal, equitable, or administrative), 
liabilities, losses, costs, demands, damages, attorneys’ fees and 
other expenses, which arise out of or are otherwise related to 
the SCVWA’s entry onto the Water Factory for any purpose 
associated with or arising from this Agreement, under SCVWA 
or its representative is negligent while conducting business at 
the Water Factory. 

 
G. The SCVWA shall notify the City of any spills of recycled 
water in accordance with criteria established by the City in its 
Ordinance and in its Regulations and shall indemnify the City 
and its directors, agents, and employees from and against any 
and all claims, actions, suits, causes of action (whether legal, 
equitable, or administrative), liabilities, losses, costs, demands, 
damages, attorneys’ fees and other expenses, which arise out 
of or are otherwise related to any spills of recycled water. 

 
11. Insurance.  The parties to this Agreement shall at all times carry insurance sufficient 

to meet their obligations under this Agreement. 
 

12. Assignments.   
 

12.1. The SCVWA may not transfer or assign any of its rights or duties 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the City. 
 

12.2. The City may not transfer or assign any of its rights or duties under 
this Agreement without the prior written consent of SCVWA. 

 
13. Notices.  All notices, correspondence, reports, or other written documents 

exchanged between the Parties under this Agreement must be addressed to the City 
or the SCVWA as set forth below or as the City or the SCVWA may later designate 
in writing, and shall be sent through the United States mail, duly registered or 

28



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 15 

certified, return receipt requested, with postage prepaid thereon, or by any other 
method providing positive proof of delivery. 
 

13.1. TO CITY 
Director of Public Works 
City of Santa Clarita 
23920 Valencia Blvd., Suite 302 
Santa Clarita, CA 91355 

 
13.2. TO SCVWA 

General Manager 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 
Santa Clarita, California 91350 

 
14. General Provisions. 

 
14.1. Integration.  This Agreement, together with its Exhibits, supersedes 

any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the 
Parties with respect to the subject matter herein. Each Party to this 
Agreement acknowledges that no representation by either Party, 
which is not embodied in this Agreement, nor any other agreement, 
statement, or promise contained in this Agreement, shall be valid 
and binding. 
 

14.2. Modification.  Any modification of the Agreement shall be effective 
only if it is in writing and signed by all Parties. 

 
14.3. Interpretation.  Each Party has received independent legal advice 

from its attorneys with respect to the advisability of executing this 
Agreement and the meaning of its provisions. This Agreement has 
been drafted through a joint effort of the Parties and their counsel 
and therefore shall not be construed against either of the Parties, 
but instead in accordance with its fair meaning. 

 
14.4. Choice of Law and Venue.  This Agreement is governed by 

California law.  Any legal action arising out of this Agreement must 
be brought in the Los Angeles County Superior Court, Central 
Division. 

 
14.5. Arbitration.  Before filing any claims in Superior Court, the Parties 

agree to submit all claims or disputes arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement to non-binding arbitration, to be decided according to the 
rules of the American Arbitration Association.  The Parties shall 
mutually select and equally share in the cost of the services of an 
arbitrator.  In the event that the dispute is not resolved following 

29



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 16 

arbitration, it shall be brought in the Los Angeles County Superior 
Court, Central Division. 
 

14.6. Attorneys’ Fees.  In the event of any legal proceeding arising from 
or related in any way to a breach of or an enforcement or 
interpretation of this Agreement, the prevailing Party will be entitled 
to recover reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs from the other 
Party. 
 

14.7. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in duplicate 
originals, one for each Party, each of which duplicate original shall 
be deemed to be an original, but all of which shall constitute one and 
the same agreement. 

 
14.8. Director of Public Works Authority.  The Director of Public Works 

is delegated the authority to take all actions on behalf of the City in 
connection with any approvals, consents, or actions required of or 
by the City under this Agreement and to approve and execute minor 
amendments to the terms of this Agreement. Minor amendments 
shall be defined as those which would not effectuate an increased 
cost to the City or impact City revenue.  

 
14.9. Force Majeure.  If the performance of any act required of any Party 

is directly prevented or delayed by reason of strikes, lockouts, labor 
disputes, unusual governmental delays, acts of God, fire, floods, 
epidemics, freight embargoes, or other causes beyond the 
reasonable control of the Party required to perform an act, that Party 
shall be excused from performing that act for a period of time equal 
to the period of time of the prevention or delay; provided that  the 
Party claiming the has notified the other Party in writing of that fact 
within 10 calendar days after the beginning of any such delay. 

 
14.10. Severability.  The unenforceability, invalidity, or illegality of any 

provision of this Agreement shall not render any other provision of 
this Agreement unenforceable, invalid, or illegal to the extent 
practicable or provided by law.   

   
 

Signatures on Following Page 

30



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 17 

The parties are executing this Agreement on the day and year stated above. 
 
 
SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER 
AGENCY SCVWA 

 CITY OF SANTA CLARITA 

   
   
By:  By:  
 General Manager   City Manager 

 
 
ATTEST  ATTEST 
   
   
By:  By:  
    City Clerk 

  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  APPROVED AS TO FORM 
   
   
By:  By:  
    City Attorney 

  

31



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

32



LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 18 

EXHIBIT A 
Ordinance Providing for the Establishment and Enforcement of Regulations Pursuant to 

the Water Recycling Requirements for Recycled Water Users  

33



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

34



Ch a p t e r  15.18 
WATER RECYCLING AT THE WATER FACTORY 

Sections: 
15.18.010    Tit le . 
15.18.020    Pu rpose . 
15.18.030    Proh ib it ion  on  Sa le , Dis t r ibu t ion , o r  Use  w it h ou t  Wh o le sa le -Re cycle d  Wa t e r  

Pu rch a se  Agre e m e n t . 
15.18.040    Au t h o r it y. 
15.18.050    Vio la t ion —Pe n a lt y. 

15.18.010 Tit le . 

The  ord inance  cod ified in  th is chap te r sha ll be  known as the  “City of San ta  Clarita  recycled  
wate r ord inance” and m ay be  cited  as such . (Ord . 19 -3  § 2, 7/9/19)

15.18.020 Pu rp ose . 

The  purpose  of th is chapte r is to  p rovide  for the  estab lishm ent and  enforcem ent of regu la tions 
perta in ing to  the  sa le  and  use  of recycled  wate r produced  a t the  Water Factory. (Ord . 19 -3  § 3,
7/9/19) 

15.18.030 Proh ib it ion  on  Sa le , Dis t r ib u t ion , o r  Use  w it h ou t
Wh ole sa le -Re cycle d  Wa t e r  Pu rch a se  Agre e m e n t . 

A. No person  m ay purchase , se ll, d istribu te  or use  (e ither d irectly or th rough  an  in te rm edia te
party) recycled wate r p roduced a t the  Water Factory un less such  sa le , d istribu tion, or use  is
governed  by, in  accord  with , or pursuan t to  the  requ irem ents of a  wholesale -recycled  wate r
purchase  agreem ent with  the  City. As used  in  th is chap te r, the  term  “person” sha ll include
na tura l persons, corporations, any city, county, d istrict, jo in t powers au thority, the  sta te , and
the  United Sta tes, to the  exten t au thorized by federa l law.

B. Wholesa le -recycled wate r purchase  agreem ents sha ll govern  resa le  and  use of recycled
water p roduced  a t the  Water Factory, and  incorpora te  the  te rm s and  conditions of a ll
app licab le  waste  d ischarge  requ irem ents, wa ter reclam ation  requ irem ents, and  other
app licab le  orders of the  Ca liforn ia  Sta te  Water Resources Control Board, and  the Ca liforn ia
Regiona l Water Quality Control Board , Los Angeles Region ; and  app licab le  requ irem ents of
sta te  and  federa l law, includ ing bu t not lim ited to  the  Federa l Clean  Water Act
(33 U.S.C. 1251 through 1388); the  Federa l Safe  Drinking Water Act (42 U.S.C. 300f through 300j-
27); the  Ca liforn ia  Porte r-Cologne  Water Quality Control Act (Ca liforn ia  Water

Exhibit A

35

https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.010
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.020
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.030
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/CA/SantaClarita/#!/SantaClarita15/SantaClarita1518.html#15.18.050
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/33
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/33/1251
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/33/1388
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/300
http://www.law.cornell.edu/uscode/text/42/300


Code  13000 th rough  16104), and  Title  22, Division 4, Chapte r 3 of the  Ca liforn ia  Code  of 
Regula tions. 

C. Prior to  in itia ting de livery of any recycled  wate r from  the Water Factory, the  City Engineer
sha ll en te r in to  a  wholesa le -recycled  wate r purchase  agreem ent with  SCV Water or any other
person who is au thorized  by sta te  law to  d istribute  recycled  wate r with in  the  City’s ju risd iction .
(Ord . 19 -3  § 4, 7/9/19)

15.18.040 Au t h o r it y. 

The  City Engineer is granted  au thority to  estab lish  ru les and  regu la tions govern ing the  use  of 
recycled  wate r as necessary, which  sha ll be  in  accordance  with  existing law. The  City Engineer 
sha ll adm in iste r, im plem ent, and  enforce  the  p rovisions of th is chap te r. Any powers gran ted  to  
or du ties im posed upon  the  City Engineer m ay be de lega ted  to  persons acting in  the  beneficia l 
in te rest of, or in  the  em ploy of, the  City. (Ord . 19 -3  § 5, 7/9/19) 

15.18.050 Vio la t ion —Pe n a lt y. 

Upon  a  written de te rm ina tion  of the  City Engineer tha t a  viola tion  of th is chap te r has occurred , 
such  action  sha ll constitu te  a  basis for: 

A. Term ina tion  of any user agreem ent;

B. Im m edia te  cessa tion of recycled  wate r de livery;

C. The City Engineer sha ll adopt notice  and  hearing procedures to  im plem ent th is section ,
which  sha ll be  consisten t with  the  righ ts a fforded  by due  p rocess. (Ord . 19 -3  § 6, 7/9/19)

36

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WAT&sectionNum=13000
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=WAT&sectionNum=16104


LA #4848-4796-3926 v1 19 

EXHIBIT B 
On-Site SCVWA Water Factory Facilities 

37



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

38



RW

RW

RW

S
S

S
S

S
F

M
S

F
M

S
F

M

8
'
'
D

8
'
'
D

8
'
'
D

R
W

R
W

R
W

R
W

R
W

RW

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

S
S

WAS WAS

6'

17520 Newhope Street, Suite 200  |  Fountain Valley, CA 92708

P: (714) 481-7300  |  www.pacewater.com

Advanced Water Engineering
959 South Coast Drive, Suite 315

Costa Mesa, CA 92626

tel:  714.352.7750  fax:  714.352.7765

100% ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION

T
R

A
S

H
 
E

N
C

L
O

S
U

R
E

:
 
 
 
 
B

L
D

1
6

-
0

2
2

0
8

O
F

F
I
C

E
:

S
U

P
E

R
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

:
 
 
 
 
B

L
D

1
6

-
0

2
1

3
0

B
U

I
L
D

I
N

G
 
P

E
R

M
I
T

 
N

O
.

B
L

D
1

6
-
0

2
2

0
7

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y

H
U

M
P

H
R

E
Y

S

1

8

4

5

2

3
6

9
8

A

C
5

.
1

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
M

7
.
0

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
M

6
.
0

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
A

E
R

O
M

O
D

 
S

H
O

P
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
.

I
N

F
L
U

E
N

T
 
P

U
M

P
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
M

2
.
0

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
M

8
.
0

7

1
0

5
0

2
0

1
0

C
3
.
0

7
 
O

F
 
1

3

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
8
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
1
5
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

 
3
5
 
P

V
C

 
I
N

F
L
U

E
N

T
 
S

E
W

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
0
.

1 2 3 4 5

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
8
1
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
1
2
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

 
3
5
 
P

V
C

 
S

E
W

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
0
.

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
6
9
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
6
"
 
P

V
C

 
C

9
0
0
 
I
N

F
L
U

E
N

T
 
F

O
R

C
E

 
M

A
I
N

 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
1
.

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
6
1
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
8
"
 
P

V
C

 
C

9
0
0
 
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

D
 
W

A
T

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
2
.

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
5
3
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
6
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

 
3
5
 
P

V
C

 
W

A
S

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
3
.

6
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
7
4
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
8
"
 
P

V
C

 
S

C
H

 
8
0
 
D

R
A

I
N

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
1

7
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
2
1
8
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
2
"
 
P

V
C

 
S

C
H

 
8
0
 
R

E
C

L
A

I
M

E
D

 
W

A
T

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
.

8
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
M

A
N

H
O

L
E

 
S

E
E

9
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
M

E
T

E
R

I
N

G
 
M

A
N

H
O

L
E

 
P

E
R

 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 
S

H
O

P
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

1
0

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
1
1
3
 
±
 
L
.
F

.
 
3
"
 
P

V
C

 
W

A
S

T
E

.
 
S

L
O

P
E

 
2
%

 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

.

1
1

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
2
"
 
S

C
H

 
8
0
 
P

V
C

 
B

U
R

I
E

D
 
B

A
L
L
 
V

A
L
V

E
 
I
N

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
V

A
L
V

E
 
B

O
X

.
 
F

O
R

C
O

N
N

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
T

O
 
S

I
T

E
 
I
R

R
I
G

A
T

I
O

N
,
 
C

O
O

R
D

I
N

A
T

E
 
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

I
O

N
 
W

I
T

H
 
L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N
.

1
2

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
8
"
 
B

U
R

I
E

D
 
G

A
T

E
 
V

A
L
V

E
 
P

E
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
:

B

C
5

.
0

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

T
H

R
U

S
T

 
B

L
O

C
K

S
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
E

D
 
P

E
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
:

2
.

D
.
I
.
 
P

I
P

E
 
A

N
D

 
F

I
T

T
I
N

G
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
C

L
A

S
S

 
3
5
0
 
U

N
O

.

3
.

D
.
I
.
 
P

I
P

E
 
A

N
D

 
F

I
T

T
I
N

G
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
P

O
L
Y

E
T

H
Y

L
E

N
E

W
R

A
P

P
E

D
 
F

O
R

 
A

L
L
 
U

N
D

E
R

G
R

O
U

N
D

 
I
N

S
T

A
L
L
A

T
I
O

N
S

.

4
.

B
U

R
R

I
E

D
 
D

.
I
.
P

.
 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
M

.
J
.
,
 
E

X
P

O
S

E
D

 
D

.
I
.
P

.
 
S

H
A

L
L

B
E

 
F

L
A

N
G

E
D

,
 
A

S
 
N

O
T

E
D

.

5
.

T
R

E
N

C
H

 
A

N
D

 
B

U
R

I
A

L
 
D

E
P

T
H

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
P

E
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
:

6
.

A
L
L
 
B

U
R

I
E

D
 
P

I
P

E
L
I
N

E
S

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
B

E
 
H

Y
D

R
O

S
T

A
T

I
C

A
L
L
Y

T
E

S
T

E
D

 
A

N
D

 
D

I
S

I
N

F
E

C
T

E
D

 
P

E
R

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N
S

.

7
.

C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 
S

H
A

L
L
 
F

I
E

L
D

 
V

E
R

I
F

Y
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G

C
O

N
D

I
T

I
O

N
S

 
P

R
I
O

R
 
T

O
 
S

T
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
.

8
.

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
U

T
I
L
I
T

I
E

S
 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
I
S

 
A

P
P

R
O

X
I
M

A
T

E

B
A

S
E

D
 
O

N
 
R

E
C

O
R

D
 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

.
 
C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
O

R
 
S

H
A

L
L

F
I
E

L
D

 
V

E
R

I
F

Y
 
L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
 
O

F
 
E

X
I
S

T
I
N

G
 
U

T
I
L
I
T

I
E

S
.

A

C
5

.
0

C

C
5

.
0

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

T
I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
E

E
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
M

1
.
0

1
1

1
0

P
.
O

.
C

.
 
F

O
R

 
R

W

D
I
S

T
R

I
B

U
T

I
O

N
 
S

Y
S

T
E

M

S
E

E
 
A

R
C

H
.

P
L
A

N
S

 
F

O
R

C
O

N
T

I
N

U
A

T
I
O

N

S
A

N
I
T

A
R

Y
 
S

E
W

E
R

R
E

C
Y

C
L
E

D
 
W

A
T

E
R

R
W

S
F

M

S
E

W
E

R
 
F

O
R

C
E

 
M

A
I
N

P
O

T
A

B
L
E

 
W

A
T

E
R

D
R

A
I
N

W
A

S

D

W
A

S

P
W

S
S

YARD PIPING PLAN

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 
L
I
N

E

S
D

S
T

O
R

M
 
D

R
A

I
N

 
(
B

Y
 
O

T
H

E
R

S
)

S
E

W
E

R
 
(
B

Y
 
O

T
H

E
R

S
)

S

1
3

1
2

S
U

B
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 
S

T
O

R
M

 
W

A
T

E
R

 
I
N

F
I
L
T

R
A

T
I
O

N
 
U

N
I
T

S

(
B

Y
 
O

T
H

E
R

S
)

1
3

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
H

O
S

E
B

I
B

 
A

N
D

 
H

O
S

E
 
R

A
C

K
 
P

E
R

 
D

E
T

A
I
L
:

G

C
5

.
0

1
3

1
4

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
±
6
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
1
2
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

3
5
 
P

V
C

 
S

E
W

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
0
.

1
4

1
5

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
±
8
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
1
2
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

3
5
 
P

V
C

 
S

E
W

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
0
.

1
5

1
6

I
N

S
T

A
L
L
 
±
8
 
L
.
F

.
 
O

F
 
1
2
"
 
A

S
T

M
 
D

3
0
3
4
 
S

D
R

3
5
 
P

V
C

 
S

E
W

E
R

 
P

I
P

E
 
P

E
R

 
S

H
E

E
T

 
C

4
.
0
.

1
6

3

3

3

3

39

AutoCAD SHX Text
SD

AutoCAD SHX Text
LF

AutoCAD SHX Text
LF

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NO.        A897-E

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEETS

AutoCAD SHX Text
VISTA CANYON

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER FACTORY

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/31/18

AutoCAD SHX Text
--

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT ENGINEER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PREPARED BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGNED

AutoCAD SHX Text
JACOB PETERSON

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.C.E. NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
C79146

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCTOBER 2017

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANNER NOR BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS STAMPED "ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION".

AutoCAD SHX Text
THESE DRAWINGS ARE THE PROPERTY OF P.A.C.E. AND SHALL NOT BE REPRODUCED IN ANY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
w:\A897\engineering\A897-20\sheets\A897-20-C30.dwg - Tab: C30 - by ogomez on 10/04/17 at 2:18:55 PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dimscale = 10; LTscale = 1; PSltscale = 1; ACAD Ver. = 21.0s (LMS Tech); Visretain = 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AS NOTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
C.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Exp. 03-31-18

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. C79146

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
AL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONFORMED FOR CITY 	COMMENTS 

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/2/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
JP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10/2/17

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION NOTES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LINETYPE LEGEND

bpayne
Text Box
EXHIBIT B ONSITE SCVWA FACILITIES AT FACTORY 

bpayne
Text Box
ONSITE FACILITIES BY SCVWA- Antenna- SCADA Radio- PLC

bpayne
Arrow

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text
Office/ControlRoom

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text
Electrical 

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text
W

bpayne
Typewritten Text

bpayne
Typewritten Text
City owns/operates the gate valve at point of connectionand the effluent pumps and flow meter within the Water Factory.

bpayne
Rectangle



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

40



A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

fo
r 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 S
al

e 
of

 
Re

cy
cl

ed
 W

at
er

Ja
nu

ar
y 

2,
 2

02
4

Co
ur

tn
ey

 M
ae

l -
 C

hi
ef

 E
ng

in
ee

r

41



42



43



A
gr

ee
m

en
t

•T
he

 C
it

y 
is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 t

he
 t

re
at

m
en

t 
pl

an
t

in
cl

ud
in

g 
m

ee
ti

ng
 t

he
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

fo
r

Re
cy

cl
ed

 W
at

er
.

•S
CV

 W
at

er
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

 f
or

 a
ll 

as
pe

ct
s 

of
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

nd
di

st
ri

bu
ti

on
 o

f 
th

e 
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
sa

le
 o

f
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 t
o 

ou
r 

cu
st

om
er

s.
•S

CV
 W

at
er

 w
ill

 p
ay

 t
he

 C
it

y 
in

it
ia

lly
 $

17
5.

35
 /

 A
F 

of
 R

ec
yc

le
d

W
at

er
 w

hi
ch

 is
 e

qu
iv

al
en

t 
to

 t
he

 p
ri

ce
 c

ha
rg

ed
 t

o 
SC

V 
W

at
er

fr
om

 S
an

ta
 C

la
ri

ta
 V

al
le

y 
Sa

ni
ta

ti
on

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
fo

r 
Re

cy
cl

ed
w

at
er

.

44



Re
co

m
m

en
da

ti
on

•T
ha

t t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s 
au

th
or

iz
e 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

M
an

ag
er

 to
 e

xe
cu

te
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
an

d 
Sa

le
of

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 b
et

w
ee

n 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

Ag
en

cy
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 C

la
rit

a.

45



[This page intentionally left blank.] 

46



 
 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY 
 
On November 13, 2017, the former Castaic Lake Water Agency (now Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency (SCV Water)) executed the Deposit and Funding Agreement for the Tapia Ranch 
- Vesting Tentative Tract Map 72126 (Annexation Property) which in part made available 498 
AF of the Buena Vista Rosedale-Rio Bravo (BVRRB) water for the proposed annexation and 
provided the annexing party, DACA-Castaic, LLC (DACA) five years to complete its 
entitlements. The Agreement also required DACA to pay certain past acquisition and carrying 
costs associated with the BVRRB water. On May 21, 2019, the First Amendment to the Deposit 
and Funding Agreement was executed and in part provided for the deferral of $3,775,117 of 
past acquisition and carrying costs of the BVRRB water supply through December 31, 2021. 
Copies of the Deposit and Funding Agreement (Attachment A) as well as the First Amendment 
(Attachment B) are attached to this memorandum. On December 28, 2022, the Second 
Amendment to the Deposit and Funding Agreement (Attachment C) was executed, which in part 
provided for a deferral of $2,691,987 of past acquisition and carrying costs of the BVRRB water 
supply through December 31, 2023, after a payment of $1,000,000 was received from DACA in 
January 2022. DACA is current with all payments due under the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement, however, delays in acquiring entitlements have resulted in a third request to extend 
the term of the Deposit and Funding agreement and continued deferral of payment for past 
BVRRB acquisition and carrying costs through December 31, 2024. Section 6 of the Deposit 
and Funding Agreement provides for such an extension upon mutual agreement by DACA and 
SCV Water. To date, DACA has paid SCV Water $4,438,476. Staff requests the Board of 
Directors review this request and and authorize the General Manager to execute the 3rd 
Amendment to the Deposit and Funding Agreement.   
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 
 
In October 2006, CLWA certified the Final EIR Water Acquisition from the Buena Vista Water 
Storage District and the Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District Water Banking and 
Recovery Program. The EIR estimated that 4,375 acre-feet per year (AFY) of the 11,000 AFY 
BVRRB water would be available to annexations with an estimated 750 AFY going to the Tapia  
Ranch project. In 2007, potential annexing parties were informed that because of more 
restrictive Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta regulatory measures, the Agency would not make 
BVRRB water available at that time.  
 

DATE: January 2, 2024 

TO: Board of Directors  
 

FROM: Ali Elhassan 
Director of Water Resources 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
Approve the Third Amendment to the Deposit and Funding Agreement Between 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency and DACA-Castaic, LLC for Tapia Ranch 

47

ajacobs
Item 6.1



 
 

Subsequent analyses included revised population and development information consistent with 
the One-Valley-One-Vision General Plan were incorporated into the 2015 UWMP allowing for a 
reexamination of the availability of BVRRB water to meet annexation requirements. Consistent 
with the Agency’s Annexation Policy, staff had undertaken an analysis to determine the demand 
for the proposed Annexation Property. That determination was made considering the 
landowner’s plan to develop the property. The staff’s determination of the demand is 489 AFY, 
which is less than the original estimate of 750 AFY. The 489 AFY is also less than the 575 AFY 
that was included in the 2015 UWMP and consistent with the demands included in the 2020 
UWMP. The following table compares the demand values included in the 2015 UWMP and 
2020 UWMP to those currently estimated: 
 

Annexing Development 
Potentially Using BVRRB 

Supplies 
2015 UWMP 

Estimate (AFY) 
2020 UWMP 

Estimate (AFY) 
Current 

Estimate (AFY) 

Legacy 2,500 2,500 2,500 
Tesoro    500    389 389 
Tapia    575 489 489 
Total 3,575 3,378 3,378 

 
The 2015 UWMP demand estimates incorporated demands for the proposed Legacy, Tesoro, 
and Tapia annexations. The conclusion reached in the 2015 UWMP was that assuming the 
water supply portfolio in the UWMP, the water supplies exceeded demands (including potential 
demands for annexing areas) at buildout. These results are summarized in the table below: 
 

Supply Source Average/ 
Normal 

Single 
Dry-Year 

4-Year 
Drought 

3-Year 
Drought 

Existing Groundwater 31,545 40,215 36,175 35,875 
Existing Recycled 450 450 450 450 
Existing Imported 70,707 22,087 45,177 33,167 
Bank/Exchanges  7,950 7,950 7,950 
Future Groundwater 10,230 20,335 21,875 21,325 
Future Recycled 9,604 9,604 9,604 9,604 
Future Bank/Exchanges  22,000 22,000 22,000 
Total Supply 122,536 122,641 143,231 130,371 
Demand w/Active Conservation 93,900 103,300 103,300 103,300 
Surplus 28,636 19,342 39,931 27,071 

 
As supplies substantially exceeded demands for the scenarios in the 2015 UWMP, staff 
concluded that sufficient BVRRB supplies would exist for the proposed Tapia Ranch Project. 
 
On June 13, 2018, the Water Resources and Watershed Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation to approve a resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute an 
assignment of BVRRB water supply to the proposed Tapia Annexation. On July 17, 2018, the 
Board concurred and authorized, through Resolution No. SCV-47, the General Manager to 
execute a deposit and funding agreement (Attachment D). In response to DACA’s January 16, 
2019 letter (Attachment E), the Board subsequently authorized the First Amendment to the 
Deposit and Funding Agreement that provided for deferral of past BVRRB acquisition and 
carrying costs through December 31, 2021, the time in which DACA projected the CEQA 
documentation for the project would be completed. 
 

48



 
 

Since that time, SCV Water adopted its 2020 UWMP. The 2020 UWMP incorporated the 
demands for the proposed annexation areas including Legacy, Tesoro, and Tapia 
Developments. The conclusion reached in the 2020 UWMP was that the water supplies also 
exceeded demands (including potential demands for the three annexing areas) at buildout. 
These results are summarized in the table below. 
 

Supply Source Average/ 
Normal 

Single 
Dry-Year 

5-Year 
Drought 

Existing Groundwater 14,410 22,220 23,200 
Existing Recycled 450 450 450 
Existing Imported 62,107 22,047 41,347 
Bank/Exchanges  19,950 16,809 
Future & Recovered Groundwater 26,280 36,420 28,520 
Future Recycled 8,511 8,511 8,389 
Future Bank/Exchanges  10,000 10,000 
Total Supply 111,758 119,598 128,715 
Demand w/Active Conservation 101,000 107,100 102,870 
Surplus 10,758 12,498 25,845 

 
On October 27, 2021, SCV Water received a second request (Attachment F) to extend the 
timeline of the Deposit and Funding Agreement, stating DACA would be unable to certify their 
EIR in the time allotted in the First Amendment. The Board authorized the Second Amendment 
to the Deposit and Funding agreement with DACA, providing the deferral of a portion of the past 
BVRRB acquisition and carrying costs through December 31, 2023, after a $1,000,000 paydown 
of the past carrying costs was received. DACA has made timely payments of the past carrying 
cost paydown, ongoing BVRRB annual carrying costs, interest payments on past BVRRB 
acquisition and carrying costs and option payments, all as provided under the second amended 
Deposit and Funding Agreement. As indicated above DACA has paid approximately $4,438,476 
to date. 
 
On November 20, 2023, staff received a letter (Attachment G) from DACA requesting that SCV 
Water consider amending the Deposit and Funding Agreement for a third time to defer the 
payment of the past BVRRB acquisition and carrying costs through December 31, 2024, less a 
$1,000,000 paydown of these costs, and also to extend the date to obtain CEQA entitlements 
under paragraph 6 of the Deposit and Funding agreement to December 31, 2025, citing the 
complexity of the EIR requiring the replacement of the primary EIR consultant, termination of a 
second CEQA consultant, the expansion of subject areas studied as a result of recent case law 
and the increase of review times required by Los Angeles County Planning Department.  
 
Options for Committee Consideration 
 
Option 1 – Take No Action. Should the Board decline to amend the agreement DACA may or 
may not be able to meet its financial obligation to pay the $2,691,987 in past BVRRB acquisition 
and carrying costs or have their CEQA certifications completed. Assuming it does not make this 
payment, or complete the project’s CEQA documentation, DACA would be in default and the 
Agency may terminate the agreement.  
 
Option 2 – Amend the Deposit and Funding Agreement as requested by DACA. A third 
amendment (Attachment H) would be prepared that continues the agreement through 
December 31, 2025. Under such an amendment, DACA would continue the payment of ongoing 

49



 
 

BVRRB carrying costs, interest on the past BVRRB acquisition and carrying costs and an option 
payment. Further, DACA would pay down the past acquisition and carrying cost in the amount 
of $1,000,000 by January 31, 2023, and the balance of these costs ($1,691,987) by December 
31, 2024. A proposed amended payment schedule is shown on Attachment I. 
 
Option 3 – Amend the Deposit and Funding Agreement with additional or alternate terms to 
satisfy the Water Resources and Watershed Committee and Board of Directors. 
 
On December 13, 2023, the Water Resources and Watershed Committee considered staff’s 
recommendation and selected option 2 for Board consideration and approval.  
 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Finding 
 
The Final EIR for BVRRB water supply was certified by the Agency in 2006. The CEQA 
determination is that the proposed action (potentially amending the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement) has been previously addressed in the certified 2006 Final EIR and findings and that 
no further environmental analysis or documentation is required at this time. However, the 
Agency is only being asked at this time to extend the current Deposit and Funding Agreement 
and carrying cost payment schedule. No approval of the Tapia Project is being requested and, 
as contemplated in the Deposit and Funding Agreement, any future commitment to provide 
water to the Proposed Annexation Lands could only be made following the completion of certain 
conditions, including CEQA review, the issuance of land use entitlements by the County, the 
approval of the annexation by the Los Angeles County LAFCO, and final review of the Proposed 
Annexation Lands and development proposal by the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Board 
of Directors.    
 
STRATEGIC NEXUS 
 
These actions help support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Goal C.1 – Conduct planning to ensure 
long-term water demands are met. 
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
If SCV Water decides to terminate the Deposit and Funding Agreement with DACA, SCV Water 
would begin paying the entire amount of our BVRRB water, increasing costs by approximately 
$500,000 per year. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors 
authorize the General Manager to execute a 3rd Amendment to the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement with DACA-Castaic, LLC through 2024 requiring a $1 million paydown of past 
carrying costs, final payment of all past carrying costs by December 2024, and continued 
payments of interest on unpaid past carrying costs, current carry costs and option payments 
with CEQA certification by end of 2025.    
 
Attachments 
 
 

50

ajacobs
Matt Stone



Attachment A

51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

90



Attachment B

91



92



93



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

94



55396.00001\34570105.1  

SECOND AMENDMENT TO DEPOSIT AND FUNDING AGREEMENT 

This Second Amendment to Deposit and Funding Agreement (“Second Amendment”), is 
entered into as of December __, 2021 by and between Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, a 
Special Act Agency and successor in interest to the Castaic Lake Water Agency (“SCV Water”) 
and DACA Castaic, LLC (“Landowner”).  SCV Water and Landowner are each a “Party” and may 
be referred to collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS: 

A. SCV Water and Landowner entered into that certain Deposit and Funding Agreement dated
November 14, 2017 (“Agreement”).

B. On July 17, 2018, the SCV Water Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. SCV-47,
determining that 489 acre feet of its Buena Vista Rosedale Rio Vista Water Supply (“Additional
Water Supply”) is potentially available for the Tapia Ranch Annexation Lands subject to certain
conditions.

C. Pursuant to Section 3(C) of the Agreement, Landowner was required to pay SCV Water
the administrative and operating costs arising from the Acquisition of the Additional Water Supply
and the past Carrying Costs of the Additional Water Supply by January 17, 2018.

D. At Landowner’s request, the Parties executed a First Amendment to Deposit and Funding
Agreement dated May 21, 2019 that extended that deadline to December 31, 2021 and provided
for a payment plan (“Payment Schedule”) for Landowner to meet its financial obligations (“First
Amendment.”)

E. Landowner has requested another extension of time to meet its financial obligations under
the Agreement.

F. SCV Water is willing to amend the Agreement to provide for an amended Payment
Schedule that sets forth the required payments and deadlines and obligations for such payments.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. Section 3(C)(3) is amended to read as follows:

“3. PAYMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING COSTS AND
CARRYING COSTS.  The administrative and operating costs arising from the 
acquisition of the Additional Water Supply and the Carrying Costs of the 
Additional Water Supply required to be paid by Sections 3(C)(1) and (2) above, 
including interest, shall be paid by Landowner to SCV Water according to the 
payment schedule and as described in the attached Exhibit E. Consistent with 
Section 7 of this Agreement, failure to make payments by the due dates in Exhibit 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5683B0A4-89EA-4A4D-B15A-A660C86778AB

Attachment C

95



General Manager 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 5683B0A4-89EA-4A4D-B15A-A660C86778AB

1/12/2022

96



Es
tim

at
ed

 
Pa

ym
en

t 
(1
/3
1/
20

22
) (
8)

Pa
rt
ia
l P

ay
m
en

t o
f 

Ac
qu

is
iti
on

 a
nd

 P
as
t 

Ca
rr
yi
ng

 C
os
ts
 

(1
2/
31

/2
2)
 (6

)

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ay
m
en

t 
(1
/3
1/
20

23
) (
8)

Pa
ym

en
t D

ue
 

(1
2/
31

/2
02

3)

An
nu

al
 In

te
re
st
 o
n 
Ac

qu
isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
1)

$1
56

,6
67

$1
15

,1
67

An
nu

al
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
2)
(9
)

$4
55

,7
92

$4
71

,9
00

O
pt
io
n 
Pa

ym
en

t (
3)

$1
25

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
 (4

)
$3

,7
75

,1
17

Cr
ed

it 
fo
r W

at
er
 S
al
es
 in

 2
01

8‐
20

20
 (5

)
‐$
83

,1
30

Pa
rt
ia
l P
ay
m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s

$1
,0
00

,0
00

‐$
1,
00

0,
00

0
To

ta
l P
ay
m
en

t (
7)

$7
37

,4
59

$1
,0
00

,0
00

$7
37

,0
67

$2
,6
91

,9
87

N
ot
es
:

(9
) O

ng
oi
ng

 a
nn

ua
l c
ar
ry
in
g 
co
st
s a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 
pa

id
 u
nd

er
 th

e 
fu
tu
re
 A
nn

ex
at
io
n 
Ag

re
em

en
t

RE
VI
SE
D
 T
AP

IA
 R
AN

CH
 P
AY

M
EN

T 
SC

H
ED

U
LE
 ‐ 
(A
M
EN

D
ED

 E
XH

IB
IT
 E
)

(1
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 n
um

be
rs
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 a
ss
um

e 
SC

V 
W
at
er
 in

te
re
st
 ra

te
s r
em

ai
n 
at
 4
.1
5%

. T
he

 a
ct
ua

l r
eq

ui
re
d 
pa

ym
en

ts
 m

ay
 b
e 

ad
ju
st
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill
 b
e 
ba

se
d 
on

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 in

te
re
st
 ra

te
s.

(2
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 A
nn

ua
l C

ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s n

um
be

rs
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 re

qu
ire

d 
pa

ym
en

ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
ad

ju
st
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct
 th

e 
ac
tu
al
 

An
nu

al
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

(3
) T

he
 O
pt
io
n 
Pa

ym
en

ts
 a
re
 h
ar
d 
nu

m
be

rs
 a
nd

 m
us
t b

e 
pa

id
 b
y 
th
e 
du

e 
da

te
s.

(4
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 lu
m
p 
su
m
 p
ay
m
en

t i
n 
th
is 
ro
w
 is
 a
n 
es
tim

at
e 
an

d 
th
e 
fin

al
 re

qu
ire

d 
pa

ym
en

t m
ay
 b
e 
ad

ju
st
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill
 b
e 
ba

se
d 
on

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 

re
m
ai
ni
ng

 A
cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

(5
) R

ev
en

ue
 fo

r 2
01

8 
w
at
er
 sa

le
s w

ill
 b
e 
cr
ed

ite
d 
up

on
 fi
na

l p
ay
m
en

t o
n 
12

/3
1/
20

23
 . 
N
o 
w
at
er
 sa

le
s a

re
 a
ss
um

ed
 in

 2
02

1 
an

d 
20

22
. 

(6
) P

ar
tia

l p
ay
m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

(7
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 n
um

be
r i
n 
th
is 
ro
w
 w
ill
 b
e 
ad

ju
st
ed

 b
as
ed

 o
n 
ac
tu
al
 n
um

be
rs
 c
on

sis
te
nt
 w
ith

 th
e 
ab

ov
e 
co
m
m
en

ts
.

(8
) P

ay
m
en

ts
 o
f i
nt
er
es
t, 
an

nu
al
 c
ar
ry
in
g 
co
st
s,
 p
ar
tia

l P
as
t C

ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s a

nd
 O
pt
io
ns
 a
re
 n
ot
 re

fu
nd

ab
le
.

D
oc

uS
ig

n 
E

nv
el

op
e 

ID
: 5

68
3B

0A
4-

89
E

A
-4

A
4D

-B
15

A
-A

66
0C

86
77

8A
B

97



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

98



Attachment D

99



100



January 16, 2019 

Board of Directors 
Santa Clarity Valley Water Agency 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 
Santa Clarita, CA 31350 

Att: SCV Water Board Members 
Re: Tapia Ranch Project 

Dear Board Members: 

Having worked together for many years, the Tapia Ranch Project appreciates the cooperation and 
partnership with the SCV Water Agency (SCV Water).  The history of working together exceeds the six (6) 
years DACA-Castaic LLC has owned the property, and goes all the way back to Castaic Lake Water Agency’s 
acquisition of Buena Vista Rosedale-Rio Bravo (BV-RRB) water in 2007 that was allocated to the Tapia 
Ranch Project. More recently SCV Water and Tapia Ranch have executed a Deposit and Funding 
Agreement in 2017 that resulted in extensive analysis to determine that the Tapia Ranch Project will 
require 489 acre feet of water annually.  Following the execution of the Deposit and Funding Agreement, 
SCV Water determined in 2018 that its supplies are adequate to proceed with allocating the water to Tapia 
Ranch. 

As the process moves forward, Tapia Ranch has been very pleased that SCV Water is willing to be flexible 
with the payment terms of the water allocated to the project.  It is our understanding that SCV Water will 
accept a payment structure that includes a payment in January 2019 for certain past and present carrying 
costs, and a full reimbursement of the acquisition and carrying costs in December 2019.  This is a very 
generous offer that we would gladly accept if the Tapia Ranch Project was an approved project. 
Unfortunately, the approval process through the County of Los Angeles is very slow and difficult, and our 
Tapia Ranch Project is not approved and remains a very high entitlement risk.   

The reality is that the Tapia Ranch Project could very well be denied or significantly reduced during the 
County approval process.  Since the Tapia Ranch Project application was accepted by the County in 2012, 
the property has been downzoned through One Valley One Vision (OVOV) to be rural 5 and 10 acre lots 
that effectively make the property undevelopable.  The only viable development of the Tapia Ranch 
project is through the grandfathered application filed by DACA-Castaic LLC in 2012. 

As small developers without an endless supply of capital, we are forced to finance large capital outlays 
such as the water purchase.  It is not possible to finance the water acquisition under current market 
conditions and the terms of the Water Purchase Agreement.  The provision allowing SCV Water ten years 
to return the purchase price if our project is not entitled or reduced in size precludes any financing source 
from advancing the capital.  We certainly agree that carrying costs should be paid by any developer that 
expects to have the water reserved, but we request your understanding of the entitlement risks.  Help us 
get you paid.  Simply allowing the water costs to be paid after the project is approved but before the 
project is formally annexed into the District will allow us to get the purchased price funded.  It is our 
expectation that the Tapia Ranch Project will be approved within the next 24 months. 

Attachment E

101



Thus we propose the following terms for paying for the 489 AFY of BV-RRB water listed below.  Many of 
the costs are based on information and an understanding of the costs provided by SCV Water staff.  If they 
are not correct, we agree to minor adjustments.  Please note that we have added additional money for i) 
an Option Payment and, ii) True-up Adjustment that is in the BV-RRB Water Acquisition Agreement.  

1) Past Acquisition and Carrying Costs due March 31, 2019
 July-December 2018 Interest Costs  $   78,334 
 Jan-December 2019 Interest Costs  $ 156,667 
 2019 Carry Costs  $ 419,277 
 2018 Water Sales Credit ($   83,352) 
 Option Payment  $   25,000 
 True-up Adjustment per BV-RRB Agreement  $   25,000 (estimate) 

Total:  $ 620,956 

2) Carrying Costs due January 31, 2020
 Jan-December 2020 Interest Costs  $ 160,000 (estimate) 
 2020 Carrying Costs  $ 425,000 (estimate) 
 2019 Water Sales Credit ($   80,000) (estimate) 
 Option Payment  $   50,000 
 True-up Adjustment per BV-RRB Agreement  $   25,000 (estimate) 

Total:  $ 580,000 

3) Carrying Costs due January 31, 2021
 Jan-December 2020 Interest Costs  $ 165,000 (estimate) 
 2021 Carrying Costs  $ 435,000 (estimate) 
 2020 Water Sales Credit ($   80,000) (estimate) 
 Option Payment  $   75,000 
 True-up Adjustment per BV-RRB Agreement  $   25,000 (estimate) 

Total:  $ 620,000 

4) Past Acquisition and Carrying Costs due December 31, 2021
 Acquisition and Carrying Costs  $ 3,755,117 

Total:  $ 3,755,117 

Once again, we want to emphasize that we are extremely appreciative for SCV Water’s flexibility with the 
proposed terms that have been extended to us.  Unfortunately we just need a bit more time that we are 
willing to pay for through carrying costs, interest, and option payments.  The very significant entitlement 
risks to pay the full acquisition costs prior to approval of the project are just not financeable. 

Thank you and we look forward to hearing your response. 

Howard Justus 
Manager DACA-Castaic LLC 

Cc: Jon Myhre 
 Matt Stone 

102



PO Box 60094 ∙ San Diego, CA 92166 ∙ (619) 405-3585 
www.TapiaRanch.com 

October 27, 2021 

Steve Cole 
Dirk Marks 
Rick Vasilopulos 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Dear Misters Cole, Marks and Vasilopulos: 

DACA-Castaic, LLC herby requests the date to obtain entitlements under paragraph six of the Deposit 
and Funding Agreement be extended from November 14, 2022 to December 31, 2023 and the payment 
plan for the additional water supply be extended two years from December 31, 2021 to the same 
December 31, 2023. 

DACA-Castaic, LLC and Castaic Lake Water Agency (“SCV Water”) entered into the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement (“DFA”) on November 14, 2017.  On April _ , 2019, that agreement was amended by the First 
Amendment to Deposit and Funding Agreement (“Amended DFA”).  The DFA provided in paragraph six 
that DACA-Castaic obtain the certification of its Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) by the fifth 
anniversary of the DFA. The fifth anniversary will occur on November 14, 2022.  The Amended DFA was 
entered into, in part, to provide DACA-Castaic will a payment plan for the Carrying Costs incurred by the 
SCV Water for the Additional Water Supply as defined in the Amended DFA.   

DACA-Castaic will not be able to obtain the certification of its EIR within the allotted five years for a host 
of reasons including, without limitation, the complexity of the EIR requiring the replacement of the 
primary EIR consultant, the expansion of subject areas studied as a result recent case law and the 
increase of review times required by Los Angeles County Planning Department.  We are on schedule to 
have our EIR before the Los Angeles County Planning Commission by December 31, 2022.  Given the 
probability of litigation over the EIR, we are requesting the entitlement period be extended a year 
beyond that date to accommodate the expected litigation.   

Accordingly, we are also requesting the maturity date for the payment plan of the Carrying Costs be 
extended to the same December 31, 2023.  We are not requesting a waiver of the payment of annual 
carrying cost.  As such, we expect to make annual payments on January 31, 2022 and January 31, 2023 
and payment in full on December 31, 2023. 

According to our projections, the earliest homes will be occupied will be July 2025, assuming our project 
is approved and EIR certified in December 2022, final engineering requires a year, grading requires a 
year and road construction, model construction and the first group of inhabitable homes requires six 
months to complete.  

Attachment F

103



www.TapiaRanch.com 

Should you require additional information, please contact me at 619-405-3585. 

Sincerely, 

Howard Justus 

Manager, 
DACA Castaic, LLC 

104



November 20, 2023 

Steve Cole  
Rick Vasilopulos 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road 
Santa Clarita, CA 91350 

Dear Misters Cole and Vasilopulos: 

DACA-Castaic, LLC herby requests the date to obtain entitlements under paragraph six of the Deposit 
and Funding Agreement be extended from December 31, 2023 to December 31, 2025 and the payment 
plan for the additional water supply be extended one year from December 31, 2023 to December 31, 
2024. 

DACA-Castaic, LLC and Castaic Lake Water Agency (“SCV Water”) entered into the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement (“DFA”) on November 14, 2017. On May 21, 2019, that agreement was amended by the First 
Amendment to Deposit and Funding Agreement (“Amended DFA”). On December __, 2021 the Second 
Amendment To Deposit and Funding Agreement was entered into.  The Second Amended DFA provided 
that DACA-Castaic obtain the certification of its Environmental Impact Report (“EIR”) and make a full 
payment of the water supply by December 31, 2023. 

DACA-Castaic will not be able to obtain the certification of its EIR by December 31, 2023 for a host of 
reasons including, without limitation, the complexity of the EIR requiring the replacement of the 
primary EIR consultant, the termination of the second consultant due to an inability to complete the 
Draft EIR in an agreed upon time and price, changes in recent case law (wildfires), increases in areas 
studied (biology) and the increase of review times required by Los Angeles County Planning 
Department. Our revised schedule now has our EIR before the Los Angeles County Planning Commission 
by December 31, 2024. Given the probability of litigation over the EIR, we are requesting the 
entitlement period be extended a year beyond that date to accommodate the expected litigation. 

Accordingly, we are also requesting the maturity date for the payment plan of the Past Carrying Costs 
be extended to the same December 31, 2024. We are not requesting a waiver of the payment of annual 
carrying cost and will make a $1,000,000 paydown of the Past Carrying Costs. As such, we expect to 
make annual payments on January 31, 2024, 2025 and 2026 and payment in full of the Past Carrying 
Costs on December 31, 2024. 

According to our projections, the earliest homes will be occupied will be July 2027, assuming our project 
is approved and EIR certified in December 2024, final engineering requires a year, grading requires a 
year and road construction, model construction and the first group of inhabitable homes requires six 
months to complete. 

PO Box 60094 ∙ San Diego, CA 92166 ∙ (619) 405-3585 
www.TapiaRanch.com 

Attachment G

105



Howard Justus 

Should you require additional information, please contact me at 619-405-3585. 

Sincerely, 

Manager, 
DACA Castaic, LLC 

www.TapiaRanch.com 
106



55396.00001\34570105.1  

THIRD AMENDMENT TO DEPOSIT AND FUNDING AGREEMENT 

This Third Amendment to the Deposit and Funding Agreement (“Third Amendment”), is 
entered into as of January 2, 2024, by and between Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, a California 
Special Act Agency and successor in interest to the Castaic Lake Water Agency (“SCV Water”) 
and DACA Castaic, LLC (“Landowner”).  SCV Water and Landowner are each a “Party” and may 
be referred to collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS: 

A. SCV Water and Landowner entered into that certain Deposit and Funding Agreement dated
November 14, 2017 (“Agreement”).

B. On July 17, 2018, the SCV Water Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. SCV-47,
determining that 489 acre-feet of its Buena Vista Rosedale Rio Vista Water Supply (“Additional
Water Supply”) is potentially available for the Tapia Ranch Annexation Lands subject to certain
conditions.

C. Pursuant to Section 3(C) of the Agreement, Landowner was required to pay SCV Water
the administrative and operating costs arising from the Acquisition of the Additional Water Supply
and the past Carrying Costs of the Additional Water Supply by January 17, 2018.

D. At Landowner’s request, the Parties executed a First Amendment to the Deposit and
Funding Agreement dated May 21, 2019, that extended that deadline to December 31, 2021, and
provided for a payment plan (“Payment Schedule”) for Landowner to meet its financial obligations
(“First Amendment.”).

E. At Landowner’s request, the Parties executed a Second Amendment to the Deposit and
Funding Agreement dated December 28, 2022, that extended that deadline to December 31, 2023,
and provided for a revision of the Payment Schedule for Landowner to meet its financial
obligations (“Second Amendment”).

F. Landowner has requested a third extension of time to meet both its financial obligations
and California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) obligations under the Agreement.

G. Landowner has paid a total of $4,438,476 for the cost associated with the Deposit and
Funding Agreement to date.

H. SCV Water is willing to amend the Agreement to provide for an amended schedule in
which to complete the project’s CEQA certifications and to provide for an amended Payment
Schedule that sets forth the required payments and deadlines and obligations for such payments.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below, and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. Section 3(C)(3) is amended to read as follows:

Attachment H

107



55396.00001\34570105.1  

“3. PAYMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING COSTS AND 
CARRYING COSTS.  The administrative and operating costs arising from the 
acquisition of the Additional Water Supply and the Carrying Costs of the 
Additional Water Supply required to be paid by Sections 3(C)(1) and (2) above, 
including interest, shall be paid by Landowner to SCV Water according to the 
payment schedule and as described in attached Exhibit E. Consistent with Section 
7 of this Agreement, failure to make payments by the due dates in Exhibit E shall 
be an Event of Default, and any and all payments made by Landowner to SCV 
Water shall not be refunded to Landowner.”    

2. The attached amended and updated Payment Schedule replaces the previous Exhibit E
and is the new Exhibit E to the Agreement.

3. Section 3(E)(6) is amended to read as follows:

“6. TERMINATION FOR FAILURE TO TIMELY OBTAIN ENTITLEMENTS.
Landowner and SCV Water are negotiating an Annexation Agreement in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. Landowner and SCV Water 
acknowledge that such Annexation Agreement will be necessary to govern the 
terms of provision of the Additional Water Supply, and until that time, SCV Water 
is obligated hereunder to reserve any such Additional Water Supply for the benefit 
of Landowner. Landowner and SCV Water further acknowledge that the 
Annexation Agreement must be approved by the Los Angeles LAFCO (LAFCO), 
and that Landowner must work with the County as the Lead Agency under CEQA 
for Landowner’s project, to process project entitlements and prepare a CEQA 
document that SCV Water and LAFCO may adopt as CEQA responsible agencies 
(collectively, the “Entitlements”). Landowner and SCV Water hereby agree that, 
should Landowner fail to obtain such Entitlements as are necessary to submit the 
Annexation Agreement for approval by LAFCO by December 31, 2025, this 
Agreement, and the rights and obligations existing hereunder for both Landowner 
and SCV Water, with the exception of Section 3.C.3 and Section 10 and all of the 
obligations and requirements in them, shall terminate as of such date. The deadline 
may be extended by the mutual agreement of both parties and the approval of the 
SCV Water Board of Directors.” 

4. As agreed to in the Second Amendment and restated in this Third Amendment,
Landowner agrees and acknowledges that, in the Event of Default by Landowner, any and all
payments made by Landowner to SCV Water at any time pursuant to this Agreement, including
those that have already been made and those that are made in the future, are not refundable to
Landowner and Landowner further agrees to waive any and all rights to bring any action in law
or equity to recover such payments.

5. Continuing Effect of Agreement.  Except as amended by this Third Amendment, all other
provisions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect.  From and after the date of this
Amendment, whenever the term “Agreement” appears in the Agreement, it shall mean the
Agreement as amended by the First Amendment, Second and Third Amendments.

108



55396.00001\34570105.1  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each Party has executed this Third Amendment on the date set forth 
below, said Third Amendment to be effective on the later of the two, i.e., when both Parties have 
signed this Third Amendment (the “Effective Date”). 

Date: _____________________ SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY 

By: ___________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 

ATTEST: 
________________________________ 
Secretary 

Date:  ___________________ DACA CASTAIC, LLC  

By: 
Title: 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Best, Best, & Krieger, LLP 

By: 
Joseph P. Byrne, Esq.  
Co-General Counsel 

109



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

110



Pa
ym

en
ts
 M

ad
e 

(1
/3
1/
20

23
) (
7)

Pa
yd
ow

n 
of
 A
cq
ui
si
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s 

D
ue

 (1
/3
1/
20

24
)

An
nu

al
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
 

Pa
ym

en
t (
1/
31

/2
02

4)
 

(7
)

Fi
na

l P
ay
m
en

t o
f 

Ac
qu

is
iti
on

 a
nd

 P
as
t 

Ca
rr
yi
ng

 C
os
ts
 D
ue

 
(1
2/
31

/2
02

4)

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ca
rr
yi
ng

 C
os
t 

Pa
ym

en
t D

ue
 

(1
/3
1/
20

25
)

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ca
rr
yi
ng

 C
os
t 

Pa
ym

en
t D

ue
 

(1
/3
1/
20

26
)

An
nu

al
 In
te
re
st
 o
n 
Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
1)

$1
15

,1
67

$1
11

,7
17

$7
0,
21

7
An

nu
al
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
2)
(8
)

$4
87

,3
96

$4
98

,1
88

$4
90

,0
00

$4
90

,0
00

O
pt
io
n 
Pa
ym

en
t (
3)

$1
50

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

Ba
la
nc
e 
of
 A
cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
4)

$2
,6
91

,9
87

Pa
rt
ia
l P
ay
m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s (
5)

$1
,0
00

,0
00

$1
,0
00

,0
00

‐$
1,
00

0,
00

0
To

ta
l P
ay
m
en

t D
ue

 (6
)

$1
,7
52

,5
63

$1
,0
00

,0
00

$8
09

,9
05

$1
,6
91

,9
87

$5
60

,2
17

$4
90

,0
00

(5
) P

ar
tia

l p
ay
m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

(6
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 n
um

be
rs
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 w
ill
 b
e 
ad
ju
st
ed

 b
as
ed

 o
n 
ac
tu
al
 n
um

be
rs
 c
on

sis
te
nt
 w
ith

 th
e 
ab
ov
e 
co
m
m
en

ts
.

(7
) P

ay
m
en

ts
 o
f i
nt
er
es
t, 
an
nu

al
 c
ar
ry
in
g 
co
st
s,
 p
ai
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s a

nd
 O
pt
io
ns
 a
re
 n
ot
 re

fu
nd

ab
le
.

(8
) O

ng
oi
ng

 a
nn

ua
l c
ar
ry
in
g 
co
st
s a

ss
um

ed
 to

 b
e 
pa
id
 u
nd

er
 th

e 
fu
tu
re
 A
nn

ex
at
io
n 
Ag

re
em

en
t.

TH
IR
D
 A
M
EN

D
M
EN

T 
O
F 
TH

E 
D
EP

O
SI
T 
AN

D
 F
U
N
D
IN
G
 A
G
RE

EM
EN

T 
‐ R

EV
IS
ED

 T
AP

IA
 R
AN

CH
 P
AY

M
EN

T 
SC
H
ED

U
LE
 ‐ 
(E
XH

IB
IT
 E
) ‐
 A
tt
ac
hm

en
t I

(1
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 n
um

be
rs
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 a
ss
um

e 
SC
V 
W
at
er
 in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s r
em

ai
n 
at
 4
.1
5%

. T
he

 a
ct
ua
l r
eq

ui
re
d 
pa
ym

en
ts
 m

ay
 b
e

ad
ju
st
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill
 b
e 
ba
se
d 
on

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 in
te
re
st
 ra

te
s.

(2
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 A
nn

ua
l C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s n

um
be

rs
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 a
re
 e
st
im

at
es
 a
nd

 th
e 
ac
tu
al
 re

qu
ire

d 
pa
ym

en
ts
 w
ill
 b
e 
ad
ju
st
ed

 to
 re

fle
ct
 th

e 
ac
tu
al

An
nu

al
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

(3
) T

he
 O
pt
io
n 
Pa
ym

en
ts
 a
re
 h
ar
d 
nu

m
be

rs
 a
nd

 m
us
t b

e 
pa
id
 b
y 
th
e 
du

e 
da
te
s.

(4
) T

he
 h
ig
hl
ig
ht
ed

 b
al
an
ce
 in

 th
is 
ro
w
 is
 a
n 
es
tim

at
e 
an
d 
th
e 
fin

al
 re

qu
ire

d 
pa
ym

en
t m

ay
 b
e 
ad
ju
st
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill
 b
e 
ba
se
d 
on

 th
e 
ac
tu
al

re
m
ai
ni
ng

 A
cq
ui
sit
io
n 
an
d 
Pa
st
 C
ar
ry
in
g 
Co

st
s.

N
ot
es
:

111



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

112



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L 

3R
D

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 T

O
 T

H
E

 D
E

P
O

S
IT

 
A

N
D

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 B

E
T

W
E

E
N

 S
C

V
W

A
T

E
R

 A
N

D
 D

A
C

A
-C

A
S

TA
IC

 F
O

R
 T

A
P

IA
 R

A
N

C
H

Pr
es

en
te

r:
 R

ic
k 

Va
si

lo
pu

lo
s

Ja
nu

ar
y 

2,
 2

02
4

113



TA
P

IA
 R

A
N

C
H

 
A

N
N

E
X

A
T

IO
N

 H
IS

TO
R

Y

2

C
er

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 
EI

R
 fo

r 
BV

R
R

B 
w

at
er

 
– 

75
0 

AF
Y 

fo
r 

Ta
pi

a 
R

an
ch

Ta
pi

a 
R

an
ch

 
no

tif
ie

d 
th

at
 

BV
R

R
B 

w
at

er
 

w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 b

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e

N
ew

 a
na

ly
si

s 
fo

r 2
01

5 
U

W
M

P 
m

ak
e 

BV
R

R
B 

w
at

er
 

av
ai

la
bl

e

Ta
pi

a 
an

d 
C

LW
A 

en
te

r 
in

to
 D

ep
os

it 
& 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ag
re

em
en

t -
 

48
9 

AF
Y

2n
d  

Am
en

dm
en

t 
to

 D
ep

os
it 

& 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ag

re
em

en
t

D
ef

er
re

d 
Pa

st
 

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
 a

nd
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

C
os

ts
 o

f $
3.

7M
 fo

r 
BV

R
R

B 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y 

to
 

12
.3

1.
20

21

R
eq

ue
st

 fo
r  

3r
d  e

xt
en

si
on

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 

fro
m

 T
ap

ia
 

R
an

ch

1s
t

 A
m

en
dm

en
t 

to
 D

ep
os

it 
& 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ag
re

em
en

t

20
23

20
21

20
19

20
17

20
15

20
07

20
06

R
eq

ui
re

d 
cu

rre
nt

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
co

st
, i

nt
er

es
t 

an
d 

op
tio

n 
pa

ym
en

ts

D
ef

er
re

d 
Pa

st
 A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
an

d 
C

ar
ry

in
g 

C
os

t o
f 

$2
.6

M
 to

 1
2.

31
.2

3

R
eq

ui
re

d 
$1

M
 p

ay
do

w
n 

of
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

C
os

ts
 a

nd
 

pa
ym

en
ts

 fo
r c

ur
re

nt
 

ca
rry

in
g 

co
st

s,
 in

te
re

st
 

an
d 

op
tio

ns

114



1S
T

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 T

O
 D

E
P

O
S

IT
 &

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 -
PA

Y
M

E
N

T
S

3

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(5

/1
5/

20
19

) (
1)

Ac
tu

al
 P

ay
m

en
t 

(5
/1

6/
20

19
)

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(1

/3
1/

20
20

)
Ac

tu
al

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
0)

Es
tim

at
ed

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(1

/3
1/

20
21

)
Ac

tu
al

 P
ay

m
en

t 
(F

eb
 2

02
1)

Pa
ym

en
t 

O
rig

in
al

ly
 D

ue
 

12
/3

1/
20

21
 n

ow
 

du
e 

12
/3

1/
20

23

20
18

 In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s
$7

8,
33

4
$7

8,
33

4
An

nu
al

 In
te

re
st

 o
n 

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s (
2)

$1
56

,6
67

$1
56

,6
67

$1
56

,6
67

$1
56

,6
67

$1
56

,6
67

$1
56

,6
67

An
nu

al
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s (
3)

$4
19

,2
77

$4
19

,2
77

$4
31

,8
56

$4
31

,5
91

$4
44

,8
11

$4
34

,2
76

O
pt

io
n 

Pa
ym

en
t (

4)
$5

0,
00

0
$5

0,
00

0
$7

5,
00

0
$7

5,
00

0
$1

00
,0

00
$1

00
,0

00
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
st

 C
ar

ry
in

g 
Co

st
 (5

)
$3

,7
75

,1
17

Cr
ed

it 
fo

r W
at

er
 S

al
es

 (6
)

-$
11

0,
02

5
-$

83
,1

30
To

ta
l P

ay
m

en
t (

7)
$7

04
,2

78
$7

04
,2

78
$6

63
,5

23
$5

53
,2

33
$7

01
,4

78
$6

90
,9

43
$3

,6
91

,9
87

20
19

-2
02

1 
Pa

ym
en

ts
: $

1,
94

8,
45

4

115



2N
D

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 T

O
 D

E
P

O
S

IT
 &

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 
A

G
R

E
E

M
E

N
T

 -
PA

Y
M

E
N

T
S

4

20
22

-2
02

3 
Pa

ym
en

ts
: $

2,
49

0,
02

2

Pa
ym

en
t 

(1
/3

1/
20

22
) (

8)

Pa
rt

ia
l P

ay
m

en
t o

f 
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
st

 
Ca

rr
yi

ng
 C

os
ts

 
(1

2/
31

/2
2)

 (6
)

Pa
ym

en
t 

(1
/3

1/
20

23
) (

8)
Pa

ym
en

t D
ue

 
(1

2/
31

/2
02

3)

An
nu

al
 In

te
re

st
 o

n 
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
st

 C
ar

ry
in

g 
Co

st
s (

1)
$1

56
,6

67
$1

15
,1

67
An

nu
al

 C
ar

ry
in

g 
Co

st
s (

2)
(9

)
$4

55
,7

92
$4

87
,3

96
O

pt
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t (
3)

$1
25

,0
00

$1
50

,0
00

Ac
qu

isi
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

 (4
)

$3
,7

75
,1

17
Cr

ed
it 

fo
r W

at
er

 S
al

es
 in

 2
01

8-
20

20
 (5

)
-$

83
,1

30
Pa

rt
ia

l P
ay

m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s 
$1

,0
00

,0
00

-$
1,

00
0,

00
0

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

t (
7)

$7
37

,4
59

$1
,0

00
,0

00
$7

52
,5

63
$2

,6
91

,9
87

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

ts
 to

 D
at

e:
 $

4,
43

8,
47

6

116


Sheet1

				Estimated Payment (5/15/2019)		Actual Payment		Estimated Payment (1/31/2020)		Actual Payment (January 2020)		Estimated Payment (1/31/2021)		Actual Payment (Feb 2021)		Payment Due (12/31/2021)

		2018 Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs		$78,334

		Annual Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs		$156,667				$156,667		$156,667		$156,667		$156,667

		Annual Carrying Costs		$419,277				$431,856		$431,591		$444,811		$434,276

		Option Payment		$50,000				$75,000		$75,000		$100,000		$100,000

		Acquisition and Past Carrying Cost														$3,775,117

		Credit for Water Sales in 2018-2020								-$110,025						-$80,000

		Total Payment		$704,278				$663,523		$553,233		$701,478		$690,943		$3,695,117





				Estimated Payment (1/31/2022)		Estimated Payment (1/31/2023)		Payment Due (12/31/2023)

		Annual Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs		$156,667		$156,667

		Annual Carrying Costs		$458,155		$471,900

		Option Payment		$125,000		$150,000

		Acquisition and Past Carrying Cost						$3,775,117

		Credit for Water Sales in 2018-2020						-$80,000

		Total Payment		$739,822		$778,567		$3,695,117







2021

				Estimated Payment (5/15/2019) (1)		Actual Payment		Estimated Payment (1/31/2020)		Actual Payment (January 2020)		Estimated Payment (1/31/2021)		Actual Payment (Feb 2021)		Payment Due (12/31/2021)

		2018 Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs		$78,334

		Annual Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (2)		$156,667				$156,667		$156,667		$156,667		$156,667

		Annual Carrying Costs		$419,277				$431,856		$431,591		$444,811		$434,276

		Option Payment		$50,000				$75,000		$75,000		$100,000		$100,000

		Acquisition and Past Carrying Cost														$3,775,117

		Credit for Water Sales in 2018-2020								-$110,025						-$80,000

		Total Payment		$704,278				$663,523		$553,233		$701,478		$690,943		$3,695,117

		Notes:
(1) The total payment amount in the first column of $704,278 is a hard number and must be paid by Landowner to SCV Water by 5/15/19. The interest rate for the period July-December 2018 was 4.15%.
(2) The highlighted numbers in this row are estimates and assume SCV Water interest rates remain at 4.15%. The actual required payments may be adjusted and will be based on the actual interest rates.
(3) The highlighted Annual Carrying Costs numbers in this row are estimates and the actual required payments will be adjusted to reflect the actual Annual Carrying Costs.
(4) The Option Payments are hard numbers and must be paid by the due dates.
(5) The highlighted lump sum payment in this row is an estimate and the final required payment may be adjusted and will be based on the actual remaining Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs.
(6) This number is an estimate. Revenue for 2018 water sales will be credited when Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs are paid on 12/31/2021. No water sales are assumed in 2019 and 2020, but if 
sales occur, a credit would be applied when Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs are paid on 12/31/21.
(8) The highlighted numbers in this row will be adjusted based on actual numbers consistent with the above comments.



































2022

		REVISED TAPIA RANCE PAYMENT SCHEDULE - (AMENDED EXHIBIT E)

				Payment (1/31/2022) (8)		Partial Payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (12/31/22) (6)		Payment (1/31/2023) (8)		Payment Due (12/31/2023)

		Annual Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (1)		$156,667				$115,167

		Annual Carrying Costs (2)(9)		$455,792				$487,396

		Option Payment (3)		$125,000				$150,000

		Acquisition and Past Carrying Cost (4)								$3,775,117

		Credit for Water Sales in 2018-2020 (5)								-$83,130

		Partial Payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs 				$1,000,000				-$1,000,000

		Total Payment (7)		$737,459		$1,000,000		$752,563		$2,691,987



		Notes:

		(1) The highlighted numbers in this row are estimates and assume SCV Water interest rates remain at 4.15%. The actual required payments may be
adjusted and will be based on the actual interest rates.



		(2) The highlighted Annual Carrying Costs numbers in this row are estimates and the actual required payments will be adjusted to reflect the actual
Annual Carrying Costs.



		(3) The Option Payments are hard numbers and must be paid by the due dates.

		(4) The highlighted lump sum payment in this row is an estimate and the final required payment may be adjusted and will be based on the actual
remaining Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs.



		(5) Revenue for 2018 water sales will be credited upon final payment on 12/31/2023 . No water sales are assumed in 2021 and 2022.

		(6) Partial payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs.

		(7) The highlighted number in this row will be adjusted based on actual numbers consistent with the above comments.

		(8) Payments of interest, annual carrying costs, partial Past Carrying Costs and Options are not refundable.

		(9) Ongoing annual carrying costs assumed to be paid under the future Annexation Agreement.





2023

		THIRD AMENDMENT OF THE DEPOSIT AND FUNDING AGREEMENT - REVISED TAPIA RANCH PAYMENT SCHEDULE - (EXHIBIT E) - Attachment I

				Payments Made (1/31/2023) (7)		Paydown of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs Due (1/31/2024)		Annual Carrying Cost Payment (1/31/2024) (7)		Final Payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs Due (12/31/2024)		Estimated Annual Carrying Cost Payment Due (1/31/2025)		Estimated Annual Carrying Cost Payment Due (1/31/2026)

		Annual Interest on Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (1)		$115,167				$111,717				$70,217

		Annual Carrying Costs (2)(8)		$487,396				$498,188				$490,000		$490,000

		Option Payment (3)		$150,000				$200,000

		Balance of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (4)								$2,691,987

		Partial Payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs (5)		$1,000,000		$1,000,000				-$1,000,000

		Total Payment Due (6)		$1,752,563		$1,000,000		$809,905		$1,691,987		$560,217		$490,000



		Notes:

		(1) The highlighted numbers in this row are estimates and assume SCV Water interest rates remain at 4.15%. The actual required payments may be
adjusted and will be based on the actual interest rates.



		(2) The highlighted Annual Carrying Costs numbers in this row are estimates and the actual required payments will be adjusted to reflect the actual
Annual Carrying Costs.



		(3) The Option Payments are hard numbers and must be paid by the due dates.

		(4) The highlighted balance in this row is an estimate and the final required payment may be adjusted and will be based on the actual
remaining Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs.



		(5) Partial payment of Acquisition and Past Carrying Costs.

		(6) The highlighted numbers in this row will be adjusted based on actual numbers consistent with the above comments.

		(7) Payments of interest, annual carrying costs, paid Past Carrying Costs and Options are not refundable.

		(8) Ongoing annual carrying costs assumed to be paid under the future Annexation Agreement.







D
A

C
A

-C
A

S
TA

IC
 R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

E
D

 E
X

T
E

N
S

IO
N

5

Fo
rm

al
 E

xt
en

si
on

 R
eq

ue
st

 re
ce

iv
ed

 N
ov

. 2
0,

 2
02

3
•

R
eq

ue
st

 e
xt

en
si

on
 o

f D
ep

os
it 

an
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

A g
re

em
en

t t
o 

D
ec

em
be

r 3
1,

 2
02

5.
•

R
eq

ue
st

 p
ay

m
en

t p
la

n 
be

 a
m

en
de

d 
an

d 
ex

te
nd

ed
 

t o
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
4.

•
R

eq
ue

st
 E

IR
 c

er
tif

ic
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 to
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

02
5.

117



P
O

T
E

N
T

IA
L 

3R
D

A
M

E
N

D
M

E
N

T
 T

O
 D

E
P

O
S

IT
 &

 
FU

N
D

IN
G

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
 –

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

 P
LA

N

6

Pa
ym

en
ts

 M
ad

e 
(1

/3
1/

20
23

) (
7)

Pa
yd

ow
n 

of
 A

cq
ui

si
tio

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s 
Du

e 
(1

/3
1/

20
24

)

An
nu

al
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

 
Pa

ym
en

t (
1/

31
/2

02
4)

 
(7

)

Fi
na

l P
ay

m
en

t o
f 

Ac
qu

is
iti

on
 a

nd
 P

as
t 

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 C
os

ts
 D

ue
 

(1
2/

31
/2

02
4)

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 C
os

t 
Pa

ym
en

t D
ue

 
(1

/3
1/

20
25

)

Es
tim

at
ed

 A
nn

ua
l 

Ca
rr

yi
ng

 C
os

t 
Pa

ym
en

t D
ue

 
(1

/3
1/

20
26

)

An
nu

al
 In

te
re

st
 o

n 
Ac

qu
isi

tio
n 

an
d 

Pa
st

 C
ar

ry
in

g 
Co

st
s (

1)
$1

15
,1

67
$1

11
,7

17
$7

0,
21

7
An

nu
al

 C
ar

ry
in

g 
Co

st
s (

2)
(8

)
$4

87
,3

96
$4

98
,1

88
$4

90
,0

00
$4

90
,0

00
O

pt
io

n 
Pa

ym
en

t (
3)

$1
50

,0
00

$2
00

,0
00

Ba
la

nc
e 

of
 A

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s (
4)

$2
,6

91
,9

87
Pa

rt
ia

l P
ay

m
en

t o
f A

cq
ui

sit
io

n 
an

d 
Pa

st
 C

ar
ry

in
g 

Co
st

s (
5)

$1
,0

00
,0

00
$1

,0
00

,0
00

-$
1,

00
0,

00
0

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

t D
ue

 (6
)

$1
,7

52
,5

63
$1

,0
00

,0
00

$8
09

,9
05

$1
,6

91
,9

87
$5

60
,2

17
$4

90
,0

00

Pa
ym

en
t D

ue
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
4:

 $
1,

80
9,

90
5

Fi
na

l P
as

t C
ar

ry
in

g 
C

os
t P

ay
m

en
t D

ue
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
4:

 $
1,

69
1,

98
7

To
ta

l P
ay

m
en

t t
hr

u 
D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
4:

 $
7,

94
0,

36
8

118



O
P

T
IO

N
S

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
ID

E
R

A
T

IO
N

7

•
O

pt
io

n 
1 

– 
Ta

ke
 N

o 
Ac

tio
n.

 D
AC

A-
C

as
ta

ic
 w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 m
ee

t i
ts

 
ob

lig
at

io
n 

to
 p

ay
 th

e 
$2

,6
91

,9
87

 fo
r p

as
t c

ar
ry

in
g 

co
st

 a
nd

 w
ou

ld
 n

ot
 

ha
ve

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

ei
r C

EQ
A 

ce
rti

fic
at

io
ns

, p
la

ci
ng

 th
em

 in
 d

ef
au

lt.
 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 c

ou
ld

 th
en

 te
rm

in
at

e 
th

e 
Ag

re
em

en
t.

•
O

pt
io

n 
2 

– 
A m

en
d 

th
e 

D
ep

os
it 

& 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ag

re
em

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 2

02
5 

an
d 

re
qu

ire
 a

 $
1 

m
illi

on
 p

ay
do

w
n 

of
 p

as
t c

ar
ry

in
g 

co
st

s,
 w

ith
 fi

na
l 

pa
ym

en
t o

f a
ll 

pa
st

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
co

st
s 

du
e 

by
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

02
4,

 a
nd

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t, 

cu
rre

nt
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

co
st

s 
an

d 
op

tio
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

. C
EQ

A 
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n 
by

 e
nd

 o
f 2

02
5

•
O

pt
io

n 
3 

– 
Am

en
d 

Ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
/a

lte
rn

at
e 

te
rm

s.

119



R
E

C
O

M
M

E
N

D
A

T
IO

N
S

8

Au
th

or
iz

e 
th

e 
G

en
er

al
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 e
xe

cu
te

 a
 3

rd
 A

m
en

dm
en

t 
to

 th
e 

D
ep

os
it 

an
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

Ag
re

em
en

t w
ith

 D
AC

A-
C

as
ta

ic
, 

LL
C

, u
si

ng
 te

rm
s 

in
 O

pt
io

n 
2 

– 
Am

en
d 

th
e 

D
ep

os
it 

& 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Ag

re
em

en
t t

hr
ou

gh
 2

02
5 

re
qu

iri
ng

 a
 $

1 
m

illi
on

 p
ay

do
w

n 
of

 
pa

st
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

co
st

s,
 fi

na
l p

ay
m

en
t o

f a
ll 

pa
st

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
co

st
s 

by
 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
02

4,
 a

nd
 c

on
tin

ue
d 

pa
ym

en
ts

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t o

n 
un

pa
id

 p
as

t c
ar

ry
in

g 
co

st
s,

 c
ur

re
nt

 c
ar

ry
 c

os
ts

 a
nd

 o
pt

io
n 

pa
ym

en
ts

 w
ith

 C
EQ

A 
ce

rti
fic

at
io

n 
by

 e
nd

 o
f 2

02
5.

120



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
SUMMARY/DISCUSSION 
 
On August 1 2023, the Board of Directors approved an amendment to the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency (Agency) Purchasing Policy to increase the General Manager’s purchasing 
authority without the need for Board approval from $100,000 to $150,000. The Board of 
Directors Policies and Procedures provides the Board with the authority to acquire and dispose 
of real property, but gives the General Manager the ability to (1) grant easements to third parties 
that have a fair market value of $100,000 or less; (2) accept and acquire real property that is 
related to the maintenance and operation of the water system with a fair market value of 
$100,000 or less; and (3) enter into license agreements for the use of real property with a fair 
market value of $100,000 or less. The $100,000 threshold was equal to the General Manager’s 
previous maximum purchasing authority.   
 
Given that the Board recently increased the General Manager’s Purchasing authority from 
$100,000 to $150,000, staff is recommending that the Board consider amending Section 
IV(D)(15) & (16) to correspondingly increase the General Manager’s authority to grant 
easements, accept and acquire real property, and enter into license agreements that have a fair 
market value of $150,000, up from $100,000. The proposed changes are identified as 
Attachment 1. 
 
CEQA DETERMINATION 
 
The proposed revision to the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures to Update the Section 
Regarding General Manager Authority to Accept and Convey Interests in Real and Personal 
Property does not, pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guideline section 
15378 (b)(5), constitute a “project”  as it is an “organizational or administrative activit[y]” that “will 
not result in direct or indirect physical changes to the environment” and alternatively is exempt 
from environmental review under CEQA pursuant to the CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3), 
the “common sense exemption,” which provides that CEQA applies only to projects that have 
the potential for causing a significant effect on the environment. Here, the Agency finds the 
revisions to the Policies and Procedures are not a “project” under CEQA as they are only an 
organizational act, or alternatively, are exempt from CEQA as it “can be seen with certainty that 
there is no possibility that the activity in question” as it is a technical edit that provides only 
procedural guidance, and so it will have no “significant effect on the environment.” 

DATE: December 12, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Joseph Byrne  
General Counsel 
 

SUBJECT: Approve a Revision to the Board of Directors Policies and Procedures 
Regarding General Manager Authority to Grant Easements and Accept and 
Acquire Real Property and Finding as Exempt from CEQA Guidelines Section 
15378 (b)(5), and Alternatively CEQA Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) 

121

ajacobs
Item 6.2



FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Board of Directors approve the attached proposed revision (Attachment 1) to the 
Policies and Procedures for the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. 
 
Attachment  
 
 
 

122



ATTACHMENT 1 

15. Real Property

(a) The Board reserves for itself the sole authority to convey and dispose of
all interests in real property, except as provided below.

(b) Easements. The General Manager is authorized to grant easements upon
real property, including, but not limited to, easements for construction,
inspection, access, storage, operations, maintenance, and emergency
service, as follows:

(1) Temporary easements not to exceed five years in duration; and

(2) Permanent grants of easements upon real property, including by
way of quitclaim, for access and use of Agency property and
rights-of-way with a fair market value, as reasonably determined
by the General Manager or his/her representative, of $150,000
$100,000 or less.

(c) Accepting and Acquiring Real Property. The General Manager is
authorized to accept and acquire, by dedication or purchase, real property,
which includes but is not limited to deeds, and grants of interests in and
easements upon real property, on behalf of the Agency and in a form
approved by General Counsel to the Agency, for the purposes of
expanding, maintaining and operating the Agency and its water system
and have a fair market value, as reasonably determined by the General
Manager or his/her representative of $150,000 $100,000 or less.

(d) The General Manager shall provide a semi-annual report of transactions
executed pursuant to the authority granted in this section to the
Engineering and Operations Committee.

16. License Agreements. The General Manager is authorized to enter into license
agreements related to the access and/or use of real property, and amendments to
such license agreements, that have a fair market value, as reasonably determined

123



 

by the General Manager or his/her representative, of $150,000 $100,000 or less. All other such 
license agreements require Board authorization. 
 

124



BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

              
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee met at 5:30 PM on Wednesday, December 
13, 2023 at the Engineering Services Section (ESS) Boardroom located at 26521 Summit 
Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. In attendance were Committee Chair Piotr Orzechowski, 
Directors Dirk Marks, and Gary Martin. Staff members present were Assistant General Manager 
Steve Cole, Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, Chief Engineer Courtney Mael, 
Executive Assistant Eunie Kang, and Information Technology Technician II Jonathan Thomas. 
Attending virtually were Sustainability Manager Matt Dickens, Water Resources Planner Rick 
Vasilopulos, and members of the public were present. A copy of the agenda is attached. 
 
Item 2:  Public Comment – There was no public comment. 
 
The Committee went into Closed Session at 5:37 P.M. to discuss item 3.1. 
 
Item 3:  CLOSED SESSION 
 
 3.1 Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
  Property:  Devil’s Den Water District Property Encompassing Approx. 8,800  

Acres Located in Kings and Kern Counties Along Hwy 33 North of Twissieman 
Road and South of Route 41 
Agency Negotiators:  Assistant General Manager Stephen L. Cole, Director of 
Water Resources Ali Elhassan, and Water Resources Planner Rick Vasilopulos  
Negotiating Parties:  Intersect Power 
Under Negotiation:  Price and Terms of Payment 

 
Chair Orzechowski reconvened the Open Session at 6:09 P.M.  
 
Item 4:  CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS – Steve Cole reported that there were no 
actions taken in Closed Session that were reportable under the Ralph M. Brown Act.  
 
Item 5:  Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for 
Purchase and Sale of Recycled Water Between City of Santa Clarita and SCV Water 
Agency – After review and discussion, the Committee recommended through consensus to 
move this item forward for consideration and approval by the Board of Directors and put it on 
the Consent Calendar. This item will be presented in a separate report going to the January 2, 
2024 regular Board meeting.   
 

DATE: January 2, 2024  

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager 

SUBJECT: December 13, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed Committee Meeting 
Recap Report 

125

ajacobs
Item 8



Item 6:  Discuss and Consider Potential Amendment to the Deposit and Funding 
Agreement Between SCV Water Agency and DACA-Castaic LLC for Tapia Ranch – After 
review and discussion, the Committee recommended through consensus to move this item 
forward for consideration and approval by the Board of Directors. This item will be presented in 
a separate report going to the January 2, 2024 regular Board meeting.   

 
Item 7:  Water Resources Director’s Staff Activities – Ali Elhassan shared with the 
Committee the staff activities at the Fall ACWA conference. They were involved in and 
networked with various water exchange partners. The staff also joined the 2023 State Water 
Contractors Water Operations Committee Fall Workshop and visited the San Luis Field Division 
on a field trip. 
 
Item 8:  Sustainability Manager’s Staff Activities – Matt Dickens reported that the Agency's 
conservation team has been busy with various sustainability and water conservation projects. 
One of the main tasks is to prepare the first annual conservation report in accordance with AB 
1668 and SB 606, the long-term conservation framework, which is due on January 1, 2024. 
However, the State Resources Control Board has not yet issued its final guidance, so our report 
will not include any specific performance targets that we need to meet. Another ongoing activity 
is the annual water loss audit validation report that we will submit to the DWR at the end of year. 
The team is also developing and improving new conservation programs for 2024. Finally, Matt 
Dickens participated and exchanged ideas on water efficiency innovations and best practices at 
the Plenary Event of the California Water Efficiency Partnership in San Francisco. 
 
Item 9:  Committee Planning Calendar – Staff and the Committee reviewed the Planning 
Calendar.  
 
Item 10:  Adjournment – The meeting adjourned at 6:41 P.M.  
 
The meeting recording is available on the SCV Water Agency website or by clicking the following link:  
Water Resources and Watershed Committee Meeting Recording. 
 
Attachment 
 
 

126

https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-121323
https://yourscvwater.com/meetings/committee-meeting-121323
ajacobs
Matt Stone



 
 
 
 
 
Date: December 6, 2023 
 
To: Water Resources and Watershed Committee 
 Piotr Orzechowski, Chair  
 William Cooper 
 Dirk Marks  
 Gary Martin  
  
From: Steve Cole, Assistant General Manager  
 
The Water Resources and Watershed Committee meeting for Wednesday, December 13, 
2023 at 5:30 PM at 26521 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350 in the Engineering 
Services Section (ESS) Boardroom. Members of the public may attend in person or virtually. 
To attend this meeting virtually, please see below. 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICES  
 

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the 
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In 
Number 1-833-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 152 2133 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the 
link scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1601522133. Any member of the public may listen to the meeting 
or make comments to the Committee using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above. 
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from 
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without 
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the 
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.   
 
Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and 
guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a 
Committee meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to 
protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19. 
 
Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to 
ekang@scvwa.org or by mail to Eunie Kang, Executive Assistant, Santa Clarita Valley Water 
Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received before 
4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Committee members and posted on the 
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything received 
after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and 
will posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, 
including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety. 
  

127

https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1601522133
mailto:ekang@scvwa.org


Dec 6, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 

MEETING AGENDA 

ITEM PAGE 
 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Members of the public may comment as to 
items within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not 
on the Agenda at this time. Members of the public wishing to 
comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so at the time 
each item is considered. Members of the public wishing to comment 
on item covered in Closed Session before they are considered by 
the Committee must request to make the comment at the 
commencement of the meeting at 5:30 P.M. (Comments may, at the 
discretion of the Committee Chair, be limited to three minutes for 
each speaker.) To participate in public comment from your computer, 
tablet, or smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in Zoom. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when 
requested. To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to 
raise your hand. When it is your turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute. 

 

3. CLOSED SESSION  

 3.1 Conference with Real Property Negotiators 
Property: Devil’s Den Water District Property Encompassing 
Approx. 8,800 Acres Located in Kings and Kern Counties Along 
Hwy 33 North of Twisselman Road and South of Route 41 
Agency Negotiators: Assistant General Manager Stephen L. 
Cole, Director of Water Resources Ali Elhassan, and Water 
Resources Planner Rick Vasilopulos 
Negotiating Parties: Intersect Power 
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment  

 

4. CLOSED SESSION ANNOUNCEMENTS  

5.  * Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an 
Agreement for Purchase and Sale of Recycled Water Between City of 
Santa Clarita and SCV Water Agency 

1 

6.  * Discuss and Consider Potential Amendment to the Deposit and 
Funding Agreement Between Santa Clarita Valley Water and DACA-
Castaic LLC for Tapia Ranch  

29 

7. Water Resources Director’s Report – Staff Activities   

  

128



Dec 6, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

  8. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities   

9.   * Committee Planning Calendar  93 

10.  Adjournment  

 
*    Indicates Attachment 
        Indicates Handout 
 

NOTICES: 
 
Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed 
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning Eunie Kang, 
Executive Assistant, at (661) 297-1600, or email to ekang@scvwa.org or by writing to  
Eunie Kang, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 26501 Summit Circle, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. 
Requests must specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested.  
A telephone number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may 
discuss appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation 
should make the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the 
requested accommodation.  
 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open 
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Committee less than seventy-two 
(72) hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley 
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during 
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the 
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at yourSCVwater.com. 
 
Posted on December 6, 2023                           

129

mailto:ekang@scvwa.org
http://www.yourscvwater.com/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

130



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) CONSTRUCTION 
 

Project Contractor Contract 
Amount 

Scheduled 
Completion Notes 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Tank (Phase 2B) 

Pacific Tank 
and 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$4,213,175 9/29/2023 

Project is complete 
and the Notice of 
Completion issued. 
Tank is filled and in 
operation. 

Vista Canyon 
Recycled Water 
Main Extension 
(Phase 2B) 

Ferreira 
Construction 
Co., Inc. 

$2,752,982 10/31/2023 

Project substantially 
complete and pipelines 
are in operation. 
Project closeout is in 
progress. 

Bridgeport Pocket 
Park 

C.S. Legacy 
Construction, 
Inc. 

$373,148 1/31/2024 
Construction is 
complete. Project 
closeout is in progress.  

Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells 
PFAS 
Groundwater 
Treatment 
Improvements 
Material Purchase 

Aqueous Vets $814,050 3/31/2024 Materials have been 
delivered to the site.  

Santa Clara & 
Honby Wells - Site 
Construction 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation  

$9,015,435 3/31/2024 Construction is 81% 
complete. 

ESFP Washwater 
Return 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$18,518,498 4/29/2024 Construction is 83% 
complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 4 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,297,014 4/30/2024 Construction is 98% 

complete. 

DATE: December 18, 2023 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Courtney Mael 
Chief Engineer 

SUBJECT: Engineering Services Section Report 

131

ajacobs
Item 9.1

ajacobs
Courtney Mael



Project Contractor Contract 
Amount 

Scheduled 
Completion Notes 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 5 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $3,269,979 4/30/2024 Construction is 96% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6A 

FivePoint/Toro 
Enterprises $7,168,845 4/30/2024 Construction is 92% 

complete. 

Magic Mountain 
Pipeline Phase 6B 

FivePoint/ 
Leatherwood 
Construction 

$4,568,687 4/30/2024 Construction is 99% 
complete. 

Saugus #3 & #4 
Wells Construction 
(Replacement 
Wells) 

Zim Industries, 
Inc. $12,751,494 4/30/2024 Construction is 60% 

complete. 

Dickason Drive 
Water Line 
Improvements 

J. Vega 
Engineering, 
Inc. 

$1,909,511 5/1/2024 Construction is 52% 
complete.  

Pitchess Pipeline 
Modifications 

LA County 
Metropolitan 
Transportation 
Authority 

$159,000 6/30/2024 

Potholing of the 
pipeline was 
conducted on June 5, 
2023.  

Deane Tank 
(concrete) at 
Nimbus Way 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$3,127,269 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

7/23/2024 

Concrete foundation 
and walls were 
installed. Contractor is 
installing rebar for roof.  

RVWTP UST 
Replacement 

Fleming 
Environmental, 
Inc 

$1,388,771 7/23/2024 
Construction 
submittals are in 
progress.  

Deane Pump 
Station at Sand 
Canyon Plaza 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$1,969,954 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

8/1/2024 Construction has 
commenced. 

Deane Pump 
Station at Skyline 
Ranch Road 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$385,837 
(SCV Water 
Fair Share) 

11/26/2024 

Contractor has 
mobilized and started 
site grading and 
setting up temporary 
water for construction.  

Well 201 VOC 
Treatment 
Improvements 

Pacific 
Hydrotech 
Corporation 

$7,726,700  2/1/2025 Construction is 27% 
complete. 

 
  

132



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) PLANNING AND DESIGN 
 

1. Backcountry (fka Magic Mountain) Pump Station – The Board of Directors adopted the 
Addendum to the Mission Village Environmental Impact Report (EIR) and the Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program, approved the Backcountry Pump Station project, 
and authorized final design services on March 7, 2023. Design is in progress. Additional 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) analysis is being performed to allow 
flexibility in design. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) analysis is in progress. 
Constructability review is in progress. 
 

2. Backcountry (fka Magic Mountain) Reservoir – The Board of Directors adopted the 
Addendum to the Mission Village EIR and the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting 
Program, approved the Backcountry Reservoir project, and authorized final design 
services on March 7, 2023. The pipeline is within the public right-of-way and Pump 
Station Improvements are being designed as separate plan sets. Design is in progress.  

 
3. Castaic Conduit Bypass Pipeline – Design is 90% complete. Permits are being secured 

for the project.  
 

4. Catala Pump Station and Pipelines – Planning is in progress. 
 

5. Deane Tank @ Sand Canyon Plaza (CIP is SCV Water Fair Share) – Project has been 
placed on hold due to construction bids being significantly higher than engineering 
estimates. Staff is exploring alternative options for new tank site. 

 
6. Foothill Feeder Service Connection CLWA-01/01T Pipe Repair – Metropolitan Water 

District of Southern California (MWDSC) is performing the planning and design of the 
pipe repair improvements. Staff met with MWDSC staff on May 4, 2023, at the site to 
review site conditions. 
 

7. Honby Parallel Pipeline Phase 2 – The Board of Directors adopted the Addendum to the 
EIR on June 1, 2021. Design is in progress and staff is securing permits from the 
California Department of Fish and Wildlife and the Los Angeles Regional Water Quality 
Control Board.  
 

8. Honby Tank Pipeline Bottleneck – Request to adopt the final mitigated negative 
declaration and mitigation monitoring reporting program and authorize final design 
services are scheduled to be presented at the January Engineering & Operations 
Committee meeting.  
 

9. Master Plan – Planning is in progress. 
 

10. Newhall Wells (N11, N12, N13) Groundwater Treatment Improvements – Planning is 
complete. CEQA and NEPA evaluation is in progress. Request to authorize final design 
services is scheduled to be presented at the April Engineering & Operations Committee 
meeting. 

 
11. Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS) Groundwater Treatment Improvements: 

Clark Well – Planning is in progress. 
 

133



12. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: E Wells (E-14, E-15, E-16, and E-17) – 
Planning is complete. CEQA and NEPA evaluation is in progress.  
 

13. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Lost Canyon 2, Lost Canyon 2A, and 
Sand Canyon 2, and Mitchell 5B Wells – Planning is in progress. 
 

14. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: North Oaks Central, North Oaks East, 
and Sierra Wells – Planning is in progress.  

 
15. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Wells 206 and 207 – Planning is in 

progress. 
 

16. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Well D – Planning is in progress.  
 

17. PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements: Wells W9 and W10 – Planning is in 
progress.  

 
18. Pipeline Inspection: Castaic Conduit Pipeline Reaches 3 & 4 – Planning is in progress. 

 
19. Pipeline Inspection: Magic Mountain Parkway (MMP) Inspection Access Modifications – 

Request to authorize final design services is scheduled to be presented at the January 
Engineering & Operations Committee meeting. 
 

20. Pipeline Replacement: Abdale St, Maplebay Ct, & Beachgrove Ct Pipelines – CEQA 
and NEPA evaluation is in progress. 
 

21. Pipeline Replacement: McBean Parkway – 100% submittal in mid-December. 
 

22. Pipeline Replacement: MMP & The Old Road Recycled Water Relocation – Planning is 
in progress. 

 
23. Pipeline Replacement: Newhall Ranch Road (West of Avenue Tibbitts) – Planning is in 

progress.  
 

24. Pipeline Replacement: Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant (RVWTP) Sewer Line – CEQA 
and NEPA evaluation is in progress. 
 

25. Pipeline Replacement: Sand Canyon Sewer Line – CEQA and NEPA evaluation is in 
progress. 
 

26. Pipeline Replacement: Smyth Drive Pipeline – Final design is in progress. 
 

27. Pipeline Replacement: Valencia Marketplace Pipeline – Final design is in progress. 
 

28. Recycled Water Central Park (Phase 2A) – The project’s Mitigated Negative Declaration 
(MND) and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP) was adopted by the 
Castaic Lake Water Agency (CLWA) Board of Directors on December 13, 2017. Design 
is on hold pending resolution of recycled water permitting and regulatory issues. 
 

29. Recycled Water Fill Station – Planning and land acquisition are in progress. 
 

134



30. Recycled Water South End (Phase 2C) – Newhall County Water District, as the CEQA 
Lead Agency, certified the recirculated MND on August 10, 2017. The project Mitigated 
Negative Declaration/Initial Study was adopted by the CLWA Board of Directors on 
August 23, 2017. Grant application for Proposition 1 Grant was submitted the week of 
December 2, 2019. The Board of Directors adopted the Addendum to the MND on June 
1, 2021, and authorized additional design services on August 3, 2021. NEPA evaluation 
is complete. Final design is in progress.  
 

31. Replacement Wells (Saugus Wells 3 and 4: Site and Equipment Design) – Final design 
is in progress.  
 

32. RVWTP Mechanical Shop and Access Road Paving – Planning is in progress. On 
December 5, 2023, staff issued a Request for Proposal for planning and design services.  
 

33. RVWTP Turbidity Improvements – Planning is in progress.  
 

34. S Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment and Disinfection Facility – Project Final MND 
was adopted by the Board of Directors on July 18, 2023. Final design services were 
awarded to Hazen and Sawyer, Inc. Topographic survey is completed and Geotech 
investigation is underway. SCV Water awarded $5 million in grant funding from the 
Bureau of Reclamation. Staff is preparing several applications for additional potential 
grant funding opportunities.  
 

35. Sand Canyon Reservoir Expansion – Planning is in progress. Consultant is working on 
the 30% design plans for a 7 million gallon (MG) rectangular cast-in-place concrete 
reservoir.  
 

36. Sierra Highway Bridge Expansion Water Pipelines Protection – Final design is in 
progress. The agreement with the City of Santa Clarita to advertise and construct the 
SCV Water Pipelines Protection and Installation work has been executed. 

 
37. T7, U4, and U6 Wells PFAS Groundwater Treatment Improvements, New Rio Vista 

Intake Pump Station (RVIPS) Disinfection Facility, and Saugus 1 and 2 Volatile Organic 
Compounds (VOC) Improvements – 100% plans completed. Bid document packages 
are being prepared for contractor bidding. Staff is preparing several applications for 
potential grant funding opportunities. 
 

38. Well 205 Perchlorate Treatment Improvements – Final design and land acquisition are 
in progress.

135



 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PR

O
JE

C
TS

 –
 D

ES
IG

N,
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
, A

N
D

 IN
SP

EC
TI

O
N 

 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-

ou
t) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Ai
dl

in
 H

ills
 

(T
ra

ct
 5

27
96

) 
Le

nn
ar

  

10
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
 

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
±7

,6
70

’ o
f p

ot
ab

le
 

pi
pe

lin
es

, a
nd

 9
 p

ub
lic

 
fir

e 
hy

dr
an

ts
. 

TB
D

 
 

W
at

er
 p

ip
el

in
e 

pl
an

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ap
pr

ov
ed

. 9
0%

 T
an

k 
an

d 
Bo

os
te

r 
St

at
io

n 
pl

an
 re

vi
ew

 c
om

pl
et

ed
. 6

0%
 

D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Pl

an
s 

ar
e 

in
 

re
vi

ew
. 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f t

he
 

C
an

yo
ns

 
(C

O
C

) 

N
ew

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
St

ru
ct

ur
e 

fo
r 

Va
le

nc
ia

 
C

am
pu

s 

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 1

6”
 w

at
er

 
lin

e 
(a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
1,

01
5’

). 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e 
an

d 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 in
 o

pe
ra

tio
n.

 
Pr

oj
ec

t c
lo

se
ou

t i
s 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

 

D
oc

kw
ei

le
r 

93
 S

in
gl

e 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
 

1,
40

0’
 o

f o
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 
3,

60
0 

fe
et

 o
f o

ns
ite

 
pi

pe
lin

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
  

C
lo

se
ou

t a
nd

 N
ot

ic
e 

of
 C

om
pl

et
io

n 
ar

e 
in

 p
ro

ce
ss

. 

La
nd

m
ar

k 
Vi

lla
ge

 (T
ra

ct
 

53
10

8)
 

Fi
ve

Po
in

t 

14
44

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
3.

5 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
in

g,
 

pr
es

su
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 
st

at
io

n,
 2

M
G

 Z
on

e 
IA

 
Ta

nk
, a

nd
 2

 H
w

y 
12

6 
cr

os
si

ng
s.

 

TB
D

 
D

es
ig

n 
is

 o
n 

ho
ld

. 

136



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-

ou
t) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

M
is

si
on

 V
illa

ge
 

(F
iv

eP
oi

nt
) 

40
55

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
11

.5
 m

ile
s 

of
 n

ew
 

pi
pe

lin
e,

 1
 p

re
ss

ur
e 

re
du

ci
ng

 s
ta

tio
n 

(T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 

Pe
te

rs
en

), 
2 

bo
os

te
r 

st
at

io
ns

 (T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
po

ta
bl

e 
& 

re
cy

cl
ed

). 
1 

bo
os

te
r s

ta
tio

n 
up

gr
ad

e 
(M

ag
ic

 M
tn

.),
 a

nd
 3

 
ta

nk
s 

(T
el

em
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
po

ta
bl

e 
& 

re
cy

cl
ed

 
ta

nk
s 

an
d 

M
ag

ic
 M

tn
. 

Ta
nk

 N
o.

 2
 p

ot
ab

le
). 

Te
le

m
ar

k 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 P

et
er

se
n)

 
Ta

nk
s 

an
d 

Bo
os

te
r S

ta
tio

ns
 

de
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
by

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

24
. 

D
es

ig
n:

 T
o 

da
te

, a
 to

ta
l o

f 5
2 

po
ta

bl
e/

re
cy

cl
ed

 d
is

tri
bu

tio
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

de
si

gn
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 fo

r 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n.
 T

el
em

ar
k 

(fo
rm

er
ly

 
Pe

te
rs

en
) p

ot
ab

le
 a

nd
 re

cy
cl

ed
 

w
at

er
 b

oo
st

er
 s

ta
tio

ns
 a

re
 1

00
%

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
el

em
ar

k 
Ta

nk
s 

at
 9

0%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 P

ha
se

 3
B 

an
d 

2B
-1

 w
at

er
 

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

pi
pe

lin
e 

pl
an

 s
et

s 
ar

e 
un

de
r r

ev
ie

w
.  

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 P

ha
se

s 
1A

, 1
B,

 1
C

, 
1D

, a
nd

 in
-tr

ac
t p

ot
ab

le
 w

at
er

 
pi

pe
lin

es
 a

re
 c

om
pl

et
ed

, a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 w

at
er

 p
ip

el
in

es
 a

re
 9

0%
 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 W

el
l 2

06
/2

07
 p

ip
e 

re
lo

ca
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

t i
s 

75
%

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 

M
ag

ic
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Bo
os

te
r S

ta
tio

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

e.
 R

et
ai

ni
ng

 
w

al
l a

t M
ag

ic
 M

ou
nt

ai
n 

Ta
nk

 N
o.

 2
 

si
te

 is
 8

0%
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 N
ot

ic
es

 o
f 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
ex

ec
ut

ed
 fo

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. 

 O
n-

si
te

 R
W

 ir
rig

at
io

n 
pl

an
 

re
vi

ew
/c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

  

137



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-

ou
t) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

N
ee

dh
am

 
R

an
ch

 
Tr

am
m

el
l 

C
ro

w
 C

o.
 

2,
55

0,
00

0 
Sq

ua
re

 F
ee

t 
In

du
st

ria
l a

nd
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

4 
m

ile
s 

of
 p

ip
el

in
es

, 1
 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n,
 2

 ta
nk

s,
 1

 
di

si
nf

ec
tio

n 
bu

ild
in

g,
 

an
d 

2 
pr

es
su

re
 re

du
ci

ng
 

st
at

io
ns

. 

Ph
as

e 
1 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

is
 

su
bs

ta
nt

ia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 P

ha
se

 
2 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
is

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 T
an

k 
7 

an
d 

7A
 is

 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
Bu

ild
in

g 
an

d 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

 to
 

be
 c

om
pl

et
e 

by
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

02
4.

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n:
 T

an
k 

7A
 is

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 

Pi
ne

 S
tre

et
 P

ip
el

in
e 

is
 c

om
pl

et
e.

  
D

es
ig

n:
 P

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

m
od

ifi
ca

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
ch

em
ic

al
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
. C

he
m

ic
al

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
is

 
un

de
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(6
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e)
. 

Sa
dd

le
 P

ea
k 

C
an

yo
n 

(T
ic

k 
C

an
yo

n)
 

54
8 

si
ng

le
 

fa
m

ily
 u

ni
ts

 
2 

ta
nk

s,
 1

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n,
 

6.
3 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

e.
 

TB
D

 
30

%
 p

ip
el

in
e,

 ta
nk

 a
nd

 p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
pl

an
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 b

y 
SC

V 
W

at
er

.  

Sa
nd

 C
an

yo
n 

Pl
az

a 
12

9 
Si

ng
le

 
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

45
1 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 U
ni

ts
, 

14
0 

Be
d 

Se
ni

or
 L

iv
in

g,
 

C
om

m
er

ci
al

 

1 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n,

 1
,7

00
’ 

of
 o

ffs
ite

 p
ip

el
in

e,
 a

nd
 

8,
50

0’
 o

f o
ns

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e.

 

D
ev

el
op

er
 h

as
 c

om
m

en
ce

d 
m

as
s 

gr
ad

in
g 

at
 th

e 
si

te
. 

O
ffs

ite
 P

ip
el

in
e 

an
d 

N
ew

 S
an

d 
C

an
yo

n 
Pl

az
a 

Pu
m

p 
St

at
io

n 
to

 
st

ar
t c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 A

ug
us

t 
20

23
.  

O
ffs

ite
 p

ip
el

in
e 

an
d 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
is

 
un

de
r c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n.

 F
in

al
 In

-T
ra

ct
 

pl
an

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

nd
 s

ig
ne

d.
 

Sh
er

iff
 S

ta
tio

n 
C

ity
 o

f S
an

ta
 

C
la

rit
a 

44
,3

00
 

Sq
ua

re
 F

ee
t 

1 
m

ile
 o

f p
ip

el
in

e.
 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 m
ai

n 
pi

pe
lin

e 
is

 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
ith

 b
yp

as
s 

cr
os

si
ng

 
ov

er
 L

AD
W

P 
aq

ue
du

ct
.  

St
af

f a
re

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 C
ity

 to
 

re
lo

ca
te

 th
e 

pi
pe

lin
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 u
nd

er
 

th
e 

bi
ke

 p
at

h 
as

 a
 s

em
i-p

er
m

an
en

t 
al

ig
nm

en
t i

n 
lie

u 
of

 c
ro

ss
in

g 
un

de
r 

th
e 

LA
D

W
P 

pi
pe

lin
e.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 re
lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 p
la

nn
ed

 fo
r w

in
te

r 
20

23
 u

si
ng

 S
C

V 
W

at
er

 s
ta

ff.
  

138



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-

ou
t) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Sp
rin

g 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 4
80

86
) 

49
2 

D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
1 

ta
nk

, 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
1 

pr
es

su
re

 re
du

ci
ng

 
va

lv
e,

 M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 

up
gr

ad
es

 a
nd

 li
ft 

st
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

.  

M
am

m
ot

h 
La

ne
 u

pg
ra

de
s 

m
us

t 
be

 c
om

pl
et

e 
pr

io
r t

o 
co

m
m

en
ce

m
en

t o
f 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

D
es

ig
n 

pl
an

s 
fo

r i
n-

tra
ct

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 

ta
nk

s 
an

d 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
n 

w
er

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 a

nd
 is

su
ed

 in
 J

ul
y 

20
20

. 
St

af
f i

s 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

 a
nd

 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 C

ou
nt

y 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r s

ew
er

 li
ft 

st
at

io
n 

up
gr

ad
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 tr

an
sf

er
 

ow
ne

rs
hi

p 
to

 th
e 

C
ity

 o
f S

an
ta

 
C

la
rit

a.
 R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 c

om
m

en
ts

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
1st

 d
ra

ft 
M

em
or

an
du

m
 

of
 U

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 (M
O

U
) b

et
w

ee
n 

SC
V 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
C

ity
 fo

r t
ra

ns
fe

r 
of

 s
ew

er
 li

ft 
st

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y.
 

Sk
yl

in
e 

R
an

ch
 

Tr
iP

oi
nt

e 
(T

ra
ct

 6
09

22
) 

12
20

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
17

 m
ile

s 
of

 p
ip

el
in

es
, 3

 
pu

m
p 

st
at

io
ns

, a
nd

 4
 

ta
nk

s.
 

Ph
as

e 
1 

pi
pe

lin
es

, p
um

p 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
ta

nk
s 

ar
e 

on
lin

e.
 

Ph
as

e 
2 

D
ea

ne
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

N
im

bu
s/

D
ea

ne
 ta

nk
 a

re
 in

 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
fo

r c
om

pl
et

io
n 

by
 

su
m

m
er

 2
02

4.
 P

ha
se

 3
 S

ky
lin

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

an
d 

D
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

tru
ct

ed
 b

y 
fa

ll 
20

24
. 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 p
re

pa
rin

g 
90

%
 p

la
ns

 
fo

r d
is

in
fe

ct
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

y 
an

d 
dr

af
t f

in
al

 
pl

an
s 

fo
r t

he
 S

ky
lin

e 
Pu

m
p 

St
at

io
n 

at
 th

e 
N

im
bu

s 
D

ea
ne

 T
an

k 
si

te
 to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
SC

V 
W

at
er

’s
 c

om
m

en
ts

. 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 N

im
bu

s 
co

nc
re

te
 

ta
nk

 is
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 R

ea
dy

 to
 

pe
rfo

rm
 c

irc
um

fe
re

nt
ia

l p
re

-
st

re
ss

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 ta

nk
. 

Te
so

ro
 

H
ig

hl
an

ds
 

69
6 

Si
ng

le
 

Fa
m

ily
 U

ni
ts

, 
9 

M
ul

ti-
Fa

m
ily

 
U

ni
ts

, 2
 a

cr
es

 
of

 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
  

2 
ta

nk
s,

 1
 p

um
p 

st
at

io
n,

 
an

d 
64

,0
00

’ o
f p

ip
el

in
e.

 
Ph

as
e 

1 
an

d 
Ph

as
e 

2 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
su

bs
ta

nt
ia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e.

 T
es

or
o 

3 
Ta

nk
s 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Au
gu

st
 2

02
3.

 Z
on

e 
3 

pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

02
4.

 

Ta
nk

s 
3/

3A
 a

re
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. P

ha
se

 3
-6

 w
at

er
 

pi
pe

lin
es

 a
re

 s
ub

st
an

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

e.
 

Pu
m

p 
st

at
io

n 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
in

 
pr

og
re

ss
 (8

0%
 c

om
pl

et
e)

. P
ha

se
 7

, 
8 

an
d 

14
B 

pl
an

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ov

ed
.  

 

139



 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

D
ev

el
op

er
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Si

ze
 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

(E
st

im
at

ed
 a

t B
ui

ld
-

ou
t) 

Sc
he

du
le

 
St

at
us

 

Vi
st

a 
C

an
yo

n 
(T

ra
ct

 6
91

64
) 

JS
B 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

11
00

 D
w

el
lin

g 
U

ni
ts

 
5 

m
ile

s 
of

 p
ot

ab
le

 a
nd

 
re

cy
cl

ed
 p

ip
el

in
es

. 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 P

ha
se

 1
 

Po
ta

bl
e 

an
d 

R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 
Sy

st
em

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pl

et
e.

 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 P

ha
se

 2
 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

co
m

pl
et

e 
ex

ce
pt

 
fin

al
 ti

e-
in

s.
 

D
ev

el
op

er
 to

 s
ub

m
it 

sc
he

du
le

 to
 

co
ns

tru
ct

 fi
na

l t
ie

-in
s 

fo
r p

ot
ab

le
 

sy
st

em
. S

ta
ff 

is
 fi

na
liz

in
g 

pu
rc

ha
se

 
ag

re
em

en
t w

ith
 C

ity
 fo

r r
ec

yc
le

d 
w

at
er

 s
up

pl
y.

 S
er

vi
ce

 o
f r

ec
yc

le
d 

w
at

er
 is

 p
en

di
ng

 th
e 

C
ity

’s
 w

at
er

 
fa

ct
or

y 
op

er
at

io
ns

 b
ei

ng
 w

ith
in

 
pe

rm
it 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
ns

. 

 
 

140



 

RIGHT OF WAY – CELL SITES 
 

1. Bouquet Tank Site – T- Mobile has constructed fences around sector antennas. Carrier 
is also working on plans to install an emergency generator at this location. SCV Water 
has received deposit of $10,000 and is waiting on reviewed plans to be updated by T-
Mobile. 
 

2. Commerce Center Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell 
site. SCV Water has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 

 
3. Dockweiler (Newhall) Tank 2 Site – SCV Water is waiting on T-Mobile carrier plans to 

relocate decommissioned Sprint equipment off the tank due to T-Mobile’s acquisition of 
Sprint. SCV Water is waiting on carrier plans from AT&T and Verizon to install 
emergency generators. 

 
4. Keaton (Honby) Tank Site – T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. SCV 

Water is working with carrier on deposit letter and review of plans. DISH Wireless has 
identified this location as a potential new cell site. SCV Water has received deposit of 
$10,000 and is reviewing plans. 

 
5. Live Oaks Tank Site – AT&T has identified this location as a potential new cell site. SCV 

Water has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 
 

6. Mountain Pass (Princess) Tank Site – Verizon has identified this site for emergency 
generator installation. SCV Water is working with carrier on a deposit letter. 

 
7. Pamplico (Catala) Tank Site – DISH Wireless has identified this location as a potential 

new cell site. SCV Water has received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. AT&T 
has also identified this location as a potential new site. SCV Water is working with carrier 
on deposit letter. T-Mobile has identified this existing site for upgrades. SCV Water has 
received deposit of $10,000 and is reviewing plans. 

 
8. Ridge Route (Castaic) Tank 1A – Verizon has started construction of new wireless 

facility. 
 

9. Whites Canyon (Skyblue) Tank Site – Verizon has requested an access agreement for 
this site to resolve access issues. SCV Water is working with the carrier on a draft license 
agreement. DISH Wireless has identified this location as a potential new site. SCV Water 
is working with carrier. 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP) MISCELLANEOUS 
 

• Fire Flow – In November 2023, staff issued 8 fire flow requests.  
 
 

 

141



 

 FACILITY CAPACITY FEES (FCFs) AND CONNECTION FEES 

 
 

 
Month Regional Distribution Total 
July 2023 $367,333 $8,870 $376,203 
August 2023 $588,778 $62,844 $651,622 
September 2023 $1,186,791 $24,243 $1,211,034 
October 2023 $123,565 $21,288 $144,853 
November 2023 $220,774 $15,336 $236,110 
FY 2023/24 to Date $2,487,241 $132,581 $2,620,092 
FY 2023/24 Budget $1,886,000 $368,000 $2,254,000 

142

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION (F&A) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff completed the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Annual Comprehensive Finance Report (ACFR) 
with Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP (LSL), the Agency’s outside CPA firm. LSL delivered a 
presentation of this report at the December 11, 2023, Finance and Administration Committee 
meeting and staff presented the report at the December 19, 2023 regular Board meeting. 
 
Staff completed the WIFIA (Water Infrastructure Finance and Innovation Act) loan process, and 
the consultant submitted the application on December 18, 2023. 
 
Staff and consultants updated the financial scenarios by revising the Agency’s retail rate model 
to project future operating revenues, non-operating revenues, operating expenses, existing debt 
service as well as proposed debt service, level of reserve funds, and funds remaining that are 
used to fund the Agency CIP pay-go program for the next 10 years. 
 
Staff completed the Agency’s first Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) for FY 2022/23, 
which will be presented to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for award 
consideration. This report is a companion piece to the ACFR. The purpose of the PAFR is to 
present financial information in a more reader-friendly and accessible format compared to the 
more complex and detailed ACFR. The PAFR highlights key financial activities using graphs, 
charts and narratives that make it easier for ratepayers and stakeholders to understand. The 
PAFR will be made available on the Agency’s website, including printed copies, and will become 
part of the Agency’s annual reports that are available to the general public. 
 
Staff received approval for the revised Driving and Vehicle Policy and revised Employee Manual 
10 – Overtime Policy.  
 
Staff received approval to renew the contract with EnQuesta. 
 
Staff presented the Facility Capacity Fee revenues and Study components report at the 
December 11, 2023 Finance and Administration Committee meeting, and engaged in a 
thorough discussion with the Committee.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff is finalizing the P-Card agreement with CalCards, expecting to be fully transitioned by end 
of January 2024. Switching to CalCards would streamline the Agency’s P-card processes and 

DATE: December 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Rochelle Patterson 
Chief Financial and Administrative Officer 

SUBJECT: Finance, Administration, and Information Technology Services Section Report 

143

ajacobs
Item 9.2

ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson



 

enhance the overall efficiency of the Agency’s financial transactions. It would also recognize a 
significant increase in rebates, estimating $18,000 per spend of $1 million a year, versus the 
current program with Wells Fargo rebate of $2,000 per $1 million a year.  
 
Staff is working with the HR department to revise several Employee Manual Policies, which will 
be presented to the Finance and Administration Committee over the next few months. 
 
Staff received two ratepayer advocate proposals on December 13, 2023, and an interview for 
these candidates is planned during the January 22, 2024 regular Finance and Administration 
Committee Meeting.  
 
Ongoing: Staff, following Grant Management Policy and Procedures, continue to receive training 
on processes and workflows to ensure the Agency will comply with federal single audit 
requirements. The Agency has successfully obtained significant federal grant funding. 
Therefore, single audits will be required as part of the Agency’s annual, external financial audits 
for the foreseeable future. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to work with Engineering, Operations and Water Resources to refine 
the Project Financial Management module.  
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to review and approve Certificates of Insurance (COIs), ensuring that 
insurance limits conform with the Agency’s insurance requirements. 
 
Ongoing: Staff continue to assist with training in Oracle’s procurement module with applications 
such as requisitions, purchase orders and contract agreements. 
 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff continue to work with Smartworks and Systems & Software (S&S) on the Smartworks 
Meter Date Management System (MDMS) implementation. Phase I of training is complete. Staff 
will test through 2023.  
 
Staff attended the Harris Computer Training Conference (HCTC). Training focused on the 
enQuesta Customer Information System (CIS) and the Smartworks Meter Data Management 
System (MDMS.) 
 
Three new SCV Water-branded “How-To” videos are now available to customers on the login 
page of the online customer portal. The videos guide customers through the steps to Enroll In 
Autopay, Update their Autopay Method and How to Register for Pay By Text.  
 
Staff completed a quarterly review of Customer Care content on the public website and reported 
changes and recommendations to the Communications team.  
 
Staff continue to work with customers to avoid disconnection for nonpayment, and if unable to 
pay, resolve their overdue balances through amortization agreements. Before shutoff, at least 
two courtesy reminder calls are broadcast to customers subject to disconnection for 
nonpayment. There were 3,181 accounts subject to disconnection in November 2023. Of those, 
892 remained overdue within one week of their scheduled shutoff date and subsequently 
received one or more courtesy reminder calls. Two hundred two (202) accounts remained 

144



 

unresolved by their scheduled shutoff date and were disconnected for nonpayment. There were 
no shutoffs on Thanksgiving.  
 

REPEAT SHUTOFFS 
 

 
 

Staff continue to work with the Communications department to market the Agency’s Ratepayer 
Assistance Program. As of the date this report was prepared, there were 495 active participants. 
 
Staff continue to work with Systems and Software (S&S) to further refine workflows related to 
the new enQuesta v.6 platform, online customer portal and mobile work order solution. 
 
Staff continue to coordinate with Field Services on the AMI Meter Changeout Program and the 
communication infrastructure expansion. 
 
Staff continue to work with Operations, Tech Services and Communications on the new lead 
and copper reporting requirements. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
A series of Smartworks MDMS Navigation and Data Validation training workshops are 
scheduled for staff in the upcoming months. 
 
Staff is working with the IT department to configure an additional queue in the Customer Call 
Center that will be dedicated to Spanish-only callers.  
 
 
 

145



 

HUMAN RESOURCES (HR) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff are recruiting for (1) Treatment Plant Operator I, (1) Utility Operations Supervisor, (2) Utility 
Operations Technician I, (2) Water Systems Technician I, (1) Engineering Intern, (1) GIS Intern, 
and (1) Safety Department Intern. 
 
Staff are onboarding (1) Administrative Technician (Assistant to the Board Secretary) and  
(1) Field Service Worker I (Limited Duration). 
 
Staff completed recruitment for (1) Financial Analyst, (1) Utility Supervisor, (1) Water Systems 
Supervisor, and (1) Water Education Instructor. 
 
Staff are currently managing eight (8) Leaves of Absence (LOA) cases and administering the 
FMLA and State Disability Insurance (SDI) program benefits to employees on leave. 
 
Staff continues to attend and support the bi-monthly Safety Committee meetings. 
 
Staff continues to attend and support the ACWA/JPIA’s monthly training sessions, Hot Java and 
Hot HR Topics. The training sessions highlight current topics and trends in the HR field. 
November’s topic was Accountability – Modeling Accountability as Leaders. December’s topic is 
New Laws for 2024 and will be presented by the ACWA/JPIA’s legal counsel, Rob Greenfield.  
 
Staff successfully filed the 2023 EEOC-4 compliance report. 
 
Staff completed a salary survey for the budgeted Government Affairs Analyst classification and 
drafted the new job classification. Staff will recommend a compensation salary range during the 
budgeting process.  
 
Staff attended the BBK Annual Labor and Employment Legal Update on December 5, 2023.  
 
Staff is continuing working with a consultant on the Water Resources Specialist series 
classification and compensation study. The job classifications for the series are completed and 
the compensation survey for this study is almost completed. In addition, staff is working on 
adding a new study of Network Engineer for the Technology Department. These series will not 
be authorized until next fiscal year. 
 
Staff is currently preparing for the annual End of Year/New Year benefits activities and 
implementation of new year plan rates and updates. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff plans to comply with ACA (Affordable Care Act) compliance requirements in March 2024.  
 
Staff plans to update the Employee Manual policies and procedures to include changes in laws 
and regulations for 2024.  
 
Staff plans to create Training for Prevention of Violence in the Workplace.  
 
Staff plans to provide training on the new Internship Policy for supervisors.  
 

146



 

Staff plans to develop a soft skills training program for employees. Examples of soft skills are 
leadership, teamwork, communication, problem-solving, work ethic, flexibility, and interpersonal 
skills. 
 
Staff plans to provide training for supervisors and for all employees regarding prevention of 
sexual harassment.  
 
Staff plans to survey other agencies and create a list for management/supervisory training.  
 
TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Tech Service successfully serviced 171 tickets and fielded 32 hotline calls for November 2023. 
 

 
 

Tech Services completed an Agency-wide asset management needs assessment amongst all 
Agency departments.  
 
Tech Services completed a cross-departmental GIS data governance workshop. 
 
The OT team has developed and deployed a SCADA reporting database that is hosted on the 
business network. 
 
Tech Services kicked off a proof-of-concept data warehouse project. Starting with a handful of 
databases, the team configured data flow into a cloud-hosted data warehouse that will be used 
for queries using analytical tools. The project involved cross-departmental collaboration. 
Development and testing will be ongoing. 
 
Cybersecurity completed an increased password-complexity campaign. This was a multi-month 
project as it involved user education and implementation. The campaign involved short 
educational videos. 

147



 

Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Tech Services is in the process of soliciting requests for proposals for managed services 
support.  
 
The OT team is testing a vulnerability scanner on the Distribution SCADA system. 
 
Ongoing: The OT team will be consolidating and moving SCADA servers to a different platform 
which will lead to improved performance and security. 
 
Ongoing: The OT team is in the process of planning and configuring SCADA data center 
upgrades and expansion. 
 
Ongoing: The GIS team will be cross-training employees from various departments on survey 
GPS technology.  
 
Ongoing: The GIS team will be deploying a beta version of a water systems web application and 
data dashboard that will be hosted within SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: Tech Services is supporting a project with Customer Care and their contractor to 
deploy and configure a new meter data management system. 
 
Ongoing: The GIS team is working on integrating GIS with the Agency’s Customer Information 
System (CIS) for a self-serve water consumption data extraction web application for internal 
Agency use and is hosted in SharePoint. 
 
Ongoing: The IT team is in the process of moving on-premises business file servers to a cloud 
server environment.  
 
Ongoing: The IT team is moving an imaging and update business server from on-premises to 
the cloud. This will streamline the management of remote devices. 
 
FLEET AND WAREHOUSE 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
Staff participated in the California Air Resources Board (CARB) Truck Regulations 
Implementation Group meeting. 
 
Staff completed ongoing maintenance and repairs of vehicles and equipment. 
 
Staff provided support to a filming event at the Rockefeller yard. 
 
Staff completed the first online auction for Agency surplus vehicles and equipment for disposal. 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff are preparing to apply for grants for electric vehicle charging stations 
 
 
 
 

148



 

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS (B&G) 
 
Key Accomplishments/Activities: 
 
 
Significant Upcoming Items: 
 
Staff is working on lighting upgrades (LED lights) for the warehouse at Pine Street, as well as 
for offices and common areas at Rockefeller. Project completion is at 70%. 
 
B&G is waiting for parts from the Safety department to assist them on this project to bring 
eyewash stations to compliance. This project sits at 10% completion. 
 
Staff is gathering quotations to install new fencing in the parking area of the Rockefeller site to 
enhance security around the perimeter of the site. This project to start early February 2024.  
 
Staff will start working on adding a new fob reader to the back gate at Rio Vista. This will allow 
for the use of fob/ personal code.   
 
RP 

149

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

150



 
BOARD MEMORANDUM 

 
 

               
 
The Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section (TDOMS) provides reliable and high-
quality water through rigorous preventative maintenance programs and timely response to corrective 
action maintenance. Routine inspections and maintenance of each facility is part of the overarching goal 
of TDOMS. Below is a discussion on these activities for the month of November 2023. 
 
TREATMENT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Monthly corrective and preventative maintenance work orders were completed at the following locations: 
 

- Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant (RVWTP) 
- Rio Vista Intake Pump Station (RVIPS) 
- Earl Schmidt Filtration Plant (ESFP)  
- Earl Schmidt Intake Pump Station (ESIPS) 
- Saugus Perchlorate Treatment Facility (SPTF) 
- Castaic and Pitchess Pipelines 
- Recycled Water Pump Station 
- Rio Vista Valve Vault No. 1 
- Saugus Well 1 
- Sand Canyon Reservoir 
- Sand Canyon Pump Station (SCPS) 

 
Preventative and Corrective Maintenance Work Order Summary 

 
Work Orders November 2023 FYTD 2023/24 
Corrective Maintenance 17 136 
Preventative Maintenance 85 414 
Key Action Items Completed: 

- RVWTP – Replacement of 20” Ozone Side Stream Valve; actuator 
installed/calibrated 

- ESFP – Fixed Clarifier screens 7,8, & 9  
- ESFP – Ozone Generator #1 & #3 02 Flow Meters 
- RVIPS – Pump #5 Efficiency Testing 

 
Work in Progress – Treatment 

- SCPS – Pump #3 - Pump/Motor Vibration 
- ESFP – Replace 3 x 500 KCMil Parallel Feeders to MCC-D 

 
 

DATE: December 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors 

FROM: Keith Abercrombie  
Chief Operating Officer 

SUBJECT: Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section Report 

151

ajacobs
Item 9.3

ajacobs
Keith Abercrombie



Completed Work 
- RVWTP – Replacement of 20” Ozone Side Stream Valve; actuator installed/calibrated 
- RVWTP – Replacement of Ozone Destruct Actuator and valve; installed/calibrated 
- ESFP – Fixed clarifier screens 7,8, & 9  
- ESFP – Ozone Generator #1 & #3 02 Flow Meters 
- Valve Vault 2 – Repaired 72” Valve Actuator  
- RVIPS – Pump #5 Efficiency Testing  
- Saugus Well 2 – VFD Upgrades complete and now in service 

 
DISTRIBUTION OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 
General operational and maintenance activities include: 

• Valve exercising 
• Fire hydrant maintenance 
• Air and vacuum valve maintenance 
• Blow off maintenance 
• Meter reading 
• Meter change-outs 
• Control valve maintenance 

 
Work in Progress 

- Vasquez Pipeline – Researching easement. 
- Begonias Lane – Pipeline work complete, RFP for paving posted to PlanetBids December 14,2023 
- Newhall Avenue – Working on RFP’s for surface restoration, traffic loops, saw cutting and traffic 

control 
- Castaic Well 1 Drain Line – Sending commencement of work letter week of December 11, 2023 

 
Completed Work 

- N7 and N8 Well Pipeline Replacement 
- Hasley Hills Regulator Rebuild  
 

Meter Change-out Summary 
 
NWD 
Meter Size November 2023 Quantity FYTD 2023/24 

3/4" 9 31 
1” 4 4 

1 1/2"   
2”   

 
SCWD 
Meter Size November 2023 Quantity FYTD 2023/24 

3/4" 18 172 
1” 1 26 

1 1/2"  14 
2”   

 
VWD 
Meter Size November 2023 Quantity FYTD 2023/24 

3/4" 3 22 
1”  1 

1 1/2"   
2”  2 

152



Distribution System Leak Summary 
NWD – Approx. 9,679 Service Connections 
 
Leak Type November 2023 FYTD 2023/24 
Service Leaks 2 4 
Main Leaks 1 1 

 
SCWD – Approx. 31,218 Service Connections 
Leak Type November 2023 FYTD 2023/24 
Service Leaks  24 
Main Leaks  3 

 
VWD – Approx. 29,974 Service Connections 
Leak Type November 2023 FYTD 2023/24 
Service Leaks 1 27 
Main Leaks 2 2 

 
PRODUCTION OPERATIONS AND WATER SYSTEMS 

In addition to the general operation and maintenance of the production facilities, there are a variety of 
other projects within the Production and Water Systems. 
 
Work in Progress 

- Cal Arts Booster Station, B64 motor failure – Modified pump installed in August, issues still not 
resolved, working with vendor 

- Saugus Well 2 Rehab – Approved by SCV Water Board at its regular meeting on October 17, 
2023, contract awarded to Weber Water Resources; rehabilitation started on November 27, 2023 

- Wells N7 and N8 Pump & Motor Improvement – New pump, motor and VFD approved by SCV 
Water Board at its regular Board meeting on March 22, 2023, equipment on order. VFD specs 
reviewed by electricians, waiting for final specs 

- Olympian (North Oaks) Water Storage Tanks 1 & 4 Tank Coating Project – Remove & replace 
interior lining and spot repair exterior coating, Simpson Sandblasting & Special Coatings lowest 
cost responsible bidder. Approved by SCV Water Board at its regular meeting September 19, 
2023. Work commenced on November 8, 2023 

- Tank mixers to be installed at the Olympian (North Oaks) tanks at completion of the Coating 
Project 

- Villa Booster Station, Rebuild discharge manifold – Designing manifold, to be completed in house 
- Newhall Well 13, Install VFD – Discussing upgrades with vendor. VFD specs reviewed by 

electricians, waiting for final specs  
- Beldove (Copper Hill) 2 Water Storage Tank Coating Project – Remove and replace interior lining 

and spot repair exterior coating, bids received November 2, 2023 
- Rainbow Glen Booster Station Upgrade – Pump & motor upgrade for pump run #1, awaiting cost 

estimate 
- Costs assembled for the installation of a Residual Management System at Lower Heron Tanks. 

Purchase of DeNora ClorTec Onsite Sodium Hypochlorite Generation System was presented to 
E&O Committee on December 7, 2023, and approved by the SCV Water Board on December 19, 
2023 
 

Completed Work 
- Castaic Disinfection Facility (CDF) upgrades – New chemical tanks, chemical pumps and 

electrical / SCADA upgrades – Completed, station returned to service on May 25, 2023 
- Mitchell 5A Well Destruction – Pedestal/well demolished; plan approved by the County, ESS 

awaiting destruction completion report 

153



- Newhall Well 12 Improvements – Rebuild pump and replace column pipe, approved by the SCV 
Water Board at its regular Board meeting on May 16, 2023, work completed, flushed until 
bacteriological samples passed. Well back online August 11, 2023 

- Mitchell 5B Well Rehab – Pump/motor installed, samples returned high PFOA levels, well 
voluntarily removed from service June 23, 2023 

- North Oaks Booster Rebuild – Repairing leak in pump can, raising discharge side – Completed 
August 2023 

 
WATER QUALITY 

Water Quality Complaints 
NWD 
Type of Complaint November 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2023/24 
Hardness   
Odor  2 
Taste   
Color   
Air  1 
Suspended Solids   
Totals   3 

 
SCWD 
Type of Complaint November 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2023/24 
Hardness   
Odor   
Taste   
Color  3 
Air  1 
Suspended Solids   
Totals   4 

 
VWD 
Type of Complaint November 2023 # of Complaints FYTD 2023/24 
Hardness   
Odor  3 
Taste   
Color  1 
Air   
Suspended Solids   
Totals   4 

 
Heterotrophic Plate Count Samples 
NWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected November 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2023/24 
  

SCWD 
Total # of HPCs Collected November 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2023/24 

3 29 
VWD 

Total # of HPCs Collected November 2023 # of HPCs Collected FYTD 2023/24 
 13 

 

154



PERCHLORATE CONTAMINATION PROGRAM MANAGEMENT  
 
As a result of the detection of perchlorate at Well V-201, modifications are being made to the Department 
of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) Remedial Action Plan (RAP) and the perchlorate project DDW 97-
005 Engineering Report. A perchlorate removal facility has been constructed and a Volatile Organic 
Chemical (VOC) removal facility is currently being constructed. Resumption of Well V-201 service will 
occur following receipt of permit from State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) Division of 
Drinking Water (DDW). 
 
In late December 2017, perchlorate was detected at Well V-205 just above the maximum contaminant 
level for drinking water of 6 ppb. A confirmation sample taken in March 2018 indicated a level of 8.1 ppb. 
The well was previously taken out of service in 2012. Design of a treatment system for the removal of 
perchlorate and VOCs is underway.  
 
In May 2019, for the first time since 2005, perchlorate was detected in Alluvial Aquifer Well Q-2 at the 
maximum contaminant level of 6 μg/L. No drinking water quality standards were violated, but the well was 
removed immediately from service. Design and construction of treatment system has been completed. 
The well was returned to service on July 26, 2023. 
 
PFAS  
 
In May 2019, initial sampling for PFAS substances occurred and results were received. One well (Valley 
Center) exceeded Division of Drinking Water Interim Response Level of 70 ng/L and was shut off. Other 
wells exceeded the Interim Notification Levels for PFOS and PFOA. This information was presented to 
the SCV Water Board on June 4, 2019. PFAS sampling for the second quarter was done in August 2019 
with results received in September and October 2019. In February 2020, the State Water Resources 
Control Board Division of Drinking Water issued new response levels; 10 parts per trillion (ppt) for 
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and 40 ppt for perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS.) 
 
SCV Water has taken 25 wells out of service due to PFAS. Three (3) were returned to service in late 
2020 (N, N7, N8) with the completion of the first PFAS Treatment System. One (1) additional well (Valley 
Center) was returned to service in October 2022 with completion of the second PFAS Treatment System.  
 
WATER QUALITY LABORATORY  
 
The renewal application with the Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) has been 
completed, and the laboratory is certified with the new TNI laboratory regulations beginning on 
September 30, 2023, with an expiration date of September 30, 2025. 
 

155



 

156



157



 

158



 

159



 

160



SAFETY/EMERGENCY/RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
A safe and healthy work environment is a critical component to the mission and values of SCV Water. 
Throughout the reporting month, several routine safety related training, inspections, and various other 
items were completed. The Safety Department continues to integrate health and safety programs for SCV 
Water. Some of the items completed and currently in progress are as follows: 
 
Work in Progress 

- Noise Assessment was completed in July 2022. This assessment is being reviewed and the 
Hearing Conservation Plan is being evaluated and revised based in part on this assessment. 
Staff audiograms were conducted on February 15, 2023 

- Ammonia RMP revalidation documents received from consultants. Staff are reviewing and 
completing the recommended actions and incorporating them into the current RMPs 

- Review and update Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasure (SPCC) plan for Pine 
- Revise and update Safety Manual 
- Update Agency’s Emergency Response Plan and further develop Incident Management Team 

 
Inspections 

- Monthly safety inspections of all remote locations and facilities were conducted in November 
2023 

- UST Monthly Designated Operator inspection and Annual UST Certification took place at Rio 
Vista in November 2023 

- CUPA inspection (LA County Fire) took place at Rockefeller in November 2023; no violations 
observed 

- Evaluated fire safety in GT trailers in November 2023 
- Annual risk assessment / site visit from JPIA risk control advisor took place November 9, 2023 
 

Incident Data 
- The Agency had no recordable incidents for the month of November 2023 
 

Safety Training 
- Tailgate meetings took place at GT, Pine, Rio Vista, and Rockefeller in November 2023 
- New Hire Safety and Emergency Training took place in November 2023 
- CPR/AED/FA certification classes took place in November 2023 
- Select Agency staff attended 40-hour HAZWOPER class in November 2023 
- Conducted hands-on fire extinguisher training with various work groups in November 2023 
 

Environmental Health and Safety Compliance 
- Respirator Medical Evaluations and Fit Testing (Annual and New Hire) 
- Scheduled DOT Medical Evaluations  
- Drying bed waste / sludge was removed from RVWTP and ESFP disposed of at Kettleman 

Landfill 
- Evaluating four-Gas Detectors for use in Confined Space activities  
- Began preparations for 3-year internal compliance audit for Chlorine RMP  

 
Safety Awards / Grants 

- FEMA/CalOES Covid Disaster Grant #4482DR-CA  
o Project # 140459 was fully funded on June 5, 2023 ($40,900) 
o Project # 140458 was fully funded on July 31, 2020 ($34,380) 

 
Safety Committee 

- The next Safety Committee meeting will be held on February 14, 2024 

161

ajacobs
Steve Cole



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

162



 
 

 BOARD MEMORANDUM 
 
 

               
 
WATER RESOURCES 
 
Key Accomplishments 

 
• Staff has nearly concluded participating in the County’s Safe Clean Water Program (Measure W) 

Metrics and Monitoring Study (MMS). This effort was designed to develop program metrics and 
monitoring criteria through stakeholder involvement, technical research, and modeling. The County 
will consider recommendations from its different groups, including the MMS, to revise and clarify its 
metrics and processes. 
 

• After Board approval, Staff completed the Water Supply Verification for Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B 
& C) and submitted it to the City of Santa Clarita on December 7, 2023. 
 

2023 & 2024 Operation Details 
 
• Climate Pattern – La Nina conditions experienced the last three years came to an end in February 

2023. Patterns shifted to El Niño - Southern Oscillation (ENSO) Neutral conditions in March 2023 
and have since shifted to El Nino conditions in June 2023. Strong El Nino conditions have 
historically brought warmer and wetter conditions to California. November 2023 NOAA updates 
anticipate 62% chance El Nino conditions will continue into April-June 2024.  
 

• State Water Project (SWP) Allocation – The 2023 SWP Table A Allocation started at 5% and was 
finalized at 100% in April 2023. The initial 2024 SWP Table A Allocation was released at 10% in 
December 2023 reflecting the dry fall conditions. 
 

• Demands – Due to extremely wet hydrology locally and statewide, as well as cool spring 
temperatures, 2023 final demands are estimated at approximately 54,000 AF. 

 
• Banking Program Operations – All banking recoveries were halted in January 2023 due to early 

and very wet hydrology. Banking operations shifted to recharge in March 2023. As of 
November 30, 2023, there is an estimated 112,500 AF stored in our water banking programs. 

 
o Rosedale-Rio Bravo (RRB) Banking Program – Recharge of 20,000 AF (minus losses) was 

completed by end of September 2023. Water recharged was a combination of SWP Table A 
and a small portion of back up supplies evacuated from San Luis Reservoir. 
 

o Semitropic Stored Water Recovery Unit (SWRU) – Recharge of 5,500 AF (minus losses) is 
anticipated to be completed by end of December 2023. 

DATE: December 18, 2023 

TO:  Board of Directors  

FROM: Steve Cole  
Assistant General Manager   

SUBJECT: Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 

163

ajacobs
Item 9.4



2 
 

 
• Water Exchanges/Transfers –  

 
o SCV Water successfully executed a transfer agreement with the Westside 5 Districts for a 

2023 transfer. Agreement terms permit a transfer of up to 15,000 AF of SCV Water’s SWP 
2023 Table A supply to be delivered by December 31, 2023. Westside 5 and SCV Water 
have agreed to a maximum of 12,500 AF for the total transfer. 
 

o SCV Water successfully executed a transfer agreement with United Water Conservation 
District (UWCD). The transfer terms permit SCV Water to sell up to 10,000 AF of SWP Table 
A supplies to UWCD by December 31, 2023. UWCD has scheduled delivery of all 10,000 AF 
by the end of December 2023. 

 
o SCV Water fully executed an exchange agreement with Rosedale Rio-Bravo Water Storage 

District (RRB) to exchange surplus SCV Water Table A supplies in 2023. This will be a 2:1 
unbalanced exchange using SCV Waters’s Table A supplies (up to 20,000 AF). All 
exchange water from SCV Water will be delivered to RRB in 2023, with a 10-year term for 
RRB to return water to SCV Water. Rosedale estimates delivery of 11,000 to 12,000 AF of 
Table A supplies by the end of December 2023. Due to constraints on the Cross Valley 
Canal (CVC) conveyance from the SWP aqueduct to recharge basins, Rosedale does not 
anticipate capacity for execution of the full 20,000 AF exchange. 

 
o Staff is participating in discussions regarding extension of the Yuba Accord Water Transfer 

Agreement beyond its current term which expires in 2025. 
 
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Implementation 
 
The SCV-GSA Board met on October 2, 2023, and discussed the progress and plans of the groundwater 
flow model calibration and the revision on the sustainable management criteria. Staff will complete 
current tasks related to the flow model, and based on DWR’s recent advisement, consider the DWR 
comments on the adopted Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) before submitting any amendments to 
the GSP. Staff will also propose a process and a timeline for presenting any amendments to the GSP to 
the public and the SCV-GSA Board for approval after receiving the DWR comments on the adopted GSP.  
 
During October 2023, biologic consultants conducted the second annual evaluation of groundwater 
dependent ecosystems in the Santa Clara River and reviewed (for the first time) certain upland habitat 
conditions. Final reports on this work are expected in January 2024. 
 
Efforts to prepare the SCV-GSAs next (and third) annual report are underway, with expected Board 
consideration in spring 2024. Staff are also now spending time on reviewing new private well permits in 
the basin, due to an Executive Order by Governor Newsom.  
 
Significant Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff is preparing documentation and a user-manual to train internal SCV Water staff on the use of 

the GoldSim Water Supply Reliability Model. 
 

• Staff continues to work with Woodard and Curran to refine the Online New Drop Database. An 
expanded reporting feature is expected to be completed by the end of December 2023 allowing for 
additional information to be queried and added to the existing template reports provided on the 
portal. Customer service is also conducting a QA/QC process to ensure that every drop is captured 
in the quarterly reports to the Regional Board. A few navigation bugs were identified by customer 

164



3 
 

service staff and fixed in November 2023. However, a few bugs affecting data exports are still being 
investigated and resolved. 

 
• Staff, including SCV Water’s IT and Operations staff, have been working with consultants to 

incorporate groundwater elevation data into a new web-based Data Management System (DMS). 
Use of this web based DMS allows SCV Water to have more efficient access to up-to-date 
groundwater elevation plots for the GSP wells including those needed for Groundwater 
Sustainability Plan compliance. Currently, this new DMS is focused on GSP wells, but a scope of 
work is currently under development so that the database can be scaled up to include other SCV 
Water wells. This new DMS is now hosted on SCV Water’s servers and will ultimately allow staff to 
efficiently access data directly, as opposed to sending requests to consultants or other staff 
members.  
 

• As part of GSP implementation, two adjacent groundwater recharge sites were selected on the east 
end of the Santa Clara River Basin for inclusion in the recharge feasibility study being conducted with 
the help of GSI technical consultants. A time extension to the Sustainable Groundwater Management 
Grant (through February 2024) was secured to enable completion of additional groundwater 
modeling for the feasibility studies along with a memorandum describing the next steps in the 
process of implementing a full-scale recharge project. The final feasibility report will be completed by 
December 2023 once the additional modeling is evaluated, the findings are added to the final report, 
and the next steps recharge project implementation memo is finalized. Staff is planning a 
presentation to the Water Resources and Watershed Committee in February 2024. 
 

• Staff continues engagement in a data management effort to identify opportunities for streamlining 
certain data collection and post-processing efforts. This project is primarily focused on all data 
flowing to the Water Resources team. Data collection efforts are underway to gain an understanding 
of the extent of information collected by the various departments, the reports that each department 
generates, and existing methods/tools used for data organization within the Agency.  

 
• The work on the water resources data management effort has led several staff members to join an 

Agency-wide data governance task force. Staff will be working with Technology Services and GIS on 
developing a data governance work plan with the following tasks: 1) Data Governance Objectives; 
2) Framework and Principles; 3) Roles and Responsibilities; 4) Policies and Procedures; 5) Data 
Quality and Integrity; 6) Privacy, Security, and Compliance; 7) Governance Technology and Tools; 
and 8) Implementation Plan and Timeline.   
 

• Staff has contracted with GDS Associates to complete a solar analysis of the Devil’s Den property to 
determine if solar generation at the property is viable. If the analysis is favorable, GDS Associates 
will work with staff to prepare a marketing plan and RFP to find solar generation developers 
interested in leasing the property. GDS was also engaged to review a solar lease proposal from 
Intersect Power. 

 
• The Sites Reservoir Authority received a response to its water rights application from the State Water 

Resources Control Board (SWRCB). The Board requested additional information regarding water 
availability if future Delta Water Quality Control Plans being considered by the SWRCB are enacted. 
Sites authority has responded and provided information requested. On November 17, 2023, the Sites 
Project Authority (Sites), as the lead agency under the California Environmental Quality Act, certified 
the Final Environmental Impact Report (Final EIR) and approved the Sites Reservoir Project 
(Project). With this certification, Sites will be working to move the project forward through the final 
planning stages and on to construction. SCV Water staff met with Sites staff at ACWA to get updates 
on the planned next steps. 

 

165



4 
 

• To maximize the beneficial uses of recycled water and adhere to pending and/or future 
environmental requirements, staff is working with Woodard and Curran and Trussell Technologies to 
develop a Scope of Work (SOW) to include in a future RFP to update SCV Water’s Recycled Water 
Master Plan. A second draft of the SOW was received on June 7, 2023, and after review by staff, a 
copy was shared with the Sanitation District (SD) to capture additional input. On November 15, 2023, 
the Sanitation District provided comments on the SOW. Based on the latest feedback, staff will be 
meeting in January 2024 to further develop interested party engagement strategies and discuss 
various additional collaborative options that can be incorporated into the SOW.  
 

• Staff continues to work with Environmental Science Associates (ESA) on the development of the 
California Environmental Flows Framework (CEFF) for the East Basin Santa Clara River, which aims 
to improve river ecological function. The Habitat Suitability Model (HSM), as part of the CEFF 
analysis, and preliminary observations on existing conditions have been completed. A presentation 
on the CEFF work completed to date was given at the June 2023 Water Resources and Watershed 
Committee meeting. Staff reached out to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife to enhance 
information sharing venues and understanding of Agency needs regarding Santa Clara River 
management.  
 

• Staff began working on a framework to develop ecological and management objectives for the Upper 
Santa Clara River watershed, which will allow the agency to finalize the CEFF analysis. As part of 
the work, staff began engaging with California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) and has 
planned a series of meetings to inform CDFW staff on various agency planning efforts such as the 
GSP, the CEFF analysis, and the Water Resilience Initiative. As objectives are developed, staff will 
engage with the Water Resources and Watershed Committee to seek input and direction. 

 
• Staff is currently learning the PowerBI data visualization software to create custom interactive well 

production and groundwater level reports. Draft versions of the reports are available in Microsoft 
Teams and are currently undergoing a quality check for accuracy and functionality by staff. The 
dashboard was also recently updated with the latest groundwater and production information through 
November 2023. Development of these skills will allow for in-house customization of PowerBI reports 
produced by consultants that are managing the GSP database and the Operations data warehouse.  

 
• Staff is in the process of completing both the cessation or reduction report and the groundwater 

extraction report for agency wells. These reports will be submitted to the State Water Resources 
Control Board by the end of January 2024.  

 
• Staff has issued a Request for a Task Order Proposal for Integrated Groundwater Management. The 

solicitation was issued via email to a subset of the bench of consultants that qualified under the 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) released in the Fall of 2023. Evaluations and processing awarded 
contracts will be performed in accordance with Agency purchasing policy.  
 

• Staff will be working with Woodard and Curran (W&C) to update the Salt and Nutrient Management 
Plan spreadsheet model. W&C recently updated a portion of the spreadsheet model to complete an 
anti-degradation analysis for a specific management zone to submit a Notice of Intent for the Phase 
2B recycled water project. Staff is developing a scope of work in order to expand this previous effort 
to include additional management zones. The model update will be completed in support of the data 
needs of the annual GSP report. Work is expected to begin in January 2024.  

 

166



5 
 

COMMUNICATIONS, LEGISLATION AND GRANTS 
 
Key Accomplishments 
 
• Staff promoted Conservation’s WaterSmart Workshop with the Chamber and VIA in December 2023, 

as prepared ValPak direct mail ads for January and February 2024.  
 

• The Communications Manager attended the ACWA Fall Conference and participated in sessions that 
provided vital updates on the Delta Conveyance Project, as well as the Making Conservation a 
California Way of Life framework. 

 
• Staff attended the City of Santa Clarita’s Family Literacy Festival on December 2, 2023 at the Old 

Town Newhall Library. The event featured a science theme and included a vendor expo, crafting 
activities and more. 

 
Legislative/Government Affairs 

 
Upcoming Sponsorships and Event Participation 
 
• Urban Water Institute (UWI) 2024 Spring Conference – February 21-23, 2024 
• ACWA 2024 Spring Conference – May 7-9, 2024 

 
Community Events 
 
• Adulting 101 (JCI Santa Clarita) – February 28, 2024 
• Santa Clarita Home and Garden Show – April 27-28, 2024 

 
Outreach – Social/Digital Media & Education 
 

Outlet Description Notable Activity Audience 

Facebook 
Social media 

Across all three platforms in November 2023 1.2K 
Instagram    Total Engagement:   1,456 (all outlets)  1,773 
Twitter    Total Impressions:   15,117 (all outlets) 1,300 
Website yourSCVwater.com Website visitors in November 2023 ~18,000 
 Top visited pages: 1. Homepage 

2. Customer Care  

Water Currents Customer e-newsletter Open rate for November 2023 – 55% (Average 
industry open rate: 21.64%)  16,103 

 
Public 

Education -
2023 

Activity 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov De

c  2023  2022 

Education                
Students 958 898 1208  705 1,411 294 75* 56 464 738 572  7,379 6,883 
Teachers  76 77 113 59 100 20 32 2 39 58 40   616 371 

Garden 
Classes 
(virtual and 
in-person**) 

35** 49 23** 34 13 18** 12 11 9 14** 10  228  520 

* Data not yet available 
* July – Scouts Program 
** In-person class 
 

167



6 
 

Grants 
 

• California’s ongoing drought and Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-7-22 have rendered the 
development of Rosedale Phase 2 Wells Project infeasible at this time. Staff, with the assistance of 
Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District, is investigating the possibility of moving BOR 
WaterSmart DRP Program grant funding ($1.46M) to an alternate project within the Rosedale area 
which develops dry year water supply recovery (the same benefit as the grant funded project).  
 

• The BOR has released its Notice of Funding Opportunity for the FY 2024 and FY 2025 WaterSmart 
Water & Energy Efficiency Grant programs, which may fund up to $5M per fiscal year opportunity. 
Staff is exploring project options for the FY 2024 funding opportunity, an application for which must 
be submitted by February 22, 2024.  Applications under the FY 2025 opportunity are due October 
2024. 

 
Significant Ongoing or Upcoming Items 

 
• Staff created dedicated webpages for two upcoming water supply reliability projects – the Delta 

Conveyance Project (yourSCVwater.com/delta-conveyance) and Sites Reservoir Project 
(yourSCVwater.com/sites-reservoir-project). The webpages provide information on SCV Water’s 
involvement in the projects and links to the latest news and project documents, as updates are 
available. 

 
• Staff continues to develop a digital accessibility implementation plan. Staff conducted a demo in early 

December 2023 with Equidox, a vendor specializing in digital accessibility, and continues to research 
potential solutions.  
  

• Staff is assisting various departments with a number of outreach efforts, including:  
 

o Customer Care: Staff created the annual calendar bill insert, which includes the 2024 Board 
meeting schedule as well as other important information about Customer Care, the Ratepayer 
Assistance Program, attending SCV Water meetings and reporting water waste. Distribution in 
all customer bills is anticipated in December 2023. 

 
o Engineering: Coordinating communications with potentially affected businesses, as well as 

schools that may be impacted by the pipeline replacement projects on Dickason and Smyth. 
 
o Finance: Design of the Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR), which is anticipated to be 

completed before the end of December 2023. 
 
o Water Resources: Design of the 2022 SCV Water Report. The project is anticipated to be 

completed in early 2024. 
 
o Conservation: Staff is developing an outreach and communications plan to develop and share 

stories for Conservation in Action. This new effort will highlight various customers and 
customer groups for all they do to conserve water. Their stories will be shared across various 
outreach platforms and become a resource for others looking to make changes and save 
water. The campaign is anticipated to kick off in January 2024. 

 
o Conservation: Staff is developing outreach for the “great leak sweep”. This new outreach and 

education effort is geared towards commercial and business customers. Conservation will 
partner with WaterWise to implement the program. Not only will the program look for leaks, but 

168



7 
 

it will also compile relevant data that will help define the conservation long-term framework. 
This is anticipated to begin in January 2024. 

 
o Conservation: Staff will assist Conservation and their partner, GreenMedia Creations, in 

developing outreach materials for their community pop-ups. Conservation will work with local 
HOAs to host “Coffee and Conservation” pop-ups that will touch on various outdoor water-
saving topics such as irrigation. This is anticipated to begin in 2024. 

 
SUSTAINABILITY AND CONSERVATION 
 
Key Accomplishments 
   
• Conservation staff attended the California Water Efficiency Partnership’s Research and Evaluation 

Committee meeting on November 16, 2023. 
 
• Conservation staff, in collaboration with the Communications Team, completed the “Get More from 

Your Landscapes” video to promote climate ready landscapes and lawn replacement program 
participation.  

 
• Staff, in collaboration with the Communications Team, launched planning and material needs for the 

upcoming “SCV Water Champions – Great Leak Sweep” initiative which is scheduled to start in early 
2024. The program will work with commercial, industrial, and institutional customers to identify leaks, 
document faucet and fixture inventory, identify EnergyStar sub-classification, and disseminate 
marketing and education information.  

  
• Staff, in collaboration with SCV Water’s Grants Administrator, worked to finalize the scope of work for 

the Bureau of Reclamation’s WaterSMART Grant. The grant is expected to share program costs for 
the Agency’s multifamily apartment program (WEW), healthy and efficient landscape programs 
(HELP), and the lawn replacement program (LRP).  

 
• Conservation staff attended and presented, via panel, during the California Water Efficiency 

Partnerships December 2023 plenary meeting and attended the Board meeting where staff currently 
serves as member of the CalWEP Board of Directors. 

 
• Staff disseminated holiday materials to internal Agency staff on various sustainability opportunities. 

The holiday sustainability tips are the result of recommendations from SCV Water’s Green Team.  
 

• Staff, with consultant support, completed weed removal at the Agency’s solar fields.  
 

Status of SCV Water Drought Response 
 
This section provides a condensed version of monthly drought updates and includes an overview of 
current statewide regulatory status.  
 
Regulatory Overview  

Entity/Agency Regulatory Status Notes 

 
 
Governor 
Newsom 

• Voluntary 15% v. 2020 Call (July 8, 2021) 
• Statewide Drought Emergency Declaration (October 

19, 2021) 
• EO N-7-22 directs the SWRCB to require Stage/Level 

2 Water Shortage Response implementation and for 
the Water Board consider defining and prohibiting the 

• April 1, 2021 (2 Counties) 
• May 10, 2021 (Extended to 41 

Counties) 
• July 8, 2021 (Extended to 50 

Counties) 
• October 19, 2021 (Extended to 

169



8 
 

watering of non-functional turf. (March 28, 2022) 
• EO N-5-23 removes voluntary conservation call of 15% 

of 2020 and rescinds call directing SWRCB to take 
action requiring State 2 Shortage Plan measure 
implementation. The Drought Emergency Declaration 
remains in effect as well as emergency regulations 
regarding the prohibition of specific water waste 
measures and the banning of irrigating non-functional 
turf with potable water.  (March 24, 2023) 

Statewide) 
• March 24, 2023 (Statewide Drought 

Emergency Continuation) 

 
 
State Water 
Resources 
Control 
Board 

• Readopted Emergency Regulations (December 2022) 
• Readopted Emergency Regulation banning the 

irrigation of non-functional turf with potable water (June 
2023) 

• Emergency regulations include 
water waste restrictions and 
provisions specific to HOA CCR 
implementation. 

• SCV Water preparing 2nd Non-
Functional Turf engagement and 
education initiative to promote “Turn 
it off, Cap it, or Convert it!” 

 
 
SCV Water 

• Deactivation of Stage 2 WSCP and Ordinance No. 2 
(July 11, 2023) 
 

• Norman/Planned Conservation 
levels are 2-3% annual reductions in 
gallons per person per day 
compared to 2010 baseline (272 
GPCD) 

 

170



9 
 

 
 

171

ajacobs
Matt Stone



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[This page intentionally left blank.] 

172



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

Dec 5 Board
Dec 7 Comm
Dec 19 Board
Jan 2 Board
Jan 4 Comm
Jan 16 Board
Feb 1 Comm
Feb 6 Board
Feb 20 Board
March 5 Board
March 7 Comm
March 19 Board
April 2 Board
April 4 Comm
April 16 Board
May 2 Comm
May 7 Board
May 21 Board
June 4 Board
Jun 6 Comm
June 18 Board
July 2 Board

M
on

th
ly

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 P

la
nn

in
g 

C
al

en
da

r
C

P
P

P
P

P
P

C
IP

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
St

at
us

 R
ep

or
t

C
P

P
P

P
P

P
M

on
th

ly
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 a
nd

 P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

R
ep

or
t

C
P

P
P

P
P

P
Th

ird
 P

ar
ty

 F
un

de
d 

Ag
re

em
en

ts
 Q

ua
rte

rly
 R

ep
or

t
P

P
Q

ua
rte

rly
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

P
P

G
en

er
al

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 P

re
se

nt
at

io
n

An
nu

al
 S

af
et

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
 U

pd
at

e
R

ea
l P

ro
pe

rty
 A

ct
iv

ity
 R

ep
or

t
P

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 C
on

si
de

r t
he

 P
ro

po
se

d 
FY

 2
02

4/
25

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
25

/2
6 

C
ap

ita
l 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
je

ct
s

P

Ta
x-

D
ef

au
lte

d 
Pr

op
er

tie
s 

T
T

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 C
om

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

10
 Y

ea
r C

ap
ita

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

je
ct

s 
Pl

an

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

, P
ur

su
an

t t
o 

a 
Pr

ev
io

us
ly

 A
do

pt
ed

 A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 th
e 

Ad
op

te
d 

20
05

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 C
on

ta
in

m
en

t, 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t, 

an
d 

R
es

to
ra

tio
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
N

D
 a

nd
 M

M
R

P,
 o

f a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 to

 L
ee

 &
 R

o,
 In

c 
fo

r P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
Fi

na
l 

D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r W

el
ls

 2
06

 a
nd

 2
07

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
Pr

oj
ec

t

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 A

pp
ly

 
fo

r F
un

di
ng

 fr
om

 th
e 

Bu
re

au
 o

f R
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
W

at
er

SM
AR

T 
D

ro
ug

ht
 R

es
po

ns
e 

Pr
og

ra
m

 a
nd

 A
cc

ep
t a

nd
 E

xe
cu

te
 a

 G
ra

nt
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

N
ew

ha
ll 

W
el

ls
 

(N
11

, N
12

, N
13

) G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 a

 C
at

eg
or

ic
al

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

U
nd

er
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 a
 C

at
eg

or
ic

al
 E

xc
lu

si
on

 U
nd

er
 

N
EP

A,
 fo

r t
he

 A
pp

ro
va

l o
f t

he
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

of
 a

 D
eN

or
a 

C
lo

rT
ec

 O
ns

ite
 S

od
iu

m
 

H
yp

oc
hl

or
ite

 G
en

er
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 fo

r t
he

 L
ow

er
 H

er
on

 R
es

id
ua

l M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Sy
st

em
 (L

H
R

M
S)

C
C

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e 

C
- C

om
pl

et
ed

 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 4

173

tbell
9.5



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

Dec 5 Board
Dec 7 Comm
Dec 19 Board
Jan 2 Board
Jan 4 Comm
Jan 16 Board
Feb 1 Comm
Feb 6 Board
Feb 20 Board
March 5 Board
March 7 Comm
March 19 Board
April 2 Board
April 4 Comm
April 16 Board
May 2 Comm
May 7 Board
May 21 Board
June 4 Board
Jun 6 Comm
June 18 Board
July 2 Board

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 a

 C
at

eg
or

ic
al

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

U
nd

er
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 a
 C

at
eg

or
ic

al
 E

xc
lu

si
on

 U
nd

er
 

N
EP

A,
 A

w
ar

di
ng

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r B
el

do
ve

 (C
op

pe
r H

ill)
 2

 W
at

er
 S

to
ra

ge
 T

an
k 

C
oa

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
Po

ly
te

ch
 In

du
st

ria
l, 

In
c.

C

D
is

cu
ss

 a
nd

 P
ro

vi
de

 F
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 a
n 

O
ut

-o
f-A

ge
nc

y 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Ag

re
em

en
t 

w
ith

 P
ar

ad
is

e 
R

an
ch

 E
st

at
es

 M
ob

ile
 H

om
e 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ad
va

nc
in

g 
an

 
Ag

re
em

en
t t

o 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r F

ul
l C

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 
T

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 to
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

Ap
pr

ox
im

at
el

y 
11

,2
20

 A
M

I C
om

pa
tib

le
 

M
et

er
s

P
P

Li
ce

ns
e 

fo
r V

er
iz

on
 W

ire
le

ss
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 F

ac
ilit

y 
at

 W
hi

te
s 

C
an

yo
n 

Ta
nk

 
(fo

rm
er

ly
 k

no
w

n 
as

 S
ky

 B
lu

e)
 S

ite
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r H

on
by

 T
an

k 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 a

 C
at

eg
or

ic
al

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

U
nd

er
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 a
 C

at
eg

or
ic

al
 E

xc
lu

si
on

 U
nd

er
 

N
EP

A,
 A

w
ar

di
ng

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r B
el

do
ve

 (C
op

pe
r H

ill)
 2

 W
at

er
 S

to
ra

ge
 T

an
k 

C
oa

tin
g 

Pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
Si

m
ps

on
 S

an
db

la
st

in
g 

& 
Sp

ec
ia

l C
oa

tin
gs

, I
nc

.

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r M

ag
ic

 M
ou

nt
ai

n 
Pi

pe
lin

e 
Ph

as
es

 1
 - 

3 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Ac
ce

ss
 M

od
ifi

ca
tio

ns
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

pu
rs

ua
nt

 to
 a

 C
at

eg
or

ic
al

 E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

U
nd

er
 C

EQ
A 

G
ui

de
lin

es
 S

ec
tio

n 
15

30
1,

 a
nd

 a
 C

at
eg

or
ic

al
 E

xc
lu

si
on

 U
nd

er
 

N
EP

A,
 A

w
ar

di
ng

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 fo

r R
io

 V
is

ta
 W

at
er

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

 P
LC

 C
on

tro
lle

r 
U

pg
ra

de
 P

ro
je

ct
 to

 R
oy

al
 In

du
st

ria
l S

ol
ut

io
ns

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f t

he
 P

ip
el

in
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r N

ew
ha

ll 
Av

en
ue

 fr
om

 
M

ar
ke

t S
tre

et
 to

 P
in

e 
St

re
et

 
P

P

R
io

 V
is

ta
 F

ilt
er

 R
eh

ab
ilit

at
io

n 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
P

P

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e 

C
- C

om
pl

et
ed

 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 4

174



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

Dec 5 Board
Dec 7 Comm
Dec 19 Board
Jan 2 Board
Jan 4 Comm
Jan 16 Board
Feb 1 Comm
Feb 6 Board
Feb 20 Board
March 5 Board
March 7 Comm
March 19 Board
April 2 Board
April 4 Comm
April 16 Board
May 2 Comm
May 7 Board
May 21 Board
June 4 Board
Jun 6 Comm
June 18 Board
July 2 Board

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
an

d 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

s 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r P
ha

se
 2

C
 S

ou
th

 E
nd

 R
ec

yc
le

d 
W

at
er

 M
ai

n 
Ex

te
ns

io
n

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
fo

r P
ip

el
in

e 
to

 L
os

 A
ng

el
es

 R
es

id
en

tia
l C

om
m

un
ity

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Aw
ar

di
ng

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

on
tra

ct
 a

nd
 

Pu
rc

ha
se

 O
rd

er
s 

fo
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 
En

gi
ne

er
in

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 D

ur
in

g 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

fo
r t

he
 W

el
l 2

05
 G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
fo

r T
&U

 W
el

ls
 P

FA
S 

Tr
ea

tm
en

t, 
Sa

ug
us

 1
 a

nd
 2

 V
O

C
 T

re
at

m
en

t, 
an

d 
D

is
in

fe
ct

io
n 

Fa
ci

lit
y

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f O

n-
C

al
l E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
/o

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r R

VW
TP

 S
ew

er
lin

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

In
iti

al
 S

tu
dy

-M
iti

ga
te

d 
N

eg
at

iv
e 

D
ec

la
ra

tio
n 

U
nd

er
 th

e 
C

al
ifo

rn
ia

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l Q
ua

lit
y 

Ac
t a

nd
 a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

a 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

 to
 H

az
en

 a
nd

 S
aw

ye
r f

or
 F

in
al

 D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

N
ew

ha
ll 

W
el

ls
 (N

11
, N

12
, N

13
) G

ro
un

dw
at

er
 T

re
at

m
en

t I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Pr
oj

ec
t

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f a

 R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Au
th

or
iz

in
g 

Sa
nt

a 
C

la
rit

a 
Va

lle
y 

W
at

er
 

Ag
en

cy
 to

 P
ro

vi
de

 W
at

er
 Q

ua
lit

y 
La

bo
ra

to
ry

 T
es

tin
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 to
 th

e 
St

at
e 

of
 

C
al

ifo
rn

ia
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
P

P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

in
g 

G
en

er
al

 M
an

ag
er

 to
 

Ex
ec

ut
e 

a 
(1

) F
in

an
ci

ng
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t w
ith

 th
e 

St
at

e 
W

at
er

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

on
tro

l 
Bo

ar
d 

fo
r C

on
so

lid
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
N

ew
 M

in
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 a

nd
 (2

) C
on

so
lid

at
io

n 
an

d 
W

at
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
N

ew
 M

in
t A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n.

P
P

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 4

175



En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

an
d 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

Dec 5 Board
Dec 7 Comm
Dec 19 Board
Jan 2 Board
Jan 4 Comm
Jan 16 Board
Feb 1 Comm
Feb 6 Board
Feb 20 Board
March 5 Board
March 7 Comm
March 19 Board
April 2 Board
April 4 Comm
April 16 Board
May 2 Comm
May 7 Board
May 21 Board
June 4 Board
Jun 6 Comm
June 18 Board
July 2 Board

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
an

d 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

s 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r S
m

yt
h 

Pi
pe

lin
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
an

d 
Pu

rc
ha

se
 O

rd
er

s 
fo

r C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 In
sp

ec
tio

n 
Se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

Se
rv

ic
es

 D
ur

in
g 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
fo

r V
al

en
ci

a 
M

ar
ke

t P
la

ce
 P

ip
el

in
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r N

-W
el

ls
 D

ra
in

ag
e 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 
fo

r S
au

gu
s 

W
el

ls
 3

 &
 4

 (R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t W
el

ls
) W

el
l E

qu
ip

m
en

t a
nd

 S
ite

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 P

ro
je

ct
.

P
P

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f A

do
pt

in
g 

a 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Aw

ar
di

ng
 a

 P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

 fo
r 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r S

an
d 

C
an

yo
n 

Se
w

er
lin

e
P

P

P 
- P

la
nn

ed
 

T-
Te

nt
at

iv
e

C
-C

om
pl

et
ed

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 4

176



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (cancelled)

Oct 17 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

Mar 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

1

R
ec

om
m

en
d 

Ap
pr

ov
al

 o
f R

es
ol

ut
io

ns
 S

et
tin

g 
Sa

nt
a 

C
la

rit
a 

Va
lle

y 
W

at
er

 A
ge

nc
y 

Ta
x 

R
at

e 
fo

r F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

an
d 

R
eq

ue
st

in
g 

Le
vy

 o
f T

ax
 b

y 
Lo

s 
An

ge
le

s 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
Ve

nt
ur

a 
C

ou
nt

y 
(c

on
se

nt
 - 

m
ov

ed
 u

p 
du

e 
to

 7
-4

 c
an

ce
lle

d 
Bo

ar
d)

C

2
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
O

ffi
ci

al
 

St
at

em
en

t
C

3
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
pr

il 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

4
D

is
cu

ss
 a

nd
 R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ac

tio
ns

 fo
r G

ro
un

d 
Le

as
e 

Pr
op

er
ty

 a
t 2

27
22

 S
ol

ed
ad

 C
an

yo
n 

R
oa

d
C

5
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Au

th
or

iz
in

g 
FY

 2
02

3/
24

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

y 
C

on
tra

ct
 P

ay
m

en
ts

 
(c

on
se

nt
)

C
C

.

6
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 P

re
m

ie
r 

Pr
op

er
ty

 P
re

se
rv

at
io

n 
fo

r J
an

ito
ria

l S
er

vi
ce

s
C

C

7
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

ur
ch

as
in

g 
Po

lic
y

C
C

8
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 M
ay

 2
02

3 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

9
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

C

10
In

ve
st

m
en

t A
dv

is
or

 F
in

an
ci

al
 M

ar
ke

t U
pd

at
e

C

11
D

is
cu

ss
 W

at
er

 A
ffo

rd
ab

ilit
y 

St
ud

y
C

12
R

ev
ie

w
 F

in
an

ci
ng

 P
la

n 
Sc

en
ar

io
s

C

13
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 P

os
iti

on
 

C
on

tro
l

C

14
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 S

ur
pl

us
 P

ol
ic

y
C

C

15
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 R
at

ep
ay

er
 

Ad
vo

ca
te

 P
ro

ce
ss

 a
nd

 P
ro

vi
de

 D
ire

ct
io

n 
R

el
at

ed
 to

 
R

at
ep

ay
er

 A
dv

oc
at

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

on
tra

ct
C

C

16
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
un

e 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
22

/2
3 

Fo
ur

th
 Q

ua
rte

r F
in

an
ci

al
 

R
ep

or
t

C
C

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 4

12
/2

6/
20

23

177



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (cancelled)

Oct 17 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

Mar 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

17
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
Ad

op
tin

g 
a 

R
ev

is
ed

 In
ve

st
m

en
t P

ol
ic

y 
- (

An
nu

al
ly

 a
do

pt
ed

 v
ia

 
re

so
) (

co
ns

en
t)

C
C

18
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f t
he

 F
irs

t A
dd

en
du

m
 to

 th
e 

G
ro

un
d 

Le
as

e 
fo

r t
he

 P
ro

pe
rty

 a
t 2

27
22

 S
ol

ed
ad

 
C

an
yo

n 
R

oa
d

C
C

19
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f P
ur

ch
as

e 
of

 T
w

o 
(2

) 
Ba

ck
ho

e 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
ts

 fo
r A

ge
nc

y 
Fl

ee
t

C
C

20
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Po

lic
y

C
C

21
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

C
C

22
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
ul

y 
20

23
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

C

23
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
n 

H
C

M
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 A
pp

s 
As

so
ci

at
es

C
P

24
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

O
rd

er
 fo

r 
Fl

ee
t R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t V

eh
ic

le
s

C
P

25
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 C

on
tra

ct
 R

en
ew

al
 w

ith
 

Sy
st

em
s 

& 
So

ftw
ar

e,
 In

c.
 fo

r e
nQ

ue
st

a 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Sy

st
em

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 S
up

po
rt

C
P

26
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 D

riv
in

g 
an

d 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
Po

lic
y

C
P

27
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l N
o.

 1
0:

 O
ve

rti
m

e
C

P

28
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
ug

us
t 2

02
3 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
C

P

29
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
23

 M
on

th
ly

 a
nd

 F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

Fi
rs

t Q
ua

rte
r 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l R
ep

or
t (

no
t c

on
se

nt
)

C
P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 2

 o
f 4

12
/2

6/
20

23

178



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (cancelled)

Oct 17 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

Mar 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

30
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 S
C

V 
W

at
er

 
An

nu
al

 C
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

AC
FR

) 
en

de
d 

Ju
ne

 3
0,

 2
02

3
C

P

31
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
n 

H
C

M
 Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

C
on

tra
ct

 w
ith

 A
pp

s 
As

so
ci

at
es

C
P

32
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 to

 D
ire

ct
 th

e 
G

en
er

al
 

M
an

ag
er

 to
 E

nt
er

 In
to

 a
 C

on
tra

ct
 w

ith
 P

la
ne

tB
id

s
C

P

33
R

ev
ie

w
 F

ac
ilit

y 
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
 (F

C
F)

 R
ev

en
ue

s 
an

d 
St

ud
y 

C
om

po
ne

nt
s

C

34
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
02

3 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

C
P

35
R

at
ep

ay
er

 A
dv

oc
at

e 
In

te
rv

ie
w

s 
(1

 y
r w

/2
 1

yr
 

op
tio

ns
)

P
P

36
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y 
M

an
ag

ed
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 C
on

tra
ct

P
P

37
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

23
 M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

38
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l N
o.

 1
2:

 S
hi

ft 
W

or
k 

Po
lic

y
P

P

39
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 

Po
lic

ie
s

P
P

40
R

ev
ie

w
 B

ud
ge

t C
al

en
da

r
P

41
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
n 

In
te

rn
al

 C
on

tro
l P

ol
ic

y
P

P

42
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

23
 a

nd
 F

Y 
20

23
/2

4 
Se

co
nd

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 
R

ep
or

t a
nd

 M
id

-Y
ea

r B
ud

ge
t R

ev
ie

w
P

P

43
R

ev
ie

w
 C

O
LA

 D
at

a 
an

d 
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 E
m

pl
oy

ee
 S

al
ar

y 
Ad

ju
st

m
en

t (
C

O
LA

) f
or

 
FY

 2
02

4/
25

P
P

44
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 R

et
ai

l D
eb

t 
Th

re
sh

ol
d

P
P

45
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l N
o.

 7
: E

m
pl

oy
m

en
t S

ta
tu

s
P

P

46
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 
M

an
ua

l N
o.

 9
: P

ay
 P

la
n

P
P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 3

 o
f 4

12
/2

6/
20

23

179



Fi
na

nc
e 

an
d 

Ad
m

in
is

tra
tio

n 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 C

al
en

da
r

FY
 2

02
3/

24

Ite
m

July 11 Board

July 17 Comm

July 18 Board

Aug 1 Board

Aug 15 Board

Aug 21 Comm (Q4)

Sept 5 Board

Sept 25 RESCHED Comm

Oct 3 Board

Oct 16 Comm (cancelled)

Oct 17 Board 

Nov 20 Comm (Q1)

Dec 5 Board

Dec 11 RESCHED Comm

Dec 19 Board

Jan 2 Board

Jan 22 RESCHED Comm

Feb 6 Board

Feb 26 RESCHED Comm (Q2)

Mar 5 Board

Mar 18 Comm

Mar 19 Board

April 2 Board

April 15 Comm

May 16 Board

May 20 Comm (Q3)

June 4 Board

June 17 Comm

June 18 - JPA

47
D

is
cu

ss
 F

ac
ilit

y 
C

ap
ac

ity
 F

ee
 S

tu
dy

P

48
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

ev
is

ed
 C

ap
ita

liz
at

io
n 

Po
lic

y 
fo

r F
ix

ed
 A

ss
et

s
P

P

49
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

50
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

51
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

4 
M

on
th

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t (

co
ns

en
t)

P
P

52
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f a
 R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
R

ev
is

in
g 

th
e 

Bu
dg

et
 fo

r F
Y 

20
24

/2
5

P
P

53
R

ev
ie

w
 A

nn
ua

l L
is

t o
f P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
l S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
on

tra
ct

s 
(c

on
se

nt
)

P
P

54
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

24
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

P

55
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

of
 

Al
l A

s-
Ye

t U
na

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
d 

Fu
nd

s 
fo

r F
Y 

20
23

/2
4 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

56
Ap

pr
ov

e 
a 

R
es

ol
ut

io
n 

Ad
op

tin
g 

th
e 

Ap
pr

op
ria

tio
n 

Li
m

it 
fo

r F
Y 

20
24

/2
5 

(c
on

se
nt

)
P

P

57
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 M
ar

ch
 2

02
4 

an
d 

FY
 2

02
3/

24
 T

hi
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

P
P

58
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

 U
pd

at
e

P

59
Fl

ee
t a

nd
 W

ar
eh

ou
se

 U
pd

at
e

P

60
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 a
nd

 F
ilin

g 
of

 A
pr

il 
20

24
 

M
on

th
ly

 F
in

an
ci

al
 R

ep
or

t (
co

ns
en

t)
P

61
R

ec
om

m
en

d 
Ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f R
ev

is
ed

 U
SC

VJ
PA

 
Bu

dg
et

 fo
r F

Y 
20

24
/2

5
P

C
 =

 C
om

pl
et

ed
 It

em
P 

= 
Pl

an
ne

d 
Ite

m
Pa

ge
 4

 o
f 4

12
/2

6/
20

23

180



         PUBLIC OUTREACH AND LEGISLATION COMMITTEE 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR 2023-2024 

January 18, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Outreach Year in Review Presentation and Year Forward
3. Review of Agency’s Sponsorship Policy
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

February 15, 2024 Committee Meeting (last days for bills to be introduced) 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Review of Agency’s Event Participation Criteria
3. Communications Manager’s Report
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

March 21, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Review Agency’s Conservation Public Outreach Campaigns
3. Communications Manager’s Report
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

April 18, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Presentation of the FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 Public Outreach Operating Budget
3. Communications Manager’s Report
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

May 16, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Campaigns and Engagement Highlights Presentation
3. Communications Manager’s Report
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

June 20, 2024 Committee Meeting (last days for Senate/Assembly to pass bills) 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report
3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

July 18, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report
3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

August 15, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report
3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items

September 19, 2024 Committee Meeting (last days for Senate/Assembly to pass bills) 
1. Legislative Consultant Reports
2. Communications Manager’s Report

181



 

3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items  
 
October 17, 2024 Committee Meeting 

1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report 
3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items  

 
November 21, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Review of the 2025 Legislative Platform  
2. Legislative Consultant Reports 
3. Communications Manager’s Report 
4. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items  

 
December 3, 2024 Board Meeting  

1. Adoption of the 2025 Legislative Platform  
 

December 19, 2024 Committee Meeting  
1. Legislative Consultant Reports 
2. Communications Manager’s Report 
3. Committee Requests for Future Agenda Items  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

182



         WATER RESOURCES AND WATERSHED COMMITTEE 
AGENDA PLANNING CALENDAR FY 2023-2024 

January 2, 2024 Board Meeting 
1. Discuss and Consider Potential Amendment to the Deposit and Funding Agreement between

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency and DACA-Castaic, LLC for Tapia Ranch
2. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into an Agreement for Purchase and

Sale of Recycled Water between City of Santa Clarita and SCV Water Agency

January 10, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an

Agreement between SCV Water Agency and SCV-GSA to Provide Management and Technical
Services

2. Water Resources Manager Report:
• Status of Upper Santa Clara River Salt and Nutrient Management Plan
• Status of Water Supplies
• Staff Activities

3. Sustainability Manager Report
• Conservation Program Performance Overview
• Staff Activities

January 16, 2024 Board Meeting 
1. CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Real Property Negotiators

Property: Devil’s Den Water District Property Encompassing Approx. 8,800 Acres Located in
Kings and Kern Counties Along Hwy 33 North of Twisselman Road and South of Route 41
Agency Negotiators: Assistant General Manager Stephen L. Cole, Director of Water Resources
Ali Elhassan, and Water Resources Planner Rick Vasilopulos
Negotiating Parties: Intersect Power
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms of Payment

February 6, 2024 Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Approval of a Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an

Agreement between SCV Water Agency and SCV-GSA to Provide Management and Technical
Services

February 14, 2024 Committee Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of the Water Use Efficiency Strategic Plan
2. Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Contracts for Water Resiliency Plan Initiative
3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into MOU with Antelope Valley East

Kern Water District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed
High Desert Water Bank

4. Water Resources Manager Report:
• Status of the Groundwater Recharge Feasibility Studies
• Status of New Drop Program
• Staff Activities

5. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities

March 5, 2024 Board Meeting 
1. Recommend Adoption of the Water Use Efficiency Strategic Plan
2. Authorize the General Manager to Enter into Contracts for Water Resiliency Plan Initiative

183



 

3. Recommend Authorizing the General Manager to Enter into MOU with Antelope Valley East 
Kern Water District to Fund Planning Costs for a Portion of the Proposed Phase 2 Proposed 
High Desert Water Bank  

 
March 13, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report – Staff Activities  
2. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities  

 
April 10, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report – Staff Activities  
2. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities  

 
May 15, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report – Staff Activities  
2. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities  

 
June 12, 2024 Committee Meeting  

1. Water Resources Manager Report – Staff Activities  
2. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities  

 
July 10, 2024 Committee Meeting 

1. Water Resources Manager Report – Staff Activities  
2. Sustainability Manager Report – Staff Activities  

 
 

184


	Information Sheet
	Agenda
	Item 5.1
	Item 5.2
	Item 6.1
	Item 6.2
	Item 8.1
	Item 9.1
	Item 9.2
	Item 9.3
	Item 9.4
	Item 9.5



